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In the Name of Allah, Most Gracious,
Most Merciful. This is by the Grace of Allah.



Reshaping.
Rebuilding.

Since inception, we have been driven by our 
vision to transform the way steel impacts lives. 
As a pioneering manufacturer of flat steel in 
Pakistan, your company strives to enable 
innovation and progress through providing steel 
that takes numerous forms, from construction 
and industrial applications, to products that are 
part of our daily lives.

Over the years, our capacity has grown and our 
product offering has diversified, helping us to 
provide better service to customers. With this 
growth our resolve remains unchanged as we 
strive to create value. As an enabler for various 
downstream industries, our value extends 
beyond steel. We not only strive to save 
precious foreign exchange, we also lighten 
Pakistan’s name across the globe by exporting 
our products all over the world.
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Company
Profile

ANNUAL
REPORT 2018 07

International Steels Limited “ISL” is the largest Flat Steel 
manufacturer in Pakistan. The company was incorporated in 
2007 and commenced production in 2010. To date, the company 
has invested approximated US$ 250 million in establishing a 
state of the art flat steel complex.
 
ISL’s manufacturing facilities are located on 32 acres in the port 
city of Karachi, where the company produces Cold Rolled Steel, 
Galvanized Steel and Color Coated Steel for numerous industrial 
and commercial applications. The company has a strong 
nationwide supplier network that is served through regional 
offices in Lahore, Islamabad and Multan. ISL exports its products 
to more than 20 countries worldwide.
 
In its short history, ISL has carried out extensive large scale 
expansion activities to enhance production. With the recent 
expansion, the company now has a capacity of over 1,000,000 
Metric Tons. 

The company has played an important role in developing the 
large scale industrial manufacturing sector of Pakistan. ISL’s 
high quality steel serves as an essential input for various 
upstream and downstream industries of the country. Through 
consistently expanding manufacturing capacity, the company 
has substituted a significant portion of Pakistan’s flat steel 
imports, resulting in foreign exchange saving for the country. 
 
ISL believes in sustainability of operations and aims to maintain 
good relationship with all its stakeholders. Driven by the Clean, 
Lean and Green approach, the company strives to continuously 
reduce its carbon footprint, promote effective utilization of 
resources, reduce waste and promote green practices through 
recycling and reusing resources.

The company partakes in various social initiatives to promote 
wellbeing and welfare in society. ISL is a frequent supporter of 
various health care and educational initiatives in the country.
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Mr. Kamal A. Chinoy
	��$�%�$���<��
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Mr. Samir M. Chinoy

Chief Executive Officer
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Group Company Secretary
& Head of Legal
Ms. Uzma Amjad Ali
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Ms. Asema Tapal

External Auditors
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Being
Constructive
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ISL prides itself on being an enabler 
and facilitator for various sectors. ISL’s 
steel has a wide range of applications 
that allows innovative solutions for the 
industrial and construction segments.
 
Our steel brings visions to life, from 
aesthetically appealing roofing and 
decking to functionally robust and 
durable wall partitions, ducting and 
HVAC systems, steel provides quick, 
economical, and sustainable solutions. 
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By developing materials specifically 
���
�$� 
�� ���
������� ��?������

�� �
$�
expanding manufacturing capacity, ISL 
���-�$��� '��'� ?����
�� ���$��
�� �
$�
services for various customers, acting 
as a catalyst to economic activity and 
generating opportunities for people.

Rolling out options
and opportunities

ANNUAL
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ISL’s domestically produced flat steel has 
improved steel availability and acted as a 
catalyst to the downstream industry, thus  
enabling growth.

Industry & the
Industrious

ANNUAL
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Business at a Glance
Cold Rolled Steel
Our cold rolling mill is a modern, advanced facility designed and 
supplied by SMS Siemag, Germany.

q�
'��
���
�?����
����

���������������
$��$-�
��$�
��'
�����*�
our product provides outstanding finish and workability, highly 
valued by customers in the automobile, home appliances, 
furniture, drum, tube, filter, tin plate and various other industrial 
segments.

Cold rolled steel manufactured by ISL is available in 
thicknesses ranging from 0.15 mm to 3.0 mm and is offered in a 
maximum width of 1,250 mm. ISL’s CRC is provided in a range 
of product specifications, ranging from drawing to structural and 
surface finishes from bright to matt to meet our customer 
��������� ��?������

��� <�
��� 
'�� ����

� �>��
���
�*� #	~���
capacity has increased to over 1,000,000 MT.

Hot Dip Galvanized Steel
���� %�
� ;����$� ���-�
���$� 	
���� ��� ���$���$� �
� ��
�
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available raw materials and processes are applied under 
��
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���������
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Our manufacturing facility, a dynamic production team and 
�$'���
���
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�?����
����

��������������
�����������$��
�
��� 
'��'��'��
����$���%�
�;������-�
���$��
���� ����-�������� �
�
thicknesses ranging from 0.15 mm – 2.50 mm. After addition of 
our new galvanizing line, ISL’s capacity to produced Galvanized 
materials increased to 450,000 MT.

Color Coated Steel
Our Continuous Color Coil Coating facility was developed using 
wet paint coating technology. The 84,000 MT facility allows us 

�� ���$���� '��'� ?����
�� ������ ���
�$� �'��
�� �
� -�������
substrates like Cold Rolled, Galvanized, Galvalume, Aluminum 
�
$� 	
��
����� 	
���� �'��
��� K'�� '��'� ?����
�� ������ ���
�
��
enhances the corrosion resistance substrate and adds to the 
aesthetic appeal. Color coated steel is available in thicknesses 
ranging from 0.20 mm – 1.50 mm.

ANNUAL
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�
Steel Products in Pakistan.

Mission
To establish our presence in the steel 
�
$��
��� ��� ���-�$�
�� ��������� ?����
��
products and reliable services, catering 
to the customers’ needs, at competitive 
prices; thereby generating value and 
close partnership. We take pride in 
providing an environment which 
cultivates teamwork and leadership 
capabilities to manage our company as a 
model corporate citizen, complying with 
highest standards of business ethics.

Vision

ANNUAL
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We are committed to continually enhance the 
�����
�-�
���� ��� ���� ?����
�*� �
-���
��

��*�
occupational health and safety management systems. 
We aim at creating fair value for the stakeholders 
through team work, continual improvement in 
technology, waste reduction, protection of 
environment, care for health, safety of people and 
�?�����

��
$������-���

��
�����
������
�����

Our Values
q���'�����������
����-������5'��'��
�������
��

Integrity:
We are committed to maintain highest ethical standards 
and ensure a culture of trust and openness internally as 
well as externally.

Diversity:
q�������
��?���������
�
�
�����������5�
'�����������
against gender, race, ethnicity and religion and 
encourage openness, expression of opinions etc.

Respect for People:
We are committed to foster a culture where people 
come first and we hire, develop and retain our people to 
work as synergized teams in line with our mission and 
vision.

Fairness:
We are committed to implement such policies and 
�����$����� 5'��'� 
��
���
�� �

�� ����� �
$� �?��
�����
treatment of all stakeholders, including selection, 
hiring, rewarding and compensating all employees.

Strategic Objectives

ANNUAL
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Calendar of Major Events 

Q1 Q2
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for a new service center and enhancement of 
annealing capacity
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�
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+���
�
���
��
��>'���
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!� #	~� <�
��
�� �
� ����$�
��� �������� 5�
�� 
'��
Corporate Art Award 2017 in Italy

!� #	~�5�
��
'��:���#��>���
�<5��$��J]\��
�
'��
flat steel category

!� #

�����;�-�$�
$�����^��]�H������'�������$��
�
October

Q3 Q4
!� �����$�$� 
'�� '��'��
� �-��� ��

'��� ������ �
�

March

!� ���
�����
�$��
���K'��	�
�������

����>'���
��
��
in Colombo, Sri Lanka

!� ���
�����
�$� �
� 
'�� ������
�
� <�
�� 	'�5�� �
�
Lahore

!� <

��
��$������������$�������

����
'������
$�
Cold Rolling Mill (CRM), increasing installed 
capacity to 1 million metric tons annually. 

 Net Sales increased by 41% to PKR. 47.62 billion

!� ���
�����
�$� �
�
'��������
�
�%"<����>'���
��
��
in Islamabad

!� ���
�����
�$��
�
'���������
���
����>'���
��
���
�
Doha, Qatar

!� 	���
$� �

����� ;�-�$�
$� ��� �^�� X� ���� �'����
paid in April

!������
���5��$�$��� ��
�
����� �<�|<!]�� _	�
����<�
Plus/<�!��
�`�������!"#	����$�
���
�
�������
�
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Geographical Presence 
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Factory
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A. BUSINESS ETHICS

 i). The company’s policy is to conduct its 
business with honesty and integrity and be 
ethical in its dealings, showing respect for 
the interest of all stakeholders including its 
shareholders, employees, customers, 
suppliers and the society.

 ii).  The company is dedicated to providing a 
����� �
$� 
�
!$�������
�
���� 5����
��
environment for all employees.

 iii).  The company does not support any political 
party or contributes funds to groups whose 
activities promote political interests.

 iv).  The company is committed to provide 
products which consistently offer value in 

���������������
$�?����
���
$��������������
their intended use, to satisfy customer 
needs and expectations.

 v). The Board of Directors and the 
Management are both committed to ensure 
that the company is a responsible 
corporate citizen and the business shall be 
carried out in a sustainable manner.

 vi. The operations shall be carried out with 
minimum adverse effect on the environment 
�
$����$���
��?����
�����$��
���
���'���
'��
and safe working environment.

 vii. We, as a responsible corporate citizen shall 
promote our role towards betterment of the 
society in health and education sectors as a 
part of our Corporate Social Responsibility.

B. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

 i. Every employee should conduct his/her 
personal and business affairs in a manner 
such that neither a conflict, nor the 
appearance of a conflict, arises between 
those interests and the interests of the 
company.

 ii.  An employee should avoid any situation in 
which he or she, or a family member, might 
profit personally either (directly or 
indirectly), from the company’s facilities, its 
products, or company’s relationships with 
its vendors or customers.

 iii.  An employee should not permit himself/ 
herself (or members of his/her family) to be 
obligated (other than in the course of normal 
banking relationships) to any organization 
or individual with whom the company has a 
����
���� ����
��
�'���� %�5�-��*� ����
����
lunches, dinners or social invitations, 
nominal giveaways and attendance at 
conferences and seminars would not be 
considered a violation of this Code.

 iv. In case an employee is offered or receives 
something of value which he/she believes 
may be impermissible under this Code, he 
/ she should disclose the matter.

 v.  All employees shall avoid any kind of 
bribery, extortion and all other forms of 
corruption.

 vi.  Conflict of interest shall be avoided and 
promptly disclosed where they exist and 
guidance should be sought from superiors.

C. ACCOUNTING RECORDS, CONTROLS & 
STATEMENTS

 i. All books, records, accounts and 
statements should conform to generally 
accepted and applicable accounting 
principles and to all applicable laws and 
regulations and should be maintained 
accurately.

 ii. Employees are expected to sign only 
documents or records which they believe 
to be accurate and truthful.

Code of Conduct
K'����$�������
$��
� ����?����������������� 
�� 
'��/���$����;����
�������5����������� 
'��������������� 
'��
�����
���K'�������

����
��������
'����$�������
$��
�������������5��
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D. ENVIRONMENT

 i. The company is committed to carry its 
business in an environmentally sound and 
sustainable manner and promote 
preservation and sustainability of the 
environment.

� ����� <��� ���������� ���� ��?����$� 
�� �$'����
strictly to all applicable environmental laws 
and regulations that impact the company’s 
operations.

E. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

 i. The company is committed to make 
prompt public disclosure of “material 
information” regarding the company as 
prescribed in the Pakistan Stock Exchange 
������
��
�*������?����$�

 ii. Where an employee is privy to the 
information, which is generally referred to 
as “material inside information”, the same 
must be held in strict confidence by the 
employee involved until it is publicly 
released.

 iii. The employees shall abide by the 
appropriate Competition Laws and shall not 
enter into understandings, arrangements or 
agreements with competitors, which have 
the effect of fixing or controlling prices, 
dividing and allocating markets or territories, 
or boycotting suppliers or customers.

F. PERSONAL CONDUCT

 i. All employees should conduct themselves 
with the highest degree of integrity and 
professionalism in the workplace or any 
other location while on company business.

 ii. The employees shall be careful while 
dealing with personal or business 
associates and not disclose, divulge or 
provide any information regarding the 
company to anyone except where the 
same is used as a part of his/ her official 

������
��
�� �
$� ��� ��?����$� ���� ���������
purpose and shall abide by the Closed 
Period announced by the company from 

���� 
�� 
���� �
$� ����� ���
� �� =�
!�
Disclosure Agreement if the need arises.

 iii. All employees should avoid any kind of 
bribery, extortion and all other forms of 
corruption.

 iv. Employees should always be cognizant of 
the need to adhere strictly to all safety 
policies and regulations.

 v. Any legally prohibited or controlled 
substances if found in the possession of any 
employee will be confiscated and where 
appropriate, turned over to the authorities.

G. MISCELLANEOUS

� ��� <�������������������?����$�
���������5�
'�
this code of conduct and are personally 
responsible for doing so. Employees must 
comply with any rules set out in this code of 
conduct. Breach of any principles within 
the code may result in disciplinary action 
and a serious breach – such as if any 
employee is found to be in wanton abuse 
of the code and their action cause 
reputational risk or damage or financial 
loss to the Company may amount to gross 
misconduct, which may result in summary 
$���������� :��
'��*� 
'�� �����
�� �����-���
the right to seek redress and damages 
from such individuals.

� ���� �����������
����� ��-����5���������?����$�
��
certify annually that they understand the 
code and that they are in full compliance 
with this code. The Board monitors the 
findings of this certification on annual 
basis.

 iii. The Company has in place a confidential 
“Whistle Blowing policy” as whistleblowing 
mechanism and process to encourage the 
�����
�
������
��
�
!�������
���5�
'� 
'���
code of conduct.
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Milestones Achieved

2012

2013

2014

�� ���$��
��
�
exceeded 
221,000 MT

�� K��
�-����>���$!
ed Rs.20 billion

�� �����
����

���������������
Operation

�����
�����
��
����?����$

� !� #	��[JJ]������
����
�����

�
System

� !� #	��]@JJ]��
-���
��

���
Management

� !� �%	<	�]FJJ]�������
��
���
%���
'�+�	���
����
�����

�
Systems

�� ~��
�$����������������
���
�
'��
Paksitan Stock Exchange

�� ���$��
��
��>���$�$�
280,000 MT

�� K��
�-����>���$�$�
Rs.24 billion

2015

�� �����
��$��������>��
���
�
projects valued over Rs. 3 billion

� �� <$$�
��
����������
$��
�
$��
�

'��@�%����-����
������*�
transforming it into a 
continuous compact mill and 
doubling its capacity

� �� 	�����������
�
����
��
������
second galvanizing plan with a 
capacity of 250,000 tons and a 
thickness up to 2.0 mm.

�� ���$�
�;�-�$�
$���]J��
���
Shareholders 
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2016

2017

2018

�� ���$��
��
��>���$�$�@ZH*JJJ��K

�� 	�����-�������>���$�$�@[J*JJJ�

�� 	�����-���������-�������XX�������
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�����
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�����#
$�
�������'��-�$�

�� 	����������$���

��
����
�����������
��
line, increasing capacity from 450,000 
MT to 600,000 MT

�� 	�������������������
�
������$$�
��
���
Annealing capacity from 160,000 MT to 
approximately 200,000 MT

�� #	~��

��
��$��>��
���
������
�5����$�
rolling mill increasing capacity to 1 million 
tons at an investment of Rs. 5.6 billion

�� ���������
�
���������
$����$������
�������_���`�
increases capacity to 1 million metric tons 
annually.

�� <

��
��$��
��
-��
��

�����^��[\H�������
�����
two new service centers and enhancement of 
annealing capacity

�� ���$��
��
��>���$�$�@\J*JJJ��K

�� 	�����"�������>���$�$�HX[*JJJ��K

�� 	�����"���������-�������@\�Z��/�����


�� q�
�
'��:���#��>���
�<5��$��J]\��
�
'��
category of flat steel

�� ���$�
���
�
������<�|<!]��_	�
����<������|�<�!��
�`�
�5��$�$�������!"#	����$�
���
�
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�� #	~�<�
��
���
�����$�
�����������5�
��
'��
Corporate Art Award 2017 in Italy

�� �����
�
�	
�����>�'�
������
�
����
������
�
Stanley Composite Index (MSCI) was upgraded to 
“Emerging Market” and International Steels 
Limited is proud to be listed in the MSCI

�� ���$��
��
��>���$�$�XFJ*JJJ��K

�� #
����������$������
�������������
�������
250,000 MT to 500,000 MT

�� <$$�$�

� �� 	���
$����-�
���
����
���
������
��
galvanizing capacity from 150,000 MT to 
450,000 MT

� �� :���
��-������������
�
����
���
������
�
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Chairman’s Review
I am pleased to present the review for the year 
�
$�$� XJ� ��
�� �J]F� '��'���'
�
�� 
'�� �����
����
performance and the role of the Board of Directors 
in guiding the management to carry out its 
responsibility for the benefit of all its stakeholders. 

K'��������J]\!�J]F�5����
�
'�������������������
for the Company in terms of financial performance 
in times of number of challenges emanating from 
economic and business front mainly exchange rate 
$�������
��
*� ������ �'����
���� 
�� �

�!$����
��
duties and level playing field. The resilience and 
growth shown by your company in overcoming 
these challenges shows the strength of this 
Company. The salient financial achievements 
$���
��
'������������

�� =�
�	������
������$����@]��
������@\�Z��������

�� �����������
��
������$�
�����\�H\�������

�� �����
� ��
��� 
�>� �
������$� ��� @X�� 
�� ���� @�XZ�

billion
�� ���
�
��������'�����
������$�
������]J�JX

In line with our commitment to cater for the growth in 
the manufacturing sector, the capacity expansion of 

'��������
����$������
�������������
���
���
���
��
2018. This will increase the cold rolling capacity to 
1,000,000 tons / annum. The Continuous Pickling 
Line which will expand the pickling capacity is 
expected to commence production in Q1 
�J]F!�J][�� K'�� �����
�� '��� �����$�� �����-�$�
further expansion of additional annealing furnaces 
involving an investment of Rs. 290 million, which is 
�>���
�$� 
�� ��� ���������
�$� �
� 
'�� �X� �J]F!][��
The Company will invest Rs 675 million in product 
service center in Karachi to increase its reach and 
provide value added products to fast growing 
automobile and home appliance sectors. 

#
���
��5�
'�
'�������
����-����
��
$�������
�
'��
������ ��� 
'�� �����
���� ��
�����

� 5���� �����
�
�
�$���-�������?����
�����$��
���
$����
$�����
����
plans for the overall success of the Company. The 
Company is fueled by the confidence of its 
��
$���

��� �
��
�
'�*� 
'�� ?����
�� ��� �
�� $�-�
�$�
workforce, the production systems and effective 
supply chain management. I am confident that the 
Company will be successful in meeting the future 
challenges and targets.

The Board has performed its duties and 
responsibilities diligently and has contributed 
effectively in guiding the Company in all its 
strategic affairs. The Board also played a key role 
in monitoring of management performance and 
focus on major risk areas. The Board was fully 
involved in strategic planning process and 
enhancing the vision of the Company. 

The Board recognizes that well defined corporate 
governance processes is vital in enhancing 
corporate accountability and is committed to 
ensure high standards of corporate governance to 

preserve and maintain stakeholder value. All 
Directors including Independent Directors fully 
participated and contributed in decision making 
process of the Board. 

As Chairman of your Company, I will continue to be 
responsible for leading the Board, fostering a 
culture of openness and constructive debate during 
which all views are heard and ensuring that the 
board hears from appropriate range of senior 
management. I will remain firmly committed to 
ensuring that your. Company complies with all 
relevant codes and regulations and ensuring that 
our management team continues to take decision 
that will create value for you in the short, medium 
and long term.

K'��/���$�������$���
� �
���

��������!�-����
��
� �
�
��
�� 5�
'� ��?������

�� ��� ��$�� ��� �������
��
Governance and found its performance to be most 
satisfactory and improved over previous years. The 
main focus remained on strategic growth, business 
opportunities, risk management, Board composition 
and providing oversight to the management. The 
Board intends to further improve its performance to 
be in line with global best practices.

Apart from the Board Audit Committee (BAC) / 
/���$� %���
� ��������� �����

��� _%���`�
���
�
����-����?���
��*� 
'��/���$���
� ��-�
� _\`�
times during the year. The Board normally meets 
�
��� �-���� ?���
��� 
�� ��
��$��� �
$� �����-��
financial and operating results and other meetings 
to consider and approve budget for the following 
year and one meeting is focused on strategy.

The Company has an independent Internal Audit 
department and follows a risk based audit 
methodology. Internal Audit reports are presented 

��/���$�<�$�
������

����
�?���
������������
$�
areas for improvement are highlighted. 

Your Company is continuously investing 
substantial resources to further improve working 
conditions for its employees to provide a safe, 
healthy and comfortable working environment.

On behalf of the Board, I wish to acknowledge the 
contributions of all our employees in the success of 
the Company. I also wish to thank our shareholders, 
customers, suppliers, bankers, business partners and 
other stakeholders for their confidence and support.

The Board looks forward towards the next year with 
greater confidence in meeting the challenges ahead.

Kemal Shoaib 
Chairman
Karachi 15th August, 2018
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Directors’ Report
The Directors of International Steels Limited are 
pleased to present the 11th Annual Report 
accompanied by the audited financial statements for 

'��������
$�$���
��XJ*��J]F��

Boards Composition & Remuneration
Composition of the Board and the names of 
�����������/���$�	��!�����

������������������$�
at Page No. 42 & 56.

:��
'������*� 
'�� /���$� ��� ;����
���� '�-�� �� �������
policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of 
its Directors in accordance with the Companies Act 
2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations 2017. 

Global Steel Scenario
World crude steel production touched 1.69 billion 
metric tons during the year, whereas the demand 
grew by 1.8% compared to last year. This depicts a 
positive growth globally through investment 
expenditure in both developed and developing 
economies, specially the infrastructural works and 
real estate projects that has been on the boom 
around the developing countries. China consumed 
about half of global steel output and the demand 
remained flat during the year, due to the fact that 
China made a shift from investment to consumption 
��$����5
'�
'���������%�5�-��*���
����
��
��
��'�
��
will remain strong for years to come. The government 
of United States imposed 25% duty on steel imports 
into United States under Section 232 of US Trade 
Expansion Act, 1962. It is likely to create significant 
exportable surplus in major steel producing countries 
and impact steel prices. 

Pakistan's Economy
;����
��
'������
�������
��
��
*�
'�����

��������
����
maintained the growth momentum and achieved GDP 
growth of 5.8%. The reasons beneath the persistent 
growth remained the same including improved energy 
������*� �
-��
��

� ����
�$� 
�� 
'�� �'�
�!�����
�
�
Economic Corridor and strong credit growth. 
%�5�-��*� 
'�� ������
��
� ���� �J][� 5���� ��$���
�� 
��
4.7% due to macroeconomic vulnerabilities and 
domestic policy slippages. 

Industrial sector recorded a growth of 5.8% as 
compared to 5.02% last year. Large Scale 
Manufacturing (LSM) recorded a growth of 6.13% 
against 5.1% last year.  This is the highest growth 
percentage in last ten years. The construction sector 
continued to raise its share in GDP to 2.74% from last 
������� ��ZH�� ������
�
�� �
'��� �����$� �
$��
�����
including the steel industry.

Steel demand gained traction from increase in 
automobile production, appliances and ongoing 
construction activities. Such strong was the demand for 
steel that even a sharp growth in domestic production 
was not enough to curtail imports. Robust construction 
activities manly led to an increase in demand for steel 
and allied products. The improved energy supply as 
well as industry gained some comfort after recovery in 
global prices which provided room to local players to 
increase their prices which ultimately helped them to 
enhance their capacity utilization.

In order to deal with the emerging inflationary 
pressures mainly arising from a sharp increase in 
international oil prices, State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) 
increased the policy rate twice during the year 
���
��
���
�
��Z�H������������$�
��
'�����
����������
��
��� H�\H��� K'�� ��
�� '��� 
�5� '�
� �� 
'���!����� '��'*�
$����
�
�� 
'�� �$���
��

�� �
� �����!���
�����
fundamentals during the fiscal year; expected to 
continue in future as well. Adding to the worrying 
signals, the Pakistani Rupee experienced a worst fall 
ever against US dollar reaching at the historic level of 
���]�F!]XJ*����$�
�������
������������������$�
��
last year. Such an acute fall is owed to the constantly 
increasing current account deficit which shot up to 12 
billion dollars during the first nine months of fiscal year 
and expected to cross US 15 billion dollars at the end 
of current fiscal year.

Manufacturing Operations
Current year production was 470,841 tons, reflecting 
an increase of 1.5% over the previous year. Various 
productivity based initiatives resulted in increased plant 
reliability and operational efficiencies.

Sales
The company maintained its growth momentum 
exhibited a substantial increase of 10% in volumes 
over the preceding financial year exceeding 540,000 
metric tons of prime products comprising 346,000 
metric tons of Galvanized and 194,000 metric tons of 
Cold Rolled Products despite the influx of low priced 
imports primarily from China and Russia. The net 
sales value also increased by 41.2% mainly due to 
increase in global steel prices during the year. The 
Company continued to consolidate and leverage its 

�
��
!5�$��$������
�
5���*�5'��'�'������
��

������
in reaching smaller commercial as well as industrial 
�
$!��
�������

JCR-VIS Credit Rating
In 2018, the Company was awarded the rating of 
�<�|<!]��_	�
����<������|�<�!��
�`�������!"#	����$�
�
Rating Company Limited. Outlook assigned to the 
��
�
��5����	
������
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Energy Management
�����
����][��q���5������

���

�
��$� 
�������
��
satisfactorily and in line with our practice we continued 

����������>������
�����
��^!�����
�����

Health, Safety & Environment
Company believes in and is fully committed to 
�����-��%���
'*�	���
���
$��
-���
��

��
�
$��$��

����'��-�����
��
�����%	����������
������������
Safety & Behavior Based Safety across the 
����
���
��
� ����
����$�
'����'�%	����
�����

�
System integrated with the company’s organization 
scheme and the Company is on track of continuous 
improvement with focus to achieve & sustain 
leading levels.

Implementation of rigorous safety and environmental 
standards and strong management focus, no major 
�
��$�

� 5��� �����
�$� �
$� 
'�� �
!���
�� �>��
���
�
project completed without a loss time incident. We 
ensured compliance with environmental standards, best 
practices for air emissions, noise, portable water and 
industrial effluent in line with the national environmental 
?����
���
�
$��$��

Human Resources
The Company maintained industrial peace and a 
positive and enabling work environment for all 
employees in the organization by promoting candor 
and fairness. The Company continues its efforts on 
development of personnel at all levels, proactively 
building capabilities and retaining talent for business 
��

�
��
��� %���
� ����
��� ��� ��-��
�$� �
$��� �����
�
policies and procedures, overseen by a dedicated 
%���
����������$����
��

�

The Company has formulated a firm succession plan 
which includes performance evaluation and 
���������
��
���
�
����?������

������$�-������

����
��
�

���� ��
���� ���$����� #
� �J]\!]F*� 
'�� �����
��
spent Rs. 2.76 million on various training programs 
involving 483 employees.

The Company successfully continued its operations 
with an optimal headcount. The headcount at year 
�
$� �J]\!]F� 5��� Z\X� �������$� 5�
'� HZ\� ��� 
'��
previous year.

Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company has a policy to donate 1.5% of its profit 
after tax to charitable institutions. During the year, 
Company has donated Rs. 64 million to various 
nonprofit organizations.

Risk Management
The Risk Management infrastructure of the company 
is based upon Enterprise Risk Management 
methodology/framework addressing the major risk 
categories including Strategic, Operational, 
�������
����
$�:�
�
����������
�
��������<$�?��
��
controls have been designed and communicated to 
the staff via various policy and procedural guidelines 

5'��'� ���� �>���
�$� �
$� ����!�������$� ��� 
'��
process/control owners.

An independent Internal Audit Department, under 
direct reporting to the Board Audit Committee, 
evaluates and oversees the design and operating 
effectiveness of these controls.

More over the Board has an effective Internal Control 
framework which may be referred at page no. 50.

Business Review
In 2018 the Company posted highest ever production 
of and sales. The Company posted the revenue of Rs. 
47.62 billion against Rs. 33.73 billion last year. The 
rolling production during the year was 470,841 tons 
against 464,023 tons last year. Whereas, the total 
saleable production was 540,000 tons as compared to 
491,000 tons of last year. Lean management and 
rigorous effort towards cost optimization lead the 
Company to maintain remarkable gross profit of Rs. 
7.57 billion and profit after tax of Rs. 4.36 billion 
against gross profit of Rs. 5.91 billion and profit after 
tax of Rs. 3.04 billion last year.

The Company successfully completed a project for a 

�5�������
����$������
������� �
���
���J]F*�
'������
taking cold rolling capacity to 1,000,000 tons which 
together with steel galvanizing capacity of 462,000 tons 
will enable the Company to cater to the whole national 
demand of flat steel products and will further strengthen 
the position of the Company as the leading 
manufacturer of flat steel products. In order to establish 
a strong international presence and brand identity the 
Company’s export revenue stood at Rs. 4.22 billion as 
compared to Rs. 3.91 billion last year.

The National Tariff Commission (NTC) imposed 
<

�!;����
��;�
����_<;;`��
����!���

�$����-�
���$�
Iron (PPGI) from China and South Africa, effective from 
]X���
���J]F��K'��$�
�����������#���
��$������H�XZ��!�
14.24%. The company expects that the enforcement of 
<

�!;����
�� $�
���� �
� ���$� �����$*� ���-�
���$� �
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�5��������
������-��������
��
����$�������������
����
������%�5�-��*�
'����$�
����'�-��
been consistently challenged in different courts 
impeding the primary purpose of such impositions. We 
expect these cases will be decided by the courts soon.

Financials
The Company continued its growth momentum in the 
current year collecting revenue of Rs. 47.6 billion, 
which is 41% higher than last year. The gross 
margins stood at 16% (Rs. 7.6 billion) compared with 
17.5% (Rs. 5.9 billion) last year due to under invoiced 
and secondary grade materials being imported into 
the country. 

Administrative expenses were well contained at Rs. 
285 million whereas, selling and freight expenses 
were increased by 30%, which was in line with 
increased sales volume for the current year. Other 

INTERNATIONAL
STEELS LIMITED34



operating expenses at Rs. 661.6 million were 
significantly higher than last year, primarily due to 
'��'���q��:��
$�qq:��'������_5'��'�5����$����
���
����
�$� 
�� �����
`� �
$� �>�'�
��� ������ :�
�
�����
charges recorded at Rs. 539 million depicted an 
increase of 18.4% mainly due to adverse exchange 
��
�� ��-���

� �����
�
�� �
� '��'��� �'��
� !
����
borrowing as well as higher inventory holding. 

Overall your Company posted a record profit before 
and after taxation of Rs. 5,803 million and Rs. 4,364 
million respectively compared with Rs. 4,608 million 
and Rs. 3,044 million last year. Your Company is 
focused on improving working capital and cash flow 
management. During the year, the Company 
generated a net cash flow from operations of Rs. 294 
million, a decrease of Rs. 1,275 million over last year, 
due to high volumes of stock in transit. An interim 
dividend of Rs. 652.5 million (Rs 1.5 per share) was 
paid during the year. 

Information about the pattern of holding of the shares 
may be referred at Page No. 127.

Earnings per share
���
�
��� ���� �'���� ���� 
'�� ����� �
$�$� ��
�� XJ*�
2018 was Rs. 10.03 compared with Rs. 7.00 per 
share last year.

Dividend
In view of the financial results of the Company for the 
������J]\!]F*�
'��/���$����;����
�������
'�������
��
has recommended a cash dividend of 30% i.e. Rs. 
3.00 per share in addition to 15% interim cash 
dividend announced and paid, making a total dividend 
payout of Rs. 4.50 (45%) per share for the financial 
������
$�$���
��XJ*��J]F�

Recommendation of the Board Audit Committee for 
appointment of auditor
The recommendations of the Audit Committee for 
appointment of  auditor may be referred at Page No. 61.

Contribution to National Exchequer and the 
Economy
Your Company made a contribution of Rs. 11,328 
������
�
��
'��=�
��
����>�'�?����$���
��
'����������
way of income tax, sales tax, custom duties and 
other levies.

Provident Fund & Gratuity Scheme
The Company provides retirement benefits to its 
�����������K'�����
���$����
�
!��

����
����$���
�$�
benefit Gratuity Scheme for all employees and a 
��

����
�������-�$�

�:�
$��������������������>���
�
unionized staff.  Both plans are funded schemes 
recognized by tax authorities.

K'�� -������ ��� 
'�� ���-�$�

� :�
$� �
$� 
'�� ���
��
��
Scheme at the year end were Rs. 129.5 million and 
Rs. 125.4 million

Future Prospects
The company announced commercial production of its 
cold rolling capacity by 500,000 tons to 1,000,000 tons. 
The project involves Compact Cold Rolling Mill, a 
continuous Pickling Line and an Acid regeneration 

facility. The expanded capacity will cater for the robust 
growth in the industrial sector. The Company approved 
further expansion of Cold Rolling capacity by investing 
Rs. 290 million in additional annealing furnaces, 
�>���
�$�
��������������
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�
'���X�����J]F!][��K��
serve the growing industrial customers in the country 
product service. center will be established in Karachi by 
�@��J]F!][�

Acknowledgement
The Board would like to thank all of their 
stakeholders, employees, customers, suppliers, 
shareholders, bankers and any others for their 
������
��
$� �����
���	��'�������
� ��� ��?����$� 
��
�
�
only meet normal commercial challenges but also 
those posed by security Issues and tough economic 
conditions. The confidence and goodwill of the 
stakeholders has allowed the Company to sustain 
and grow over the years .

We continue to pray to Allah for the success of the 
Company and for the benefit of all stakeholders, and 
the country in general.
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Appropriations

Profit after tax for the year 4,364,978  3,044,022

Interim Dividend (2018 Rs. 1.5 per share; 2017 Rs. 2.5 per share)    (652,500) (1,087,500)
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2018 2017
Rupees in ‘000
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Chief Executive Officer
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Executive Director / Advisor
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4,364,978

(652,500)

(435,000)

20182017

(1,087,500)

3,044,022

(1,305,000)
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Mr. Kemal Shoaib 
�'�����
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Cambridge, Massachusetts, where he received an 
��	�� $������ �
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��
����
��� %�� '���
been a professional Executive for some 55 years in 
Banking and Industrial Organizations in several 
���
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���$�
�� {^� �
$� {	<�� %�� 5���
Chairman and Chief Executive of Independence 
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served as the Chief Executive Officer of Public 
Interest Law Association of Pakistan (PILAP), an 
organization dedicated to protecting and defending 
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as a Senior Executive with prestigious 
organizations such as Wyeth Laboratories 
(Pakistan) Ltd., Chemical Consultants (Pakistan) 
Ltd., Commerce Bank Limited Pakistan, Bank of 
Credit and Commerce International S.A. London 
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Sector organizations in Pakistan and abroad, 
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consultant on the capital markets and in that 
capacity has advised numerous organizations in 
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of several companies including Century Paper & 
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and is a trustee of Mind Sports Association of 
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Pakistan in Table Tennis

Mr. Towfiq H. Chinoy 
Executive Director / Advisor   
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with extensive professional experience and 
significant executive leadership accomplishments 
in business and philanthropy and is also known as 
a pioneer in the steel industry and has been 
associated with International Industries Limited 
(IIL), since 1964 from where he retired in August 
2011, after having served as its Managing Director 
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foundation and impeccable ethical reputation for 
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Steel Limited (ISL) in 2007, where he served as 

Managing Director until 2015, which is a state of 
the art modern automated factory and is currently 
serving as an Executive Director on ISL’s board 
since 22nd November 2011 and as Advisor to 
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on whose boards he serves is that he possesses 
strong diplomatic skills and a natural affinity for 
cultivating relationships and persuading 
convening facilitating and building consensus 
among diverse individuals. Over his long career 
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passion for progress to strategic governance 
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director of the Pakistan Business Council since 
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Advisory Boards of the Ministry of 
Communications, Engineering Development 
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Cables Ltd and PICIC Commercial Bank Ltd and a 
Director of National Refinery Ltd., Linde Pakistan 
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remain a Trustee of the Mohatta Palace Gallery 
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President of Beaumont Plaza Owners / Occupants 
Welfare Association. 

Mr. Yousuf H. Mirza 
Chief Executive Officer      
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� ������ 5��� �����

�$� ��� 
'��
Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. 14th August 2015. 
Before appointment as CEO, he was the Chief 
Operating Officer of International Steels Limited 
since August 2013. Prior to joining ISL, he served 
as Managing Director of Linde Pakistan Limited, 
and served in various senior management 
assignments with group subsidiaries in the 
Philippines, Malaysia and South East Asia for over 
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��$�������
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Engineering from NED University of Technology 
and also has an MBA from the Institute of Business 
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� ^����'��� %�� '��� ����� �
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management development programs at Said 
Business School, University of Oxford, INSEAD 
and at NanYang Technological University, 
Singapore. Currently he is Director of Pakistan 
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Mr. Kamal A. Chinoy 
=�
!Executive Director
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Mr. Kamal A. Chinoy is Chief Executive of Pakistan 
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serves on the Board of Directors of Askari Bank 
Ltd., ICI Pakistan Ltd, International Industries Ltd., 
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General of the Republic of Cyprus. Mr. Kamal A. 
Chinoy is a member of the Executive Committee of 
the International Chamber of Commerce (ICC) 
Pakistan and Past President of the Management 
Association of Pakistan (MAP).
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served as a Director of Pakistan Centre of 
Philanthropy, Pakistan Security Printing 
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Undergraduate Admissions Committee of the Aga 
Khan University and the University of Pennsylvania 
<���
�������

������������
�
��%��'�����������-�$�
�
� 
'�� /���$� ��� ��-��
���� ��� <���� /��
� %����
#
�
�
�
��
���%�����������
����$�;����
����'�-�
�����
�
certified by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate 
Governance.

Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan 
Independent Director
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Chartered Accountants, Pakistan, with diversified 
�>�����
�����������
'�
�@J��������%��5�����-�
���
in founding Islamabad Stock Exchange where he 
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also served as the Member Tax Policy & 
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followed by being appointed as Commissioner 
SECP, where he was instrumental in restructuring 
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prominent national level committees like Chairman 
of Committee for formulation of Take Over law. CLA 
Committee for review of Security and Exchange 
Ordinance 1969, Committee for formulation of CDC 
law and regulations and Prime Minister’s 
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���������
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as the Chairman and MD of NIT for more than 8 
years, which played the role of a catalyst in 
establishing, strengthening and stabilizing the 
capital markets. Additionally, during this period, he 
held the charge of Chairman & MD of ICP, for 
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Askari Bank GSK, Sanofi Aventis, ICI, BOC, PSO, 
OGDC, Mari Petroleum, SSGC, Siemens, Gillette 
Pakistan Limited, PICIC Insurance Co., and 
remained Chairman of SNGPL and ARL etc. 
Presently he is a member of the Boards of eminent 
listed companies including International Steels 
Limited, Lucky Cement Limited, National Refinery 
Limited, Attock Refinery Limited, Pakistan Oil 
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Mr. Kamran Y. Mirza 
Independent Director 
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Accountant (Nov. 1968) from United Kingdom and 
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move in December 1970 and joined Abbott 
Laboratories (Pakistan) Limited, a multinational 
Pharmaceutical cum health care company as Chief 
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Managing Director’s of his time in the year 1977 
and remained in that position, i.e. Managing 
Director Abbott Pakistan, for 29 years.

Mr. Mirza held the position of Chairman Export 
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March 2009 and then joined PBC (Pakistan 
Business Council) as its Chief Executive Officer, a 
position he held till December 2015. PBC is a Think 
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as Director on the Boards of Abbott Laboratories, 
International Steel (ISL),Safari Club Ltd. and 
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the Chairman from Dec. 2012 to Oct. 2016.
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Previously, he served as Chairman of Pakistan 
Mercantile Exchange Ltd. (PMEX) – formerly 
National Commodity Exchange Ltd. (NCEL), 
Chairman of Karachi Stock Exchange (KSE), 
President of Overseas Chamber of Commerce & 
Industry (OICCI), President of American Business 
Council (ABC), and Chairman of Pharma Bureau – 
(Association of Pharmaceutical Multinationals).
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Alfalah Limited, State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), 
Pakistan State Oil (PSO), Pakistan Steel (PS), and 
National Bank of Pakistan (NBP), Pakistan Textile 
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he represented PBC on the Board of BOI (Board of 
Investment) and other Government Bodies / 
Institutions.

Mr. Mirza has also been a past Chairman of a Task 
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Pharmaceutical Industry, a member of the 
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served as a Member on Quality Control Board of 
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also lectures regularly at the Pakistan Institute of 
Corporate Governance (PICG). 

Syed Salim Raza 
Independent Director
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Syed Salim Raza served as Governor of the State 
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has been the Chief Executive Officer of Pakistan 
Business Council (PBC) which is an organization 
established by some of Pakistan’s largest business 
houses focusing on expanding the capacity of 
Pakistan’s businesses through development of 
Corporate Law, Capital Markets and Business 
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Citibank in positions that included Country and 
Regional Management, across the Middle East, 
Africa and the UK, Central and Eastern Europe, 
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Bank Ltd. and as Trustee of Indus Earth (NGO), 
Layton Rehmatullah Benevolent Trust (LRBT).

Syed Hyder Ali 
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	�
�����J
'���
������J]]

	��$� %�$��� <��� ��� �� �'������� �
��
���� �����
University of Michigan, after which he has done his 
M.S in Paper Technology from the Institute of Paper 
Chemistry, Appleton, Wisconsin, USA and 
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School, Boston, MA, USA. In 1995 he joined IGI 
Insurance as Managing Director where he served 
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Director and CEO of Packages Ltd. in 2005, a 
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cartons and drink boxes as well as being the 
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Insurance, IGI Life, Nestle Pakistan Limited, Sanofi 
Aventis Pakistan Limited, Tetra Pak Limited, Tri 
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Pumps Company Ltd., and Bulleh Shah Packaging 
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Center for Philanthropy, Syed Maratib Ali Religious 
& Charitable Trust Society, Ali Institute of 
Education, Lahore University of Managements 
Sciences (LUMS) and is a member of the 
International Chamber of Pakistan and Pakistan 
Business Council.

Mr. Riyaz T. Chinoy 
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!Executive Director 
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Mr. Riyaz T. Chinoy took over as CEO on 12th 
August 2011, after serving in the Company since 
1992 and growing through various positions. A 
?�������$� �
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Industrial Engineering from Case Western Reserve 
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Lead Auditor and a Certified Director from the 
Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.
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employed by Pakistan Cables Limited as 
Commercial Projects Manager and prior to that, as 
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Australia Pty Limited, a fully owned subsidiary of 
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IIL. Lastly, he is also a director of the Citizens Trust 
against Crime (CTAC), a member of LITE 
Development and Management Company and is 
also the Chairman of the Pakistan Institute of 
Corporate Governance (PICG) and is also the 
Treasurer Management Association of Pakistan.

Mr. Samir M. Chinoy 
Executive Director 
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Mr. Samir M. Chinoy is Director Sales & Marketing 
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College, USA witha Bachelor’s of Science in 
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Steels Limited Mr. Chinoy worked at Pakistan 
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Chinoy has served on the management committee 
of Landhi Association of Trade and Industry and 
has held the position of Vice Chairman in addition 
to being the Chairman of the Amir Sultan Chinoy 
:��
$�
��
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��� ��� �������'��� 	�����
Mills Ltd. and IIL Australia Pty Ltd. Mr. Chinoy is a 
certified Director from the Pakistan Institute of 
Corporate Governance.

Mr. Kazuteru Mihara 
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!Executive Director 
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Mr. Kazuteru Mihara is presently the General 
Manager of International Steel Sheet & Slab 
Business Department of Sumitomo Corporation, 
K����� ����
� �
$� '��� �H� ������ ��� $�-�������$�
experience in working in Metal Product Business 
Divisions including international trading of steel 
sheet & strip and management in Steel Service 
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assignments in Malaysia, Singapore and China, 
representing Sumitomo Corporation.
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List of Other Directorships

Mr. Towfiq H. Chinoy International Steels Limited                                                             

� � ����������
�����#
����
�������Limited                                        

  Packages Limited                                                                                 

  Pakistan Business Council                                                        

  Mohatta Palace Gallery Trust                                                    

� � %�����{
�-����
��:��
$�
��
�������������������������������������������������������

  Beaumont Plaza Owners / Occupants Welfare Association       

Mr. Yousuf H. Mirza International Steels Limited   

� � �����
�
�����
�/���
����:������ � �

Mr. Kemal Shoaib International Steels Limited                         

  Century Paper & Board Mills Limited          

  ZIL Limited                                                 

� � <�!<��
�%��$�
���_�-
`�Limited                       

  Mind Sports Association of Pakistan      

Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan International Steels Limited                                             

  Packages Limited                                                                  

  Lucky Cement Limited                                                 

  National Refinery Limited                                            

  Attock Refinery Limited                                                           

  Silk Bank Limited                                                                 

  Pakistan Oilfeilds Limited                                                   

� � ::���
�����~���
�$�������������������������������������������������������������

  CAS Management (Pvt) Limited                                               

  Islamic International Medical Trust                          
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Mr. Kamran Y. Mirza International Steels Limited                           

  Abbott Laboratories (Pak) Limited                     

� � {
���-��������
�
�:��$��Limited                        

  Philip Morris (Pakistan) Limited                        

� � �$���
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� � ^��5�
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  Safari & Outdoor Club of Pakistan                 

Mr. Kamal A. Chinoy International Steels Limited                                 

  International Industries Limited                               

  Pakistan Cables Limited                            

� � ��������~����#
����
�������Limited                       

  ICI Pakistan Limited 

  Atlas Power Limited 

� � =/��:�����
�
�<���
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�Limited 

  Askari Bank Limited                                             

 Present name and surname in full  Business occupation and directorship (if any)
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Syed Hyder Ali International Steels Limited       

  IGI Life Insurance Company Limited  

� � /�����<���:��
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  Bulleh Shah Packaging (Pvt) Limited            

  IGI Insurance Limited                        

  KSB Pumps Company Limited
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�:��
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  Nestle Pakistan Limited            

  Packages Lanka (Pvt) Limited

  Packages Limited 

  Pakistan Business Council

  Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy (PCP) 
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  Syed Maratib Ali Religious & Charitable Trust Society

  Tetra Pak Pakistan Limited

� � K��!�����:�����~���
�$

  Ali Institute of Education

  International Chamber of Commerce, Pakistan 

  Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS)

Syed Salim Raza International Steels Limited                                              

  Tamer Bank                                                                     

  Indus Earth – NGO    
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Mr. Riyaz T. Chinoy International Steels Limited 

  International Industries Limited      

  IIL Australia PTY Limited                 

  Citizens Trust Against Crime

  Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance 

  LITE Development and Management Company 

  Management Association of Pakistan 

Mr. Samir M. Chinoy International Steels Limited                                                 

  Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills                                                      

  IIL Australia PTY Limited                                                          
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  Landhi Association of Trade & Industries (LATI)        

  Intermark (Pvt) Limited  

Mr. Kazuteru Mihara International Steels Limited 

 Present name and surname in full  Business occupation and directorship (if any)
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The main philosophy of business followed by the 
sponsors of International Steels Limited for the 
last many decades has been to create value for 
all stakeholders through fair and sound business 
practices, which translates into policies approved 
by the Board implemented throughout the 
company to enhance the economic and social 
values of all stakeholders of the company.

Our Governance strategy is to ensure that the 
Company follows the direction defined by its core 
values, current regulatory framework and global 
best practices. The Board, discharges its 
responsibilities as defined by the Companies act 
2017, Code of Corporate Governance 
������
��
� �J]\*� ���
�
�� ��?������

�� ���
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and the 
�������
�� :�
�
����� �����
�
�� :����5���� ���
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan. 
Our approach towards corporate governance 
ensures ethical behavior, transparency, 
accountability in all that we do and to attaining a 
fair value for the shareholders.

Compliance Statement

Living up to its standards the Board of Directors 
'��*�
'����'��
�
'��������J]\!]F*��������$�5�
'�
the Code of Corporate Governance, the listing 
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'�� �����
�
� 	
���� �>�'�
���
~���
�$� �
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�� �����5����
of Securities & Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan (SECP).

The Directors confirm that that the following has 
���
��������$�

a) The financial statements have been 
prepared which fairly represent the state of 
affairs of the company,   the result of its 
operations, cash flows and changes in 
�?��
��

b) Proper books of accounts of the company 
have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of 
financial statements and accounting 
estimates are based on reasonable and 
prudent business judgment.

$`� #
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������
�
*�'�-�����
�
followed in preparation of financial 
statements and any departures therefrom 
'�-�� ���
� �$�?��
���� $�������$� �
$�
explained.

e) The system of internal control is sound in 
design and has been effectively implemented 
and monitored. The Internal Audit function is 
led by the Chief Internal Auditor supported by 
�
!'������
����

f) There are no significant doubts upon the 
company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern.

g) There is no material departure from the best 
practices of corporate governance as per 
regulations.

The Board of Directors

K'�� /���$� ��� ;����
���� ��
���
�� ��� ?�������$�
individuals possessing knowledge, experience 
and skills in various professions, with the 
leadership and vision to provide oversight to the 
company. The Board is headed by Mr. Kemal 
	'����*� �� =�
!� �>���
�-�� �'�����
�� ��
� ��� ]]�
Directors, 3 are Independent Directors. The 
current Board composition reflects a good mix of 
experience, diversity in backgrounds, skills and 
?��������
��
���<���;����
����'�-����
�����������
experience and are fully aware of their duties and 
responsibilities under the Code of Corporate 
Governance. At present eight (8) Directors have 
��?����$� 
'�� ������� ;����
���� K���
�
��
Certificates, while all the other Directors possess 
sufficient skills and experience of the Board room 
as described in the Code of Corporate 
Governance. The Board also has plans to induct 
��:������;����
����
�$�������������
����

#
�
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��5���
����������
��
�
the Companies Act, 2017 and Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2017 was organized for Directors 
in order to bring them up to speed with 
amendments in the law. 

Governance Framework
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To further its role of providing oversight and 
strategic guidelines to the company, the Board 
has formulated a Board Charter to define its role 
of strategic leadership and provide oversight to 
the management. The Board has constituted an 
<�$�
� �����

��*� %�+�� �����

��*� 	
��
�����
Planning Committee and Treasury Committee. 
The composition, role and responsibilities of the 
Committees are clearly defined in their 
respective Terms of References.

A Board Meeting Calendar is issued annually to 
reflect the dates planned for the Audit Committee, 
%�+�������

��*�	
��
��������

�
�������

���
and Treasury Committee Meetings. All the Board 
members are given appropriate documents in 
advance of each meeting which normally includes 
a detailed analysis of business and matters, 
5'���� 
'�� /���$� 5���� ��� ��?����$� 
�� ����� ��
decision or give its approval.
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�
(7) meetings during this year, out of which four 
_@`� 5���� '��$� 
�� ��-��5� 
'�� ?���
����� �����
�*�
while one (1) was held to consider strategy and 
other two (2) were to approve budget for the 
ensuing year. The average attendance of the 
directors in Board meetings during the year 
was 83%.

The Board of Directors has complied with the 
Code of Corporate Governance, the listing 
��?������

�� ��� �����
�
� 	
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�
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�� �����5����
of Securities & Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan.

Changes in the Board

;���
��
'����
�
�����������J]\!]F*�
'����5����
��
changes in the Board. 

Board Meetings Outside Pakistan

;���
�� 
'�� ����� �J]\!]F*� 
�� /���$� ���
�
���
were held outside Pakistan

Roles and Responsibilities of the Chairman 
and Chief Executive

The Board of Directors provides the overall 
direction for the Company operations and 

provides oversight for various policies and 
monitors the management in the light of 
operational and financial plans. The roles of 
Board and the Chief Executive Officer have been 
clearly defined where the Board is responsible 
for strategic guidance and providing directions 
for sustainable business.

The Chairman and the Chief Executive have 
separate and distinct roles. The Chairman has all 
the powers vested in him under the Code of 
Corporate Governance and presides over all 
Board Meetings. The Chief Executive performs 
his duties under the powers vested by the law 
and the Board and recommends and implements 
the business plans and is responsible for overall 
control and operation of the Company.

Business Philosophy & Best Corporate 
Practices

We believe in ethical practices, sustainable 
manufacturing processes, transparent reporting 
to the shareholders and in the best practices of 
Corporate Governance to ensure success and 
better results for all stakeholders.

The Board Charter defines the scope of the 
Board’s activities in setting the tone at the top, 
formulating strategies and providing oversight to 
the management for sustainable growth of the 
business.

The Board members actively participate in the 
meetings to provide guidance concerning the 
company’s business activities, operational plans, 
review corporate operations and formulate and 
review all significant policies. The Board firmly 
adheres to the best ethical practices and fully 
recognizes its responsibilities for protection and 
efficient utilization of company assets for 
legitimate business objectives and compliance 
with laws and regulations. The Chairman 
ensures that the discussions held during the 
/���$� ���
�
��� �
$� 
'�� ��
��?��

� $������
��
arising are duly recorded and circulated to all the 
$����
����5�
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�����
��
�_]@`�$�����K'���:���
$�
the Company Secretary attended all the 
���
�
������
'��/���$������?����$����
'����$�����
Corporate Governance.
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All periodic financial statements and other 
working papers for the consideration of the 
Board/ committees are circulated to the directors 
well before the meetings so as to give sufficient 
time to the directors to make decisions on an 
informed basis. This year the Board has held 
seven (7) meetings, agendas of which were duly 
circulated at least a week before the meetings. 

Timely Communication of Financial Results

K'�� ?���
����� �
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�$� ��
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��
(reviewed by the Auditors) were duly circulated 
within thirty (30) days and sixty (60) days 
respectively along with the Directors’ Report. 
Annual financial statements, including 
consolidated financial statements, Board of 
Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and other 
statutory statements and information are being 
circulated for consideration and approval by the 
�'���'��$����5�
'�
����
�!��-��_@H`�$���������
'��
close of the financial year. Additionally, all 
important disclosures, including the financial 
statement, were also made on the Company’s 
website to keep the stakeholders duly informed.

Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has formulated a policy to 
evaluate its own performance, the salient 
���
��������5'��'�������������5��

1. The Board Evaluation Methodology to be 
�$��
�$��������!�-����
��
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5'����
'����'��
������$�?���
��

�����

2. The evaluation exercise is to be carried out 
every year.

3. The evaluation system is designed to 
address areas of critical importance and 
should include, but not be limited to, the 
�����5�
��

 a) Appraising the basic organization of the 
Board of Directors;

 b) The effectiveness and efficiency of the 
operation of the Board and its sub 
committees;

 c) Assess the Board’s overall scope of 
responsibilities;

 d) Evaluate the flow of information; and

 e) Validate the support and information 
provided by management.

4. The Board would review the results and 
suggest measures to improve the areas 
identified for improvement.

K'�� /���$� ��� ��
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many years and has identified areas for further 
improvement in line with global best practices. The 
main focus remained on strategic growth, business 
opportunities, risk management, Board composition 
and providing oversight to the management.

Risk Management

Risk management is crucial to any business, 
which includes identification and assessment of 
various risks followed by coordinated application 
of resources, to economically minimize, monitor 
and control the impact of such risks and 
maximize the realization of opportunities. 
Management periodically reviews major financial 
and operating risks faced by the business.

:��� ����� $�
����� �
� ����� +� �����
�
�
��
management, please refer to the Directors 
Report on Page No. 33.

Internal Control Framework

The Company maintains an established control 
framework comprising clear structures, authority 
limits, and accountabilities, well understood 
policies and procedures and budgeting for 
review processes. All policies and control 
procedures are documented in manuals. The 
Board establishes corporate strategy and the 
Company’s business objectives.

The Board Audit Committee has been entrusted 
with the main responsibility of Internal Controls. 
The Audit Committee receives the Audit reports 
by the Internal and External auditors, and after 
detailed deliberations, and suggesting 
improvements, periodic reports are submitted to 
the Board of Directors. The Company places a 
high value on transparency, both internally and 
externally, in its corporate management. It 
focuses consistently on the implementation of 
efficient management practices for the purpose 
�����'��-�
���������
$�?��

�������������
��

���
The Company has a Chartered Accountant 
���
�$����%��$���� #

��
���<�$�
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��
assisted by in house executives to carry out the 
Internal Control functions.
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The Management has placed an explicit internal 
control framework with clear structures, authority 
limits, and accountabilities, well defined policies 
and detailed procedures, enabling the Audit 
Committee and the Board to have clear 
understanding of risk areas and to place effective 
controls to mitigate these risks.

Risk and Opportunity

Pakistan’s per capita steel consumption is still 
way low as per world standards, hence there is a 
potential for growth in domestic market as well as 
regional markets. During the year the Board 
focused on future business strategy to assess 
the opportunities and evaluated all significant 
risks attached with the business proposals and 
decided to move towards its Vision of being the 
����������
����
��������:��
�	
�������$��
���
�
Pakistan. In continuation of its strategy, the 
Company commenced addition of manufacturing 
facilities by addition of Cold Rolling Mill, a 
pickling line and related facilities at a cost of 
Rs.5.6 billion. On implementation of this 
expansion, the Cold Rolling Capacity will be 
enhanced to 1,000,000 tons per annum. After the 
expansion the Country will have a capacity 
sufficient to meet most of the Domestic demand 
of Cold Rolled and Galvanized Sheets and Coils.

K'�� �
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�
significant risk factors for any manufacturing 
industry based on imported raw material. The 
management is however mitigating the challenge 
by trying to buy raw material at the right time and 
price, keeping other costs low and improving 
operating efficiencies and efficacies. The 
Company anticipates growth in domestic market in 
�J]F!][�� K'�� �����
�� �>���
�� �
������� �
�
demand as a result of opportunities emerging from 
The China Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC).

Disclosure of Conflict of Interest

The Company has taken measures to prevent 
conflict of interests between directors, 
employees and the Company. In this regard, a 
clear policy on conflict of interests is contained in 
the Code of Conduct duly approved by the Board 
of Directors which is placed on Page No. 24.

As per the Code of Corporate Governance, the 
Company annually circulates and obtains a 
signed copy of code of conduct from all 
���������� �
$� $����
����� :��
'��*� 
'�� $����
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and key employees are reminded of insider 
trading and avoiding dealing in shares during 
closed period. 
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�
of the board complete details regarding any 
material transaction which has a conflict of 
interest for prior approval of the Board. The 
interested directors neither participate in 
discussions nor vote on such matters.

The complete details of all transaction with related 
parties are provided to the Board for approval. 
These transactions are also fully disclosed in the 
annual financial statement of the company.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company has implemented comprehensive 
��������� �
� �������
��
��� %���
'*� 	���
�� +�
Environment” and “Donations, Charities and 
Contributions” to meet its Corporate Social 
Responsibilities.

The social and environmental responsibility 
reflects the company’s recognition that there is 
as strong positive correlation between financial 
performance and corporate, social and 
environmental responsibility. Social and 
�
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��
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1. Community investment and welfare 
schemes.

2. Environmental protection measures.
3. Occupational health and safety.
@�� /���
�����
'�����
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�

measures.
5. Energy conservation.
6. Industrial relations.
7. National cause donations.
F�� ��

����
��
�
��
�
��
����>�'�?����
9. Consumer protection measures.

Our role as a corporate citizen is as important to 
us as satisfaction of our customers and earning a 
fair return for our shareholders. We are 
committed to work for the betterment and 
prosperity of our stakeholders. Management has 
endeavored to provide a safe and healthy work 
atmosphere by adopting practices and creating 
working conditions which are safe and healthy 
for our employees, vendors, contractors, 
suppliers and customers.

We are committed to providing better 
educational and health facilities to the less 
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fortunate people especially to our stakeholders. 
In line with our philosophy of CSR we regularly 
���

��
��
$�������
�K�:���'������<����	��
�
�
Chinoy Campus in the vicinity of Landhi along 
with offering need based scholarships to NED 
University students for a better tomorrow of our 
younger generation. We also support NGOs like 
SIUT, LRBT, Kidney Center and Amir Sultan 
�'�
���:��
$�
��
�
��'����
'��$����-�
����
��

��
for their treatment.

Sustainability Measures

All aspects of sustainability including efficient 
operational procedures, effective internal 
controls, ethical behavior, and energy 
conservation are an integral part of our business 
model.

We also believe that employees are most critical 
in the progress, growth and sustainability of any
organization.

:��� ����� $�
����*� ������� ������ 
�� ���� ������
Sustainability report which has been circulated 
and is available on our website (www.isl.com.pk)

Engaging Stakeholders & Transparency

Development of stakeholders’ relationship is of 
significant importance for the company. Building
“stakeholder’s engagement”, compliance with 
������
���� ��?������

�� �
$� 
����� �
$�
conditions are one of the main business 
principles by which we abide.

To bring an accurate understanding of the 
company’s management policies and business 
activities to all its stakeholders, it strives to make 
full disclosure of all material information to all 
stakeholders by various announcements on its 
website, to the Stock Exchange and other 
sources available to help investors to make 
informed decisions. It encourages full 
participation of the members in the General 
Meetings by sending corporate results and 
sufficient information following the prescribed 
timeline so as to enable the shareholders to 
participate on an informed basis. While 
increasing management transparency, it aims to 
strengthen its relationships and trust with 
shareholders and investors.

Our stakeholders include but are not limited to 
customers, employees, government, shareholders, 
suppliers, local communities and bankers.

Policy for Investor Grievances

The Company has an “Investor Relation Policy” 
that sets out the principles in providing the 
shareholders and prospective investors with 
necessary information to make well informed 
investment decisions and to ensure a level 
playing field.

Investor grievances and complaints are very 
important and are properly reviewed to minimize 
the recurrence of similar issues in future. The 
following principles are adhered to with regards 

���
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�������-�
����

1. Investors are treated fairly at all times.

2. Complaints raised are dealt with in a 
courteous and timely manner.

3. Various mode

4. Queries and complaints are treated fairly and 
efficiently.

5. Employees work in good faith and without 
prejudice towards the interest of the 
creditors.

Detailed company information regarding 
financial highlights, investor information, and 
�
'��� ��?����
�� �
�����
��
� ��������$� �
$��� 
'��
relevant regulations has been placed on the 
corporate website of the company which is 
updated on regular basis.

Safety of Company Records

International Steels Limited has a firm 
“Document & Record Control Policy” for 
establishing, approving, reviewing, changing, 
maintaining, replacing, retrieving, retaining, 
distributing and administering control of all 
documents and data that relate to the Company 
and has taken the following concrete measures 
to ensure safety/security of the records and 
creating a paperless environment.

�� <��� �����
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and proceedings of the Board & its 
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 statutory certificates, title documents of the 
Company property and all other important 
communications and records are digitally 
scanned and archived on secured Company 
servers.
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at a neutral, secured and well known vault.

�� �����$������
����������

�
��������������
��
arranged at a seprate location.

Human Resources Management Policies and 
Succession Planning

A comprehensive set of policies has been well 
�������

�$�
����-������������
������
�$�
��%���
The main focus of the policies is to train, 
motivate and retain valuable human assets for 
the future growth of the Company. In order to 
maintain continuity of the business operations, 
particularly at senior management and key 
��
�������� ��-���*� �� 5���!$���
�$� 	��������
�
Policy is in practice.

Group Information Technology Policy

<� 5���!$���
�$� ������ #
�����
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� K��'
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Policy is place to help achieve efficient and 
effective use of I.T resources for the Group 
companies so as to establish priorities, strategy 
delivery, increase productivity and deliver right 
services to users.

The I.T Steering Committee comprising of CEO, 
�:���
$�%�;�#K����������
����������
���
�������
#�K�$������
���K'��������#�K�%��$���������
������
for ensuring communication of I.T security 
policies to all users of Group Companies. 
:��
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��� <�$�
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monitoring compliance of I.T policies.

The Policy on Information Technology is focused 
upon information security, human resource 
security, access control, information system 
��?����
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� $�-������

� �
$� ���
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business continuity management, incident 
management, website and ERP.

Whistleblowing Policy

We are committed to creating an atmosphere in 
which our people can freely communicate their 
��
���
�� 
�� 
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any corrupt or unethical behavior – if employees 
feel that they are not able to use the normal 
management routes.

Policy of security clearance of Foreign 
Directors

�����
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Company has in place various protocols and 
procedures to ensure the safety and security of 
�
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��:�����
�;����
����

Issues Raised at Last AGM

While general clarifications were sought by 
shareholders on company published financial 
statements during the 10th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company held on 26th September, 
2017, no significant issues were raised.

Dividend to Shareholders

During the year, the Company paid an interim 
dividend of 15%  per share to all eligible 
shareholders and the Board of Directors is 
recommending a final dividend of 30% per share, 
making a total of  45% in respect of the financial 
������
$�$�XJ
'���
�*��J]F�5'��'����������
�
��
shareholder approval.

Pattern of Shareholding

A statement on the pattern of shareholding along 
with categories of shareholders, where 
$���������� ��� ��?����$� �
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framework and the statement of shares held by 
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2018 is placed on Page No. 128.
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FORMAL REPORTING LINE

The current organization/structure of the Company consists of various 
departments/divisions, each of which is led by a divisional head. These 
divisional heads are responsible for the reforms of their respective divisions 
and the Board can then have access to them.

EMPLOYEES

Employees are encouraged to express their views and forward their 
suggestions. We follow an open door policy and employees are free to send 
emails, phone or even talk directly to the CEO. The employees can give 
suggestions, grievances and concerns or raise any matter related to the 
Company. In case the matter is of significant nature, the same is addressed 
in the meetings of the Managing Committee, the Board of Directors or the 
relevant Board committee.

The Company also has a Whistle Blowing Policy to enable employees to 
raise serious concerns to the Management regarding the business or 
Company without fear and repercussions.

The CEO also meets the entire Managing Committee at least once every 
?���
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concerns and suggestions directly to the CEO. These meeting are aimed at 
capturing free and first hand suggestions.

SHAREHOLDERS

Every year the Annual General Meeting of shareholders is held in 
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management of the Company. The interactive session with the 
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economic, social and other issues and also give suggestions and 
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The Company has also provided contact details of all relevant personals for 
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Mechanism for Providing
Information
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The Board is assisted by four Committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee, Strategic Planning Committee and Treasury Committee to support its decision 
making in their respective domains.

a. Board Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of the following:

 Mr. Tariq Iqbal Khan Chairman - Independent Director
 Mr. Towfiq H. Chinoy Member - Executive Director / Advisor
 Mr. Kamal A. Chinoy Member - Non-Executive Director
 Mr. Kamran Y. Mirza Member - Independent Director
 Ms. Asema Tapal Secretary - Chief Internal Auditor

The Audit Committee comprises of four (4) 
Directors, out of which two (2) are independent. 
The Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Internal 
Auditor attend the BAC meetings, while the Chief 
Executive Officer is invited to attend the meetings. 
The Audit Committee also separately meets the 
internal and external auditors at least once in a year 
without the presence of the management.

Meetings of the Audit Committee are held at least 
once every quarter, the recommendations of the 
Audit Committee are then submitted for approval of 
financial results of the company by the Board. During 
the year 2017-18, the Audit Committee held four (4) 
meetings. The Chief Internal Auditor is the Secretary 
of the Board Audit Committee. The minutes of the 
meetings of the Audit Committee are provided to all 
members, directors and the Chief Financial Officer. 
The Chief Internal Auditor meets the Audit Committee 
without the presence of the management, at least 
once a year, to point out various risks, their intensity 
and suggestions for mitigating risks and 
improvement areas. The business risks identified are 
then referred to the respective departments and 
corrective actions are then implemented.

Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for 
reviewing the financial statements, ensuring proper 
internal controls to align operations in accordance 
with the mission, vision and business plans and 
monitoring compliance with all applicable laws and 
regulations and accounting and financial reporting 
standards. The salient features of terms of 
reference of the Audit Committee are as follows:

 i)  Recommending to the Board the 
appointment of internal and external 
auditors.

 ii)  Consideration of questions regarding 
resignation or removal of external 
auditors, audit fees and provision by the 
external auditors of any services to the 
company in addition to the audit of 
financial statements.

 iii)  Determination of appropriate measures 
to safeguard the company’s assets.

 iv)  Review of preliminary announcements 
of results prior to publication.

 v)  Review of quarterly, half-yearly and 
annual financial statements of the 
company, prior to their approval by the 
Board, focusing on major judgmental 
areas, significant adjustments resulting 
from the audit, any changes in 
accounting policies and practices, 
compliance with applicable accounting 
standards and compliance with listing 
regulations and other statutory and 
regulatory requirements.

 vi) Facilitating the external audit and 
discussion with external auditors on 
major observations arising from audit 
and any matter that the auditors may 
wish to highlight (without the presence 
of the management, where necessary).

 vii)  Review of the Management Letter 
issued by external auditors and the 
management’s response thereto.

Board Committees
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 viii) Ensuring coordination between the 
internal and external auditors of the 
company.

 ix)  Review of the scope and extent of 
internal audit and ensuring that the 
internal audit function is adequately 
resourced and placed within the 
organization.

 x)  Consideration of major findings of 
internal investigations and the 
management’s response thereto.

 xi)  Ascertaining that the internal control 
system including financial and 
operational controls, accounting system 
and reporting structure are adequate 
and effective.

 xii)  Review of company’s statement on 
internal control systems prior to 
endorsement by the Board.

 xiii)  Instituting special projects, value for 
money studies or other investigations 
on any matter specified by the Board, in 
consultation with the Chief Executive 
and to consider remittance of any 
matter to the external auditors or to any 
other external body.

 xiv)  Determination of compliance with 
relevant statutory requirements review 
of periodic financial statements and 
preliminary announcements of results 
prior to the external communication and 
publication with a view to highlight.

 xv)  Monitoring compliance together with the 
external auditors and internal audit with 
the best practices of corporate 
governance and identification of 
significant violations such as fraud, 
corruption, and abuse of power thereof.

 xvi)  Consideration of any other issue or 
matter as may be assigned by the 
Board.

 xvii). The Board Audit Committee has 
completed its independent evaluation.

b. Human Resources & Remuneration Committee

�� Mr. Kamran Y. Mirza   
Chairman- Independent Director

� Mr. Kemal Shoaib
 Member- Independent Director

� Mr. Towfiq. H. Chinoy
 Member - Executive Director / Advisor

� Mr. Kamal A. Chinoy
 Member – Non-Executive Director

� Syed Hyder Ali
 Member - Non-Executive Director

� Mr. Yousuf H. Mirza
 Member – Chief Executive Officer

� Mr. Bilal Khawar
 Secretary – General Manager HR

The Committee comprises of six (6) members. The 
Chairman is an independent director. Meetings are 
conducted at least quarterly or at such other 
frequency as the Chairman may determine. Head 
of Human Resources, is the Secretary of the 
Committee. The Committee held four (4) meetings 
during the year.

Terms of Reference of Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee

The Committee defines the HR policy framework 
and makes recommendations to the Board in the
evaluation and approval of employee benefit plans 
and succession planning.

The Committee defines the HR policy framework 
and makes recommendations to the Board in the 
evaluation and approval of employee benefit plans 
and succession planning.

The salient features of the Terms of Reference of 
HR&RC are as follows:

1. Major HR Policy / frameworks including 
compensation.

2.  Overall organizational structure.

3. Organization model and periodically seek 
assessment of the same.

4. Succession planning for key executives, 
including the CEO.
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5.  Recruitment, remuneration and evaluation of 

'�������
$�'���$����
������
�*��
���$�
���:�*�
Group Chief Internal Auditor and the Group 
�����
��	����
����+�%��$����~�����

Z��� K'�����*����
��������������
'��%�+����'����
not be a part of Committee meetings, if his / her 
compensation/ performance is being discussed 
/evaluated.

7.  Charter of demands and negotiated 
settlements with CBA.

F��� �����
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����
'��
�
!�>���
�-��$����
����

9.   Board Remuneration Policy & Procedure

10. Board Evaluation Policy and Procedure for the 
Board as a Whole and for the Individual 
Directors. 

c. Strategic Planning Committee
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�� �������	
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�� ��������
��������
���
� ������!�Executive Director / Advisor

�� ���������������
�
�
 Member– Chief Executive Officer

�� �����
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� �������!�=�
!�>���
�-��;����
��

The Committee comprises of four (4) members. 
The Chairman is an independent director. Meetings 
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strategic guideline is discussed in the Board 
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d. Treasury Committee
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�� ��������
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���
� �������!�Executive Director / Advisor

�� ���������������
�
�
 Member – Chief Executive Officer

The Committee comprises of three (3) members. 
The Chairman is an independent director. Meetings 
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The objective of the Committee is to set treasury 
related policies within the overall policy framework 
established by the Board. The formation of 
Treasury committee does not impair or limit the 
management of day to day treasury operations and 
routine activities. Any deviation arising due to 
special circumstances or financial market behavior 
�'������������$��
������?��

������
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for ratification. The Committee shall aim to meet 
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'��
Committee members shall meet at least two times 
each financial year and also at other times as the 
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� ��� 
'�� �����
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 (a) Will present to the Board, on at least on 
annual basis, the Treasury Policy 
Statements (the “Policy”), for approval.

 (b) The Committee shall review, supervise and 
oversee of Treasury activities in 
implementing the policies approved by the 
Board or the Committee.

 (c) The Committee shall review, supervise, 
consider and as appropriate approve, or 
where it considers appropriate, propose to 
the Board for the Board’s approval, 
revisions to the planned strategies, in 
����
��
�
���

��������

  1. Treasury’s role and objectives
  2. Treasury Policies
   2.1 Borrowing Policy
   2.2 Investment Policy
� � X�� �������
��:�
$�
�
� � @�� ���'���
�����

�+�~�?��$�
�
� � � @�]� ~�?��$�
���
$����'�:������
�
   4.2 Cash Management
   4.3 Counterparty Risk
  5. Currency/ Commodity Transaction 

Risk
� � Z�� :�����
��>�'�
�������
  7. Interest Rate Risk
  8. Relationship with banks and allocation 

of business
� � [�� K��������#

��
�����

�����!��-����
��
�

and risk mitigation strategies

The Meetings of this Committee take place as and 
when the Board desires a focused strategic 
oversight.
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Management Team

Good corporate governance is the basis of our decision making and control processes. The management’s 
decision making is based on long term strategic objectives in which the Board, provides strategic oversight 
and guidance to the management and monitors the performance of the company regarding business 
objectives, shareholders’ interests and regulatory compliance.
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DIRECTORS’ PARTCIPATION IN BOARD AND SUB-COMMITTEE MEETINGS

���
�
���'��$�$���
��
'��:���J]\!]F� \� @� @� ]� ]

Mr. Kemal Shoaib 7/7  4/4  

����K�5��?�%���'�
��� \|\� @|@� @|@� ]|]� ]|]

�����������%�������� \|\� � @|@� ]|]� ]|]

Mr. Kamal A. Chinoy 4/7 2/4 1/4  

����K���?�#?����^'�
� Z|\� @|@� � �

Syed Salim Raza 7/7   1/1 1/1

����^����
���������� \|\� @|@� !�¢� � �

	��$�%�$���<��� �|\� � �|@� �

Mr. Riyaz T. Chinoy 6/7    1/1

Mr. Samir M. Chinoy 7/7    

Mr. Kazuteru Mihara 4/7    

Board /Sub Committee Board
Meeting

Audit
Committee
Meetings

Human
Resource &

Remuneration
Committee

Treasury
Committee

Strategic
Planning

Committee
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Financial Calendar 
RESULTS  
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DIVIDEND

#
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  Entitlement date 14th March 2018
  Statutory limit upto which payable 3rd April 2018
  Paid on  2nd April 2018
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  Entitlement date  16th September 2017
  Statutory limit upto which payable 25th October 2017
  Paid on  18th October 2017
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TENTATIVE DATES OF FINANCIAL RESULTS 2018-19
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Dividend Payment
The Board of Directors of the company has recommended 30% final dividend for the year as per the Profit 
Appropriation Policy. The proposal shall be placed before the shareholders of the company in the Annual 
General Meeting for their consideration and approval on 25th September 2018. The dividend warrants, if 
approved by the shareholders, shall be directly credited to their designated banks to the shareholders listed 
in the company’s share register at the close of business on 12th September, 2018 and shall be subject to the 
Zakat and Tax deductions as per law.
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The Board Audit Committee has concluded its annual 
review of the conduct and operations of the company for 

'��������
$�$�XJ
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��
material departure, with both the mandatory and 
voluntary provisions of the listing regulations of the 
Pakistan Stock Exchange, Code of Corporate 
Governance, Company’s Code of Conduct and 
Values and the international best practices of 
governance throughout the year.

�� K'�� �����
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�
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� ���
Compliance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance” which has also been reviewed and 
certified by the auditors of the company.
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consistently applied except those disclosed in 
financial statements. Applicable accounting 
standards were followed in preparation of the 
financial statements of the company on a going 
��
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2018, which present fairly the state of affairs, results 
of operations, profits, cash flows and changes in 
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Officer have reviewed the financial statements of the 
company and the Chairman & Board of Directors 
Report. They acknowledge their responsibility for 
true and fair presentation of the financial statements, 
accuracy of reporting, compliance with regulations 
and applicable accounting standards and 
establishment and maintenance of internal controls 
and systems of the company.
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accounting records have been maintained by the 
company in accordance with the Companies Act 
2017.
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Companies Act, 2017 and applicable International 
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Reporting Standards notified by the SECP.
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'��
company’s shares by Directors and executives or 
their spouses were notified in writing to the Company 
Secretary along with the price, number of shares, 
form of share certificates and nature of transaction. 
All such transactions have been disclosed.

 INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

�� K'�� �
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���� �����5���� 5��� �����
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implemented through outsourcing the internal audit 
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�
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�� �|�� ��� :��$� �'�$��*� �'��
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Accountants, for the last many years. Presently the 
Company’s internal Audit function is being looked 
after by the Chief Internal Auditor in compliance of 

the Code of Corporate Governance, who is assisted 
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directly to the Chairman of the Board Audit 
Committee.
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design and has been continually evaluated for 
effectiveness and control.
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'��
achievement of operational, compliance and 
financial reporting objectives, safeguarding of the 
assets of the company and the shareholders wealth 
through effective financial, operational and 
compliance controls and risk management at all 
levels within the company.
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auditors was facilitated to ensure efficiency and 
contribution to the company’s objectives, including a 
reliable financial reporting system and compliance 
with laws and regulations.

 EXTERNAL AUDITORS

�� K'�� �
�
�
���� ��$�
���� ��� 
'�� �����
�*� ^����
K������ %�$�� +� ���*� �'��
���$� <����

�

�*� '�-��
completed their audit of the company’s financial 
statements and the Statement of Compliance with 
the Code of Corporate Governance for the financial 
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conclusion of the 11th Annual General Meeting.
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submitted within 45 days of the date of the Auditors’ 
Report on the financial statements under the listing 
regulations and shall therefore accordingly be 
discussed in the next Board Audit Committee 
meeting.
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under the Quality Control Review Programme of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
(ICAP) and the firm is fully compliant with the 
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Guidelines on Code of Ethics, as adopted by ICAP. 
The auditors have indicated their willingness to 
continue as auditors.
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regulations, the Board Audit Committee 
recommends their reappointment for the financial 
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remuneration negotiated by the Chief Executive 
Officer.

Tariq Iqbal Khan
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Karachi  
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Report of the Board Audit Committee on
Adherence to the Code of Corporate Governance

ANNUAL
REPORT 2018 61



3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them 
is serving as a director on more than five listed 
companies, including this company (excluding 
the listed subsidiaries of listed holding 
companies where applicable), with the 
�>���
��
�����
��;����
���5'��'�-�������?��

�
to year end voluntary resigned from the Board.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct 
and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been taken to disseminate it throughout the 
company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures. 

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission 
statement, overall corporate strategy and 
significant policies of the company. A complete 
record of particulars of significant policies along 
with the dates on which they were approved or 
amended has been maintained. 

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly 
exercised and decisions on relevant matters 
have been taken by board/ shareholders as 
empowered by the relevant provisions of the 
Act and these Regulations. 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over 
by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a 

director elected by the board for this purpose. 
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of Act and the Regulations with respect to 
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meeting of board. 

8. The Board of Directors have a formal policy 
and transparent procedures for remuneration of 
directors in accordance with the Act and these 
Regulations. 

9. The Board of Directors of the Company consist 
of 11 eminent directors, out of which eight (8) 
directors are already certified under the 
Directors Training Program, Therefore,  the 
Company is compliant with Regulation 20 of the 
Code of Corporate Governance, 2017.
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statements before approval of the board. 

12. The Board has formed committees comprising 
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Statement of Compliance
with Listed Companies (Code Of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

International Steels Limited
Year Ending 30th June, 2018
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   Mr. Kamran Y. Mirza

   Syed Salim Raza
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!�>���
�-��;����
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   Mr. Kamal A. Chinoy

� � � 	��$�%�$���<����

   Mr. Riyaz T. Chinoy 

   Mr. Kazuteru Mihara

� �>���
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� � � �����������%�������

   Mr. Samir M. Chinoy 

Category Names
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 a) Board Audit Committee 

� � ]�� ����K���?�#?����^'�
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      Independent Director

� � ��� ����^����
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      Independent Director  
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           Executive Director / Advisor

 b) Human Resource and Remuneration 
Committee 
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   Independent Director
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   Executive Director / Advisor
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���!�������
� � � =�
�!��>���
�-��;����
��

� � H�� 	��$�%�$���<���!�������
� � � =�
�!��>���
�-��;����
��

� � Z�� �����������%��������!�������
   Chief Executive Officer

 c) Strategic Planning Committee

� � ]�� 	��$�	����������!��'�����

   Independent Director

� � ��� ����K�5��?�%���'�
���!�������
   Executive Director / Advisor

� � X�� �����������%��������!�������
   Chief Executive Officer

� � @�� ����������K���'�
���!�������
� � � =�
!�>���
�-��;����
���

 c) Treasury Committee 

� � ]�� 	��$�	����������!��'�����

     Independent Director

� � ��� ����K�5��?�%���'�
���!�������
   Executive Director / Advisor

� � X�� �����������%��������!�������
   Chief Executive Officer

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid 
committees have been formed, documented 
and advised to the committee for compliance. 

]@�� K'�� ���?��
��� ��� ���
�
��� _?���
����|'����
yearly/ yearly) of the committee may be 
referred at Page No. 59. 

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit 
��
�
��
� �����-���$� ��� �� ?�������$� �'��
���$�
Accountant, who is being assisted by in house 
executives to carry out the Internal Control 
��
�
��
���K'��%��$����#

��
���<�$�
�������
�����
?�������$��
$��>�����
��$�����
'�����������
$�
is conversant with the policies and procedures 
of the company. 

16. The statutory auditors of the company have 
confirmed that they have been given a 
��
�����
���� ��
�
�� �
$��� 
'�� ?����
�� ��

����
review program of the ICAP and registered with 
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or 
any of the partners of the firm, their spouses 
and minor children do not hold shares of the 
company and that the firm and all its partners 
�����
��������
���5�
'�#

��
�
��
���:�$���
��
�
���<����

�

�� _#:<�`� ���$���
��� �
� ��$�� ���
ethics as adopted by the ICAP. 

17. The statutory auditors or the persons 
associated with them have not been appointed 
to provide other services except in accordance 
with the Act, these regulations or any other 
������
���� ��?������

� �
$� 
'�� ��$�
���� '�-��
��
�����$� 
'�
� 
'��� '�-�� �����-�$� #:<��
guidelines in this regard. 

18. The Company has continued to present the 
details of all related party transactions before 
the Audit Committee and upon their 
recommendation to the Board for review and 
approval. The definition of related party used is 
in accordance with repealed Companies 
Ordinance, 1984 and applicable financial 
reporting frame work as the regulations under 
Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 have 
not yet been announced.

q����
�����
'�
������
'�����?������

�����
'��
Regulations have been complied with.

� ����K���?�#?����^'�
� �����������%�������
��'�����
�!�/���$�<�$�
������

��� �'�����>���
�-���������
 International Steels Limited International Steels Limited
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Review Report on Statement of Compliance
contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017

INTERNATIONAL
STEELS LIMITED64

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017 (“the Regulations”) prepared by the Board of Directors of International Steels 
~���
�$�_�
'�������
��`�����
'��������
$�$�XJ���
���J]F��
������$�
���5�
'�
'����?������

�����������
��
�
40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s 
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any 

�
!�������
��� 5�
'� 
'�� ��?������

�� ��� 
'�� ������
��
���<� ��-��5� ��� ����
�$����������� 
�� �
?������� ��� 
'��
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the 
Regulations.

<�������
����������$�
����
'����
�
������
�
���

��5��������?����$�
����
��
��
��
$���
�
$�
�����
'�������

�
��
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not 
��?����$�
����
��$���5'�
'���
'��/���$����;����
������
�
���

��
��

��
�����

������-���������������
$���

�����
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance 
procedures and risks.

K'��������
��
����?�����
'�������
��
���������������
'��<�$�
������

��*��
$����
��������
$�
��
����
'��
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party 

��
���
��
���
$�������
������������
���5�
'�
'����?������

��������
��
��JF����
'�������
����<�
*��J]\��
q�������
�����?����$��
$�'�-���
����$��������
������
'�����?������

�
��
'���>
�

����
'�������-������
'��
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have 
not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related 
parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of 
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the 
��?������

����

��
�$��
�
'��������
��
����������������
��
'�������
������
'��������
$�$�XJ���
���J]F�

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Moneeza Usman Butt

Karachi 
15th August 2018
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Financial Highlights

Business Growth

20172018
%Rupees in ‘000

Sales  47,620,719   33,732,622  41.2%
Gross profit  7,573,055   5,906,117  28.2%
Operating profit  6,342,428   5,064,274  25.2%
Profit before tax  5,803,312   4,608,774  25.9%
Profit after tax  4,364,958   3,044,022  43.4%
Earning per share - Basic & Diluted  (Rupees)  10.03   7.00  43.3%
Shareholders equity  11,825,000   8,554,249  38.2%
Property, Plant & Equipment  18,262,610   13,639,451  33.9%
Book Value per share (Rupees)  27.18   19.66  38.3%

Shareholder Value Accretion
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25.92% Over 2017 67.4% CAGR over 6 years
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43.40% Over 2017 64.5% CAGR over 6 years
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�*����
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$��?�����

� �]F*�Z�*Z]J�� �]X*ZX[*@H]�� �]�*Z�J*J���� �]�*XX�*J@X�� �[*\\]*HJ[�� �[*[H�*�X@�

#

�
������<���
�� ��*HZH�� �X*[JX�� �!���� �HH]�� �X*F�]�� �F*JZ\�

Other non current assets  100   100   100   100   100   100 

Current assets  17,327,314   12,727,641   8,364,006   6,742,081   7,103,076   4,800,832 

Total assets  35,592,589   26,371,095   20,984,128   19,074,775   16,878,506   14,761,233 

	'���'��$������?��
�� �]]*F�H*JJF�� �F*HH@*�@\�� �\*]@�*Z�Z�� �H*H�[*[@��� �H*\Z[*\@J�� �H*JFJ*[\[�

Non current liabilities  8,476,513   5,101,271   4,880,217   6,132,696   3,381,168   3,597,048 

Current portion of long term financing  1,201,679   1,197,073   699,016   849,878   749,877   783,285 

Short term borrowings  8,462,310   5,039,236   3,523,755   4,069,462   4,876,307   4,121,378 

Other current liabilities  5,627,079   6,479,268   4,738,514   2,492,797   2,101,414   1,178,543 

Total equity and liabilities  35,592,589   26,371,095   20,984,128   19,074,775   16,878,506   14,761,092 
 

Vertical Analysis       

������
�*����

��
$��?�����

� �H]�X�� �H]�\�� �ZJ�]�� �Z@�\�� �H\�[�� �Z\�@�

#

�
������<���
�� �J�J�� �J�J�� �!���� �J�J�� �J�J�� �J�]�

Other non current assets  0.0   0.0   0.0   0.0   0.0   0.0 

Current assets  48.7   48.3   39.9   35.3   42.1   32.5 

Total assets  100.0   100.0   100.0   100.0   100.0   100.0 

	'���'��$������?��
�� �XX���� �X��@�� �X@�J�� ��[�J�� �X@���� �X@�@�

Non current liabilities  23.8   19.3   23.3   32.2   20.0   24.4 

Current portion of long term financing  3.4   4.5   3.3   4.5   4.4   5.3 

Short term borrowings  23.8   19.1   16.8   21.3   28.9   27.9 

Other current liabilities  15.8   24.6   22.6   13.1   12.5   8.0 

Total equity and liabilities  100.0   100.0   100.0   100.0   100.0   100.0 
 

Horizontal Analysis       

������
�*����

��
$��?�����

� �XX�[�� �F�]�� ���X�� ��Z���� �_]�F`� �]]�H�

#

�
������<���
�� �_X@�X`� �!���� �_]JJ�J`� �_FH�Z`� �_H��Z`� �_X[�[`

�
'���
�
������

�����
�� �!���� �!���� �!���� �!���� �!���� �!���

Current assets  36.1   52.2   24.1   (5.1)  48.0   (30.3)

Total assets  35.0   25.7   10.0   13.0   14.3   (6.8)

	'���'��$������?��
�� �XF���� �][�F�� ��[���� �_@��`� �]X�Z�� ����H�

Non current liabilities  66.2   4.5   (20.4)  81.4   (6.0)  (8.2)

Current portion of long term financing  0.4   71.3   (17.8)  13.3   (4.3)  22.6 

Short term borrowings  67.9   43.0   (13.4)  (16.5)  18.3   (36.1)

Other current liabilities  (13.2)  36.7   90.1   18.6   78.3   73.5 

Total equity and liabilities  35.0   25.7   10.0   13.0   14.3   (6.8)

Analysis of Financial Statements
Statement of Financial Position

20172018 2016 2015 2014 2013
Rupees in ‘000

Percentage

Percentage
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20172018 2016 2015 2014 2013
Rupees in ‘000
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	�����!�=�
� �@\*Z�J*\][�� �XX*\X�*Z���� ��J*@[�*J[\�� �]\*[XF*J\\�� ��]*�[]*]]H�� �]\*ZJ�*Z\J�

Cost of sales  (40,047,664)  (27,826,505)  (17,585,833)  (16,452,775)  (19,043,439)  (15,997,025)

Gross profit  7,573,055   5,906,117   2,906,264   1,485,302   2,247,676   1,605,645 

Administrative, Selling and Distribution expenses  (719,689)  (548,670)  (368,341)  (335,729)  (277,628)  (196,943)

Other operating expenses  (661,595)  (424,951)  (264,675)  (22,119)  (186,177)  (43,546)

Other operating income  150,657   131,778   112,773   136,368   71,825   68,970 

Operating Profit before finance costs  6,342,428   5,064,274   2,386,021   1,263,822   1,855,696   1,434,126 

:�
�
������
�� �_HX[*]]Z`� �_@HH*HJJ`� �_\X]*H�H`� �_]*J�F*�\\`� �_[F]*HXJ`� �_[[�*Z[H`

Profit before taxation  5,803,312   4,608,774   1,654,496   235,545   874,166   441,431 

Taxation  (1,438,354)  (1,564,752)  (575,532)  (33,765)  (184,431)  (78,865)

Profit after taxation  4,364,958   3,044,022   1,078,964   201,780   689,735   362,566  

Vertical Analysis       

	�����!�=�
� �]JJ�J�� �]JJ�J�� �]JJ�J�� �]JJ�J�� �]JJ�J�� �]JJ�J�

Cost of sales  (84.1)  (82.5)  (85.8)  (91.7)  (89.4)  (90.9)

Gross profit  15.9   17.5   14.2   8.3   10.6   9.1 

Administrative, Selling and Distribution expenses  (1.5)  (1.6)  (1.8)  (1.9)  (1.3)  (1.1)

Other operating expenses  (1.4)  (1.3)  (1.3)  (0.1)  (0.9)  (0.2)

Other operating income  0.3   0.4   0.6   0.8   0.3   0.4 

Operating Profit before finance costs  13.3   15.0   11.6   7.0   8.7   8.1 

:�
�
������
�� �_]�]`� �_]�@`� �_X�Z`� �_H�\`� �_@�Z`� �_H�Z`

Profit before taxation  12.2   13.7   8.1   1.3   4.1   2.5 

Taxation  (3.0)  (4.6)  (2.8)  (0.2)  (0.9)  (0.4)

Profit after taxation  9.2   9.0   5.3   1.1   3.2   2.1  

Horizontal Analysis       

	�����!�=�
� �@]���� �Z@�Z�� �]@���� �_]H�\`� ��]�J�� �X��[�

Cost of sales  43.9   58.2   6.9   (13.6)  19.0   32.8 

Gross profit  28.2   103.2   95.7   (33.9)  40.0   33.1 

Administrative, Selling and Distribution expenses  31.2   49.0   9.7   20.9   41.0   31.1 

Other operating expenses  55.7   60.6   1,096.6   (88.1)  327.5   (59.1)

Other operating income  14.3   16.9   (17.3)  89.9   4.1   (30.4)

Operating Profit before finance costs  25.2   112.2   88.8   (31.9)  29.4   36.8 

:�
�
������
�� �]F�@�� �_X\�\`� �_�F�[`� �@�F�� �_]�]`� �_]H�]`

Profit before taxation  25.9   178.6   602.4   (73.1)  98.0   (466.4)

Taxation  (8.1)  171.9   1,604.5   (81.7)  133.9   (592.3)

Profit after taxation  43.4   182.1   434.7   (70.7)  90.2   (447.1)

Analysis of Financial Statements
Profit & Loss Account

Percentage

Percentage



20172018 2016 2015 2014 2013
Rupees in ‘000
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Analysis of Financial Statements
Statement of Cash Flows

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities  293,548   1,568,756   2,871,600   1,498,302   6,867   3,448,979 

Net cash outflows from investing activities  (5,470,778)  (1,787,168)  (479,346)  (3,095,455)  (334,652)  (782,285)

Net cash (outflows)/inflows from financing activities  2,479,575   505,738   (5,038,790)  2,521,336   1,997,272   (775,311)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (2,697,655)  287,326   (2,646,536)  924,183   1,669,487   1,891,383 

 

Vertical Analysis       

Net cash generated from operating activities  10.9   546.0   108.5   162.1   0.4   182.4 

Net cash outflows from investing activities  (202.8)  (622.0)  (18.1)  (334.9)  (20.0)  (41.4)

Net cash (outflows)/inflows from financing activities  91.9   176.0   (190.4)  272.8   119.6   (41.0)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (100.0)  100.0   (100.0)  100.0   100.0   100.0 

Horizontal Analysis       

Net cash generated from operating activities  (81.3)  (45.4)  91.7   21,718.9   (99.8)  422.6 

Net cash outflows from investing activities  (206.1)  (272.8)  84.5   (825.0)  57.2   (67.9)

Net cash (outflows)/inflows from financing activities  390.3   110.0   (299.8)  26.2   357.6   (585.7)

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (1,038.9)  110.9   (386.4)  (44.6)  (11.7)  214.8 
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Analysis of Statement of Financial
Position and Profit & Loss Account
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Key Financial Indicators

Conversion
Cost

2017

Salaries, wages and benefits 402  541

Electricity, gas and water 976  1,076

Depreciation and amortisation  711 762

Stores and spares consumed  87 118

Repairs and maintenance 81  98

Others 391  133

 746,2 latoT 2,727

2018
Rs in Million

2017
Rs in Million

2018

Product Wise
Sales Break Up 

Galvanized Coils 20,928 29,400

Cold rolled Coils 11,758 15,854 

Colored Coils 786 1,769 

Bi-Products 261 598

TOTAL 33,733 47,621  

2018
Rs in Million

2017
Rs in Million

20182017



Key Financial Indicators
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Raw material 
purchases
(in tons)

 Tons 501,482   510,410   398,266

2016

2018 2017 2016

2017 2018

Production
(in tons)

 Tons  470,841  464,023  370,811

2018 2017 2016

Rs in Million

Net sales / 
gross profit

Net sales    47,621   33,733   20,492 

Gross profit  7,573   5,906   2,906 

2016 2017 2018

2018 2017 2016

2016 2017 2018
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KEY INDICATORS

Profitability Ratios
Gross profit ratio %  15.90   17.51   14.18   8.28   10.56   9.12 
Profit before tax to sales %  12.19   13.66   8.07   1.32   4.11   2.51 
Profit after tax to sales %  9.17   9.02   5.75   1.12   3.24   2.06 
EBITDA Margin to Sales %  15.09   17.29   15.11   10.07   11.13   10.61 
Operating Leverage %  0.56   1.37   5.02   1.51   1.28   1.00 
��
��
��
�	'���'��$������?��
��� ��  36.91   35.58   16.51   3.65   11.96   7.14 
Operating profit on Capital Employed %  33.76   39.23   21.11   9.86   21.53   16.23 
Return on Total Assets %  12.26   11.54   5.62   1.06   4.09   2.46 
 
Liquidity Ratios 
Current ratio times  1.13   1.00   0.93   0.91   0.92   0.79 
Quick / Acid test ratio times  0.21   0.25   0.34   0.31   0.44   0.36 
Cash to Current Liabilities (x)  0.007   0.004   0.004   0.005   0.005   0.002 
Cash flow from Operations to Sales (x)  0.01   0.05   0.14   0.08   0.00   0.20 
 
Turnover Ratios 
Inventory turnover ratio times  2.83   2.92   3.31   3.71   5.19   6.11 
Debtor turnover ratio (KE) times  15.08   11.51   12.83   9.87   11.29   14.81 
Debtor turnover in days (KE) days  24   32   28   37   32   25 
Debtor turnover ratio times  67.60   52.51   46.40   23.17   24.52   41.99 
Creditor turnover ratio times 13.10   7.22   6.72   11.10   27.65   337.33 
Total assets turnover ratio times  1.34   1.28   0.98   0.94   1.26   1.19 
:�>�$�����
��
��
�-�����
��� 
�����  2.61   2.47   1.62   1.45   2.18   1.77 
Capital employed turnover ratio times  2.35   2.47   1.71   1.54   2.33   2.03 
 
Operating Cycle 
Inventory turnover in days days  129   125   110   98   70   47 
Debtor turnover in days days  5   7   8   16   15   9 
Creditor turnover in days days  (28)  (51)  (54)  (33)  (13)  (1)
Operating cycle in days days  106   81   64   81   72   55 
 
Investment / Market Ratios 
���
�
���|�_~���`������'����!��������
$�$���
�$� ���  10.03   7.00   2.71   0.46   1.59   0.83 
Price earning ratio times  10.14   18.28   13.14   60.58   14.54   21.22 
Market value per share at the end of the year Rs  101.70   127.89   35.62   28.10   23.05   17.69 
Market value per share high during the year Rs  149.75   167.80   45.00   32.24   26.00   19.35 
Market value per share low during the year Rs  86.00   35.89   22.80   21.75   15.30   11.25 
/����!���-����������'������������������������������������������������� ���� �27.18   19.66   16.42   12.71   13.26   11.68 
Cash Dividend %  45.00 � �XH�JJ�� �]��HJ�� �!���� �]J�JJ�� �!���
Dividend Yield %  44.25 � ��\�X\�� �XH�J[�� �!���� �@X�XF�� �!���
Dividend Cover  times  2.23 � ���JJ�� ���]\�� �!���� �]�H[�� �!���
Dividend Payout %  44.85 � �HJ�J��� �@Z�]��� �!���� �ZX�J\�� �!���
Dividend per share  Rs  4.50 � �X�HJ�� �]��H�� �!���� �]�JJ�� �!���
 
Capital Structure Ratios 
:�
�
�������-��������
��� _>`�  1.39   1.15   1.16   1.93   1.50   1.63 
K�
���;��
����?��
����
��� _>`� 58:42� H@�@Z� H@�@Z� ZZ�X@� ZJ�@J� �Z��XF�
Interest cover times  12.00   11.32   3.53   1.27   1.94   1.47 

Six Years at a Glance

20172018 2016 2015 2014 2013



INTERNATIONAL
STEELS LIMITED74

0

5

10

15

20

GP % PAT % EBITDA Operating Leverage Return on Total Assets

Profitability Ratios

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

Current ratio Quick test ratio Cash flow from Operations to Sales

~�?��$�
����
���

Turnover Ratios

0

1

2

3

Total assets turnover ratio :�>�$�����
��
��
�-�����
�� Capital employed turnover ratio

Six Years at a Glance

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018



ANNUAL
REPORT 2018 75

Six Years at a Glance
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DuPont Analysis

Total Assets

35,592,589

�5
������?��
�

11,825,008

Ownership 
Ratio

33.2%

Return on
�?��
�

37.0%

Return on
Assets

12.3%

Assets Turnover

1.34

Net Profit Margin

9.2%

�5
������?��
�

11,825,008

Total Liabilities 

23,767,581

=�
!�����

�
Liabilities

8,476,513

Current 
Liabilities

15,291,068

=�
!�����

�
Assets

18,265,275

Current 
Assets

17,327,314

Total
Costs

43,255,761

Net 
Sales

47,620,719

Total Assets 

35,592,589

Net Sales

47,620,719

Net Profit

4,364,958
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 Revenue   10,708   100.00   11,482   100.00   12,628   100.00   12,803   100.00   47,621   100.00 

 Cost of sales   (8,939)  (83.48)  (9,478)  (82.55)  (10,632)  (84.19)  (10,999)  (85.91)  (40,048)  (84.10)

 Gross Profit   1,769   16.52   2,004   17.45   1,996   15.81   1,804   14.09   7,573   15.90 

 Selling and distribution cost   (104)  (0.97)  (103)  (0.89)  (111)  (0.88)  (117)  (0.92)  (434)  (0.91)

 Administration cost   (54)  (0.50)  (63)  (0.55)  (51)  (0.40)  (118)  (0.92)  (285)  (0.60)

 Operating Profit   1,611   15.05   1,838   16.01   1,835   14.53   1,569   12.26   6,853   14.39 

 Other expenses   (127)  (1.19)  (125)  (1.09)  (263)  (2.09)  (146)  (1.14)  (662)  (1.39)

 Other income   26   0.24   49   0.43   33   0.26   42   0.33   151   0.32 

 EBIT   1,510   14.10   1,762   15.35   1,605   12.71   1,465   11.45   6,342   13.32 

�:�
�
������
�� �_]]X`� �_]�JH`� �_]][`� �_]�J@`� �_]�Z`� �_J�[[`� �_]F]`� �_]�@�`� �_HX[`� �_]�]X`

 PBT   1,397   13.05   1,643   14.31   1,479   11.71   1,284   10.03   5,803   12.19 

 Taxation   (394)  (3.68)  (465)  (4.05)  (426)  (3.38)  (153)  (1.20)  (1,438)  (3.02)

 PAT   1,003   9.37   1,178   10.26   1,053   8.34   1,131   8.83   4,365   9.17 

 EPS (Rupees)  2.31    2.71    2.42    2.60    10.03  

Quarterly Performance Analysis
Q 1
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Amount %
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Statement of Value Addition

Wealth Generated 
Sales including sales tax  55,356,368  99.7%  39,093,904  99.7%
Other operating income  150,657  0.3%  131,778  0.3%
  55,507,025  100%  39,225,682  100%
Wealth Distributed 
Cost of material & services  37,578,717  67.7%  27,117,715  69.1%
 

To Employees 
Salaries & other related cost  839,627  1.5%  620,164  1.6%
 

To Government 
Taxes  10,890,590  19.6%  6,872,780  17.5%
q�����������
����
�����
��
�:�
$�  312,226  0.6%  247,788  0.6%
q�������q�������:�
$�  124,890  0.2%  99,115  0.3%
  11,327,706  20.4%  7,219,683  18.4%
To Providers of Capital 
Dividend to Shareholders  1,957,500  3.5%  1,522,500  3.9%
:�
�
������
�  539,116  1.0%  455,500  1.2%
  2,496,616  4.5%  1,978,000  5.0%
To Society 
Donation  64,000  0.1%  44,459  0.1%
 

Retained in the business 
:������������

������>�$�����
��
     Depreciation & Amortization  856,901  1.5%  768,598  2.0%
K�����-�$���������5
'����
��
�$������
� �2,407,458  4.3%  1,521,522  3.9%
  3,264,359  5.9%  2,290,120  5.8%
  55,507,025  100.0%  39,225,682  100.0%

2018
%Rupees in ‘000

2017
%Rupees in ‘000

Cost of material & services 67.7% 69.1%

To Employees 1.5% 1.6%

To Government 20.4% 18.4%

To Providers of Capital 4.5% 5.0%

To Society 0.1% 0.1%

Depreciation & Amortization 1.5% 2.0%

Retained profit 4.3% 3.9%

20172018

2018 2017
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We have audited the annexed financial statements 
of International Steels Limited (the Company), 
which comprise the statement of financial position 
����
�XJ���
���J]F*��
$�
'���
�
���

���������
����
loss and other comprehensive income, the 
�
�
���

� ��� �'�
���� �
� �?��
�*� 
'�� �
�
���

� ���
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, 
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the 
statement of financial position, statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
�
�
���

�����'�
�����
��?��
���
$�
'���
�
���

�
of cash flows together with the notes forming part 
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the 
�
�����
��
� ��?����$� ��� 
'�� �����
����<�
*� �J]\�
_£#£� ��� �J]\`*� �
� 
'�� ��

��� ��� ��?����$� �
$�
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of 

'�������
����������������
�XJ���
���J]F��
$����
the profit and other comprehensive loss, the 
�'�
���� �
��?��
���
$� �
�� ���'� ���5�� ���� 
'�� �����
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
:�
�
�����	
�
���

�����
��
�������������
��q������
independent of the Company in accordance with 
the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current 
period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

S No. Key audit matters 

 1. Revenue recognition

 Refer notes 4.9, 21, 38 and 36.1 to the 
financial statements.

 The Company generates revenue from 
sale of goods to domestic as well as export 
customers. Export sales and sales to 
related parties represent 8% and 22% of 
total sales respectively. 

 We identified revenue recognition as key 
audit matter as it is one of the key 
performance indicators of the Company 
and because of the potential risk that 
revenue transactions may not being 
recognized in the appropriate period.

How the matters were addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of 
��-�
��*����
��
��
'���*��
���$�$�
'�������5�
��

� �� ��
��
�
�� �
� �
$���
�
$�
�� ��� �
$�
assessing the design and operating 
effectiveness of controls designed to 
ensure that revenue is recognized in the 
appropriate accounting period;

� �� �������
�� 
'�� ���������
�
���� ��� 
'��
Company’s accounting policies for revenue 
recognition and compliance of those 
policies with applicable accounting 
standards;
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INTERNATIONAL
STEELS LIMITED80



� �� �������
�*� �
� �� ������� �����*� ���������
revenue transactions recorded before and 
after the reporting date with underlying 
documentation to assess whether revenue 
has been recognized in the appropriate 
accounting period; and

� �� �
����
�
�� ���$�
� 
�
��� �����$� 
�� �����$�
������ ��
��
�� �����?��

� 
�� ����� �
$*� ���
any.

2. Valuation of stock in trade

 Refer note 4.5, 9, 22 and 36.1 to the financial 
statements.

 Inventory forms a significant part of the 
Company’s assets. During the year 67% of raw 
materials were purchased by the Company 
from a related party.

 We identified the valuation of stock in trade as 
key audit matter as it directly affects the 
profitability of the Company.

 Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of 
stock in trade, amongst others, included the 
�����5�
��

� �� ��
��
�
�� �
� �
$���
�
$�
�� ��� �

��
���
controls over purchases and valuation of 
stock in trade and testing, on a sample 
basis, their design, implementation and 
operating effectiveness; 

� �� �������
�� �
� �� ������� ������ ���������
purchases (including those from related 
party) with underlying supporting 
documents / agreements, if any.

� �� �������
���������
��
�����
'��������
��
����
directly attributable costs with the 
underlying supporting documents;

� �� ��
��
�
�� �
� �
$���
�
$�
�� ���
management’s determination of net 
realizable value (NRV) and the key 
estimates adopted, including future selling 
prices, future costs to complete 

5���!�
!��������� �
$� ���
�� 
��������� 
��
make the sales and their basis; and

� �� �������
��
'��=�"*��
���������������*�
��
the cost of finished goods to assess 
5'�
'��� �
�� �$���
��

�� ���� ��?����$� 
��
value inventory in accordance with 
applicable accounting and reporting 
standards.

3. Capitalization of Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

 Refer notes 2(a), 4.1.1 and 6 to the financial 
statements.

 The Company has made significant capital 
expenditure on expansion of manufacturing 
facilities as explained in aforementioned notes. 

 We identified capitalization of property, plant 
�
$��?�����

������������$�
���

�����������
there is a risk that amounts being capitalized 
may not meet the capitalization criteria with 
related implications on capitalization of 
borrowing costs and depreciation charge for 
the year. Our audit procedures to assess the 
����
�����
��
����������
�*����

��
$��?�����

*�
���
��
��
'���*��
���$�$�
'�������5�
��

� �� �
$���
�
$�
�� 
'�� $����
� �
$�
implementation of management controls 
over capitalization and performing tests of 
control over authorization of capital 
expenditure and accuracy of its recording 
in the system;

� �� 
��
�
�*��
�������������*�
'�����
���
�����$�
on projects with supporting documentation 
and contracts;

� �� �������
�� 
'�� 
�
���� ��� ���
�� �
�����$�
including borrowing costs for the capital 
projects through testing, on sample basis, 
of amounts recorded and considering 
whether the expenditure meets the criteria 
for capitalization as per the accounting 
policy and applicable accounting 
standards; and 
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� �� �
����
�
�� ������
�
�� $�����

�� ���� 
'��
date of capitalization when project was 
ready for its intended use to assess 
whether depreciation commenced and 
further capitalization of costs including 
borrowing cost ceased from that date and 
assessing the useful life assigned by 
management including testing the 
calculation of related depreciation.

 
Information Other than the Financial 
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other 
information. The Other Information comprises the 
information included in the Annual Report but does 
not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other 
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in 
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this Other Information, we are 
��?����$� 
�� �����
� 
'�
� ���
�� q�� '�-�� 
�
'�
�� 
��
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of 
Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
��?������

����������
����<�
*��J]\_£#£�����J]\`�
and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

��
�����

� ��
'��� �

�
$�� 
�� ��?��$�
�� 
'��
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as 
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as 
applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

'����'��
�
'����$�
��q�������

�� #$�

���� �
$� ������� 
'�� ������ ��� ��
������
misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.

�� ��
��
� �
� �
$���
�
$�
�� ��� �

��
��� ��

����
relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Company’s internal control.

�� �-����
�� 
'�� ���������
�
���� ��� �����

�
��
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.
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�� ��
���$�� �
� 
'�� ���������
�
���� ���
management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
��?����$� 
�� $��5� �

�

��
� �
� ���� ��$�
�����
report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are 
�
�$�?��
�*� 
�� ��$���� ���� ���
��
�� ����
conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
%�5�-��*� ��
���� �-�

�� ��� ��
$�
��
�� ����
cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

�� �-����
��
'���-�����������

�
��
*��
���
�����
$�
content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

 We communicate with the board of directors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

 We also provide the board of directors with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant 
�
'����� ��?������

�� �����$�
�� �
$���
$�
��*�
and to communicate with them all relationships 
and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

� :����
'����

���������
���
�$�5�
'�
'������$�
of directors, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the 
financial statements of the current period and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in 
���������
���������
'���$-�������
��?��
����
of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

 Based on our audit, we further report that in our 
���
��
�

a) proper books of account have been kept by the 
�����
�� ��� ��?����$� ��� 
'�� �����
����<�
*�
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the 
statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statement of 
�'�
���� �
� �?��
�� �
$� 
'�� �
�
���

� ��� ���'�
flows together with the notes thereon have 
been drawn up in conformity with the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in 
agreement with the books of account and 
returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and 
guarantees extended during the year were for 
the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and 
Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the Company and deposited in the 
��

��������
�:�
$���
�����'�$��
$������
��
�\�
of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in 
this independent auditor’s report is Moneeza 
Usman Butt.
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ASSETS
Non-current assets 
Property, plant and equipment  6   18,262,610   13,639,451   12,620,022 
Intangible assets  7   2,565   3,903   -    
Long term deposit with Central Depository
 Company of Pakistan Limited   100   100   100 
     18,265,275   13,643,454   12,620,122 
Current Assets 
Stores and spares   8   438,997   507,696   442,597 
Stock-in-trade  9   14,132,742   9,537,846   5,314,131 
Trade debts - considered good  10   644,790   764,043   520,801 
Receivable from K-Electric Limited (KE)
 - unsecured, considered good   32,663   42,987   40,513 
Advances, trade deposits and short-term prepayments  11   65,761   70,996   47,393 
Sales tax receivable   1,485,402   1,134,288   410,259 
Taxation  12   427,137   616,557   1,550,697 
Cash and bank balances  13   99,822   53,228   37,615
     17,327,314   12,727,641   8,364,006 
 

TOTAL ASSETS   35,592,589   26,371,095   20,984,128 
 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Share capital and reserves 
Authorised capital 
500,000,000 (2017: 500,000,000) ordinary
 shares of Rs. 10 each   5,000,000   5,000,000   5,000,000 
 

Share capital 
 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital  14   4,350,000   4,350,000   4,350,000 
Revenue reserve 
� {
���������
�$����¤
�� � �6,532,704   3,246,005   1,813,959 
Capital Reserve 
 Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment  15   942,304   958,242   978,667 
 

Total Shareholders’ equity   11,825,008   8,554,247   7,142,626 
 

LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities 
~�
��
����¤
�
��
��!�������$� �]Z�� �6,768,281   3,621,272   4,044,973 
	
������
�����

���
�¤
�� �X]��  -      23,578   24,496 
Deferred taxation  17   1,708,232   1,456,421   810,748 
     8,476,513   5,101,271   4,880,217 
Current liabilities  
Trade and other payables  18   5,458,133   6,134,306   4,694,416 
Short term borrowings - secured  19   8,462,310   5,039,236   3,523,755 
Unpaid dividend   9,540   275,166   -    
Unclaimed dividend   2,917   656   384 
�����

����
��
������
��
����¤
�
��
��!�������$� ]Z� �1,201,679   1,197,073   699,016 
Accrued markup   156,489   69,140   43,714

     15,291,068   12,715,577   8,961,285 
 

Total liabilities   23,767,581   17,816,848   13,841,502 
 

Contingencies and Commitments 20 
 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   35,592,589   26,371,095   20,984,128 
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2018

20162018
30 June30 June 30 June 01 July

Restated
2017

(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

Tariq Iqbal Khan Mujtaba Hussain Yousuf H. Mirza
Director & Chairman

Board Audit Committee
Chief Financial
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Statement of Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Net Sales 21  47,620,719   33,732,622 
Cost of sales 22  (40,047,664)  (27,826,505)
����������!   7,573,055   5,906,117 
 
Selling and distribution expenses 23  (434,292)  (333,794)
Administrative expenses 24  (285,397)  (214,876)
     (719,689)  (548,670)
 
Finance cost 25  (539,116)  (455,500)
Other operating charges 26  (661,595)  (424,951)
     (1,200,711)  (880,451)
 
Other income 27  150,657   131,778 
"���!�#������!�$�!
��   5,803,312   4,608,774 
 
Taxation 28 (1,438,354) (1,564,752)
"���!���!���!�$�!
�������!�������   4,364,958   3,044,022 
 
 
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 29 10.03 7.00 
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(Rupees)

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

Tariq Iqbal Khan Mujtaba Hussain Yousuf H. Mirza
Director & Chairman

Board Audit Committee
Chief Financial
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2018

"���!�����!�������   4,364,958   3,044,022 

Other comprehensive income 
 
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss account 
�����������

�����
�
�$�¤
�$���
�¤
��������
�� �  (9,432)  (1,645)
Related tax   2,735   494 
Other comprehensive income for the year - net of tax   (6,697)  (1,151)
 
��!�	�*���������
+��
�*��������!�������   4,358,261   3,042,871 
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2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

���¤
��������
�>�
��
� � �5,803,312   4,608,774 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation  6.2  856,901   768,598 
Amortization 7  1,338   112 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 27  (9,282)  (4,874)
Provision for obsolence against spares 22  19,553   -    
Provision for staff gratuity 31  17,700   16,226 
Provision for compensated absences 18  12,749   9,219 
Income on bank deposit 27  (1,040)  (1,508)
Finance cost 25  539,116   455,500 
     1,437,035   1,243,273 
Changes in working capital 30  (5,444,225)  (3,844,200)
�����;�����!�������������!
���   1,796,122   2,007,847 

Finance cost paid   (451,767)  (430,074)
Income on bank deposits received   1,040   1,508 
Payment for staff gratuity   (50,710)  (18,789)
Compensated absences paid   (6,749)  (7,291)
Income tax (paid) / refund   (994,388)  15,555 
     (1,502,574)  (439,091)
<�!�*����;�����!�������������!
�;��*!
+
!
��   293,548   1,568,756 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment   (5,491,890)  (1,807,858)
Acquisition of intangible asset   -      (4,015)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment   21,112   24,705 
Net cash used in investing activities   (5,470,778)  (1,787,168)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

������$���������
��
����¤
�
��
�� � �4,300,000   1,000,000 
�������

������
��
����¤
�
��
�� �  (1,148,385)  (925,644)
Proceeds from / (repayments of) short term borrowings - net   678,825   1,787,194 
Dividend paid   (1,350,865)  (1,355,812)
<�!�*����;�����!������������*
�;��*!
+
!
��   2,479,575   505,738 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents   (2,697,655)  287,326 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year   (2,378,005)  (2,665,331)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year   (5,075,660)  (2,378,005)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE OF: 
Cash and bank balances   99,822   53,228 
	'��
�
���������5�
���!���

�
��¤
�
���_������$`� �  (5,175,482)  (2,431,233)
     (5,075,660)  (2,378,005)
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(Rupees in ‘000)

Note
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Director & Chairman
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Chief Financial
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(Rupees in ‘000)

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2018

Balance as at 01 July 2016 -
 as previously reported    4,350,000   1,818,328   -      6,168,328 
 

Impact of change in
 accounting policy - net of tax 5 
Revaluation surplus on property,
 plant and equipment included in equity   -      -      974,298   974,298 
;�¤��
��
���-����
��
��'����$�
�
� ���¤
��
$������!�
�
����
�>� � �!      (4,369)  4,369   -    
     -      (4,369)  978,667   974,298 

Balance as at 01 July 2016 - as restated    4,350,000   1,813,959   978,667   7,142,626 
 

���¤
�����
'�������� � �!      3,044,022   -      3,044,022 
Other comprehensive income for the year   -      (1,151)  -      (1,151)
Total comprehensive income for the year   -      3,042,871   -      3,042,871 
 

Transactions with owners recorded directly  
 in equity - distributions 
Dividend: 
- Final dividend @ 12.50% (Rs. 1.25 per share)    -     (543,750)  -      (543,750)
   for the year ended 30 June 2016    
- Interim dividend @ 25% (Rs. 2.5 per share)  
   for the year ended 30 June 2017   -      (1,087,500)  -      (1,087,500)
Total transactions with owners of
 the Company - distributions   -      (1,631,250)  -      (1,631,250)
 

Transferred from revaluation surplus on
 property, plant and equipment on account
 of incremental depreciation - net of tax   -      20,425   (20,425)  -    
 

Balance as at 30 June 2017 - restated   4,350,000   3,246,005   958,242   8,554,247 
 

Balance as at 01 July 2017   4,350,000   3,246,005   958,242   8,554,247 
 

���¤
�����
'������� � �!      4,364,958   -      4,364,958 
Other comprehensive income for the year   -      (6,697)  -      (6,697)
Total comprehensive income for the year   -      4,358,261   -      4,358,261 
 

Transactions with owners recorded directly  
 in equity - distributions 
Dividend: 
- Final dividend @ 10% (Re. 1.00 per share)    -      (435,000)  -      (435,000)
   for the year ended 30 June 2017 
- Interim dividend @ 15% (Rs. 1.50 per share)    -      (652,500)  -      (652,500)
   for the year ended 30 June 2018
Total transactions with owners of the
 Company - distributions   -      (1,087,500)  -      (1,087,500)
 

Transferred from revaluation surplus on
 property, plant and equipment on account
 of incremental depreciation - net of tax   -      15,938   (15,938)  -    
 

Balance as at 30 June 2018   4,350,000   6,532,704   942,304   11,825,008 
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.  STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS       
      

  International Steels Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 03 September 2007 as a public 
unlisted company limited by shares under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and is domiciled 
in the province of Sindh. The Company was listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on 01 June 
2011. The Company is subsidiary of International Industries Limited (Holding Company) which holds 
245,055,543 (2017: 245,055,543 shares) shares of the Company as at 30 June 2018 representing 
56.3% (2017: 56.3%) of the shareholding of the Company.      
     

  The net assets of the Steel Project Undertaking of International Industries Limited (the Holding 
Company), amounting to Rs. 4,177.167 million determined as at 23 August 2010 (day immediately 
preceding the completion date) in accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, were transferred to 
the Company on 24 August 2010. In consideration of transferring to and vesting the Steel Project 
Undertaking in the Company, 417,716,700 fully paid-up ordinary shares were issued at par value to 
the Holding Company.      

      

  The primary activity of the Company is the business of manufacturing of cold rolled, galvanized 
and colour coated steel coils and sheets. The Company commenced commercial operations on 
J]� ��
����� �J]]��K'�� �����
���$� ��¤��� ��� 
'�� �����
�� ��� ��
��
�$� �
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� �����*� ]J�
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����$*���-���~�
��*�^����'��!�\HHXJ�� � � � � �

      

  The manufacturing facility of the Company is situated at 399-405, Rehri Road, Landhi Industrial Area, 
^����'���
$�'�-�
����������¤��������
�$��
�~�'���*�#�������$��
$����
�
�� � � �
  

2.  SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL 
POSITION AND PERFORMANCE      
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line and related facilities. The Company has incurred capital expenditure amounting to Rs. 5,445.1 
million in aggregate (including capitalization of borrowing cost). The Company’s state of the art 
rolling mill commenced production during the year ended 30 June 2018 and related amount have 
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expansion through long term loan from islamic window of commercial bank. The borrowing cost 
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2017 (the Act) including disclosure and presentation requirements of the fourth schedule of the 
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  c) The accounting policy relating to revaluation of property, plant and equipment changed during the 
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  d) For detailed discussion about the Company’s performance please refer to the Directors’ report 
accompanied in the annual report of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018.   
  

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATION      
      

=�>� �!�!����!����*���	
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standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan comprise of:

For the year ended 30 June 2018
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  _ International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International 
<����

�
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�
$��$��/���$�_#<	/`����
�
�¤�$��
$���
'�������
����<�
*��J]\���
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  – Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act 2017. 

  Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act 2017 differ from IFRS 
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act 2017 have been followed.
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which are stated at fair value.      

      
3.3 Functional and presentation currency      
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currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.  
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applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and 
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 
form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not 
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.   
      

  The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only 
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods. Information about the judgments made by the management in the application of the 
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the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the next year are described in the following notes:  
      

  - Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (notes 4.1 and 4.2).    
- Trade debts (note 4.3.1.1)     
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  - Stores and spares (note 4.4)     
  - Stock-in-trade (note 4.5)     
  - Taxation (note 4.6)     
� � !� 	
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  - Impairment (note 4.11)     
  - Provisions and contingent liabilities (note 4.12 and 4.13)     
      

3.5 Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved 
accounting standards      

      

  a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards 
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  - ‘IAS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will enable 
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  - The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) has also brought certain changes with regard to preparation 
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explained in note 5, change in nomenclature of primary statements, etc. Further, the disclosure 
requirements contained in the fourth schedule to the Act have been revised, resulting in the 
elimination of duplicative disclosures with the IFRS disclosure requirements and incorporation of 
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  b) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards 
!��!���������*!
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   There are certain new standards, amendments to the approved accounting standards and new 
interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2017. 
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  c) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards 
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+�]�     

      

   The following are the new standards, amendments to existing approved accounting standards 
and new interpretations that will be effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018, 
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IFRS 2 clarify the accounting for certain types of arrangements and are effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three accounting areas 
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and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense 
recognized for new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact 
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  - Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’-effective for 
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and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management’s intentions for 
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments are not 
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  - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle [Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates 
�
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that a venture capital organization and other similar entities may elect to measure investments in 
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separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to 
non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity, 
when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by that investment 
entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests in 
subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each investment entity associate or joint venture. 
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  - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods 
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foreign currency transaction involves payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The 
related item is translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency is 
received or paid and the prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction 
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, 
expense or income (or part of it) would remain the date on which receipt of payment from advance 
consideration was recognized. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity 
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shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. The 
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  - IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on 
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  - IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 July 2018). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, 
how much and when revenue is recognized. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, 
including IAS 18 ‘Revenue’, IAS 11 ‘Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer Loyalty 
Programmes’. The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of 
changes required in revenue recognition policies on adoption of the standard.    
      

  - IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and amendment - Prepayment Features with Negative 
Compensation (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018 and 1 January 2019 
respectively). IFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
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assets, and new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on 
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  - IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 

replaces existing leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an 
Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating Leases- Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating 
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, 
on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset 
representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation 
to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of 
low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue 
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  - Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in 
Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). 
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loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term 
interests or ‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope 
of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be 
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(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that 
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effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the 
plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income. The application of amendments 
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  - Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle - the improvements address 
amendments to following approved accounting standards:     
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clarify the accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint operation that 
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operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not remeasure its previously 
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.
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borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its 
intended use or sale. The above improvements to standards are not likely to have material / 
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES      
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4.1 Property, plant and equipment      
      

4.1.1 Operating assets and depreciation      
      

  Initial Recognition      
      
  The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that 
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be measured reliably.      

      
  Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of plant and equipment ceases when the 

item is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended 
by the management.      

      
  Measurement      
      

  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, 
if any. Freehold land are stated at revalued amounts and buildings on freehold land are stated at 
revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation. The costs of property, plant and equipment include:

      

  (a) its purchase price including import duties, non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade 
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  (b) any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
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  When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted 
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.    
  

  Subsequent expenditure      
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and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. All other expenditure (including repairs and 

���������

�
�
��`���������
���$��
�
'�����¤
��
$�����������

�����
��>��
���5'�
��
�����
�����$���
     

  Depreciation      
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  Depreciation on addition is charged from the month the asset is available for use up to the month 
prior to disposal.      

      

  Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment 
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each reporting date.      
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  Revaluation surplus      
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ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any revaluation 
increase in the carrying amount of freehold land and building on freehold land is recognized, net of tax, 
in other comprehensive income and presented as a separate component of equity as “Revaluation 
surplus on property, plant and equipment “except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation 
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distribution to the Company’s shareholders. Each year, the difference between depreciation based on 
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  During the year the Company changed its accounting policy in respect of the accounting and 
presentation of revaluation of property, plant and equipment. Previously, the Company’s accounting 
policy was in accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984. Those 
provisions and resultant previous policy of the Company were not in alignment with the accounting 
treatment and presentation of revaluation of property, plant and equipment as prescribed in IAS 16 
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treatment for revaluation of property, plant and equipment, accordingly the Company has changed the 
accounting policy to bring it in conformity with the accounting treatment and presentation of revaluation 
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  Gains and losses on disposal      
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on revaluation of property, plant and equipment, if any, is transferred directly to retained earnings.

      

4.1.2 Capital work-in-progress      
      

  Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less impairment loss, if any and consists of expenditure 
incurred (including any borrowing cost, if applicable) and advances made in the course of their 
construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are 
available for intended use.      

      

4.2 Intangible assets       
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exceeding, beyond one year, are recognised as an intangible asset.      
      

  Infinite Intangible           
      

  These are stated at cost less impairment, if any.        
      

  Definite Intangible
      

  a) These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.   
      

  b) Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over its estimated useful life(s) (refer note 7).
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put to use, whereas no amortisation is charged from the month the asset is disposed-off.   
      

4.3 Financial Instruments           
      

4.3.1 Non-derivative Financial assets
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transferred or it neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and 
does not retain control over the transferred asset. 

   
4.3.1.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables        

      

  Trade debts, advances and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost or cost, as the case may be, less provision for impairment, if any. A 
provision for impairment is established when there is an objective evidence that the Company will 
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Receivables 
considered irrecoverable are written-off. 

4.3.1.2 Cash and cash equivalents          
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hand, balances with banks and short term borrowings availed by the Company, which are repayable 
on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

4.3.2 Financial Liabilities
      

  Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes 
party to the respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings 
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Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective 
interest rate method.

4.3.2.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs
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Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost, while the 
difference between the cost (reduced for periodic payments) and redemption value is recognized in 
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qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the relevant asset.     
       

4.3.2.2 Trade and other payables
      

  Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, 
and subsequently measured at amortised costs.
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instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when fair value is negative.
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fair value of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging 
reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised immediately in 
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  The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. 
These are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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statements only when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised 
amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle 
the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events 
and must be enforceable in normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or 
winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

4.4 Stores and spares
      

  Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value, less provision 
for impairment if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges 
incurred thereon.

      

  Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving spares older than one year and is recognized in the 
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4.5 Stock-in-trade
      

  These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined under the weighted 
average basis. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing 
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selling price in the ordinary course of the business less net estimated cost of completion and selling 
expenses. Scrap and by-product is valued at estimated realizable value.
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  Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the 
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in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity or in other comprehensive 
income respectively. In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, 
the management considers the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on 
certain issues in the past.

      

  Current            
      

  Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using 
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable 
or receivable in respect of previous years.

      

  Provisions for current taxation is based on taxability of certain income streams of the Company under 
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at current rate of taxation under the normal tax regime and / or minimum tax liability or alternate 
corporate tax as applicable, after taking into account tax credits and tax rebates available, if any.

      

  Deferred tax
      
  Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary difference 
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used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of 
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the tax rates enacted 
or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
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the foreseeable future will be available against which the assets can be utilised. Deferred tax assets 
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is available at half month’s basic salary (eligible salary) for each completed year of service. For 
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salary) for each completed year of service. The Company’s obligation is determined through 
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comprise actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest) are recognised 
immediately in other comprehensive income.
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by the Company and the employees, at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary and cost of living allowance 
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4.7.3 Compensated absences 
      
  The liability for accumulated compensated absences of employees is recognised in the period in 

which employees render service that increases their entitlement to future compensated absences. 
           

4.8 Foreign currency translation
      
  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange 
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currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange ruling on the reporting date. 
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4.9 Revenue recognition
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and rewards of ownership, which coincides with delivery.
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and rewards of ownership, which coincides either with date of shipping bill or upon delivery to 
customer or its representative, based on terms of arrangement.

      
  - Revenue from power generation plant on account of sales of surplus electricity is recognised on 

transmission of electricity to K-Electric Limited.
      

  - Toll manufacturing / partial manufacturing income is recognised when related services are rendered. 
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Income or expense is recognized using the effective interest method.
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4.11 Impairment
      

4.11.1 Financial assets
      

  Financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective 
�-�$�
��� 
'�
� �
� ��� �������$��<� ¤
�
����� ����
� ��� ��
��$���$� 
�� ��� �������$� ��� �����
�-�� �-�$�
���
�
$���
���
'�
��
�����������-�

��'�-��'�$���
���
�-�������
��
�
'����
���
�$���
�������'�«�5�����
that asset.

4.11.2 Non-Financial assets 
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impairment. If such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and 
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4.12 Provisions 
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Provisions are measured at the present value of expected expenditure, discounted at a pre-tax rate 
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4.13 Contingent liabilities
      

  A contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past 
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4.14 Segment reporting
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operating decision maker include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be 
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items, if any, comprise mainly corporate assets , head 
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a single reportable segment and therefore it has only presented entity wide disclosures.

4.15 Dividend and appropriations
      

  Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders and appropriations to / from reserves are 
recognised in the period in which these are approved.

5  CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY 
      

� � �����
�-��XJ������J]\*�
'�������
����<�
*��J]\�_
'��<�
`�5����
��
�$�5'��'��������$��
$��������$�
the previous Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the repealed Ordinance). Section 235 of the repealed 
Ordinance relating to treatment of surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 
'���
�
����
�������$� ���5��$� �
� 
'��<�
��K'�����$� ���
��
���� 
'�� �������$���$�
�
��������¤�$� 
'��
presentation and accounting treatment relating to the revaluation of property, plant and equipment which 
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was not in accordance with the requirement of IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ as applicable 
in Pakistan. Consequently, the Company changed its accounting policy for revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment in accordance with the requirement of the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017. Previously, the Company’s accounting policy 
for revaluation of property, plant and equipment was in accordance with the provision of Section 235 of 
the repealed Ordinance. Further, the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment was shown 
as a separate item below equity, in accordance with the presentation requirement of the repealed 
Ordinance. The accounting policy and presentation requirement relating to revaluation of property, plant 
and equipment have been changed to bring it in conformity with the requirement of IAS 16 “Property, 
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statement of changes in equity as a capital reserve i.e. part of equity. 

      

  In accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, estimates and errors’, the above 
explained changes in accounting policy have been accounted for retrospectively, with the restatement 
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of the preceding period is presented (i.e. 1 July 2016).
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  The effect of the change is the recognition and presentation of Rs. 942.304 million for revaluation 
surplus on property, plant and equipment as a capital reserve i.e. separate component of equity 
and derecognition of revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment of Rs. 942.304 million, 
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impact on basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 30 June 2017 and 30 June 2018.

6  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 
  Operating assets 6.1 14,711,281  12,549,357 
  Capital work-in-progress 6.7 3,551,329  1,090,094 
     18,262,610   13,639,451

As previously 
reported on 

30 June 2016

As previously 
reported on 30 

June 2017

Adjustments
Increase/

(Decrease)

��\��!���!�
Increase/

(Decrease)

As at 1 July 2016  As at 30 June 2017

As restated
on 01 July

2016

As restated
on 01 July 

2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

  Revaluation surplus on 
   property, plant and 
    equipment
     (within equity)  -      978,667   978,667   -      958,242   958,242 
 

� � {
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� �]*F]F*X�F�� �_@*XZ[`� �]*F]X*[H[�� �X*�HJ*X\@�� �_@*XZ[`� �X*�@Z*JJH
 

  Net impact on equity  1,818,328   974,298   2,792,626   3,250,374   953,873   4,204,247 
 

  Revaluation surplus on 
   property, plant and 
      equipment
      (below equity)  974,298   (974,298)  -      953,873   (953,873)  -  
 

      974,298   (974,298)  -      953,873   (953,873)  -   

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)
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 Freehold land  1,460,250   -      -      1,460,250   -      -      -      -      1,460,250   -   
       

 Buildings on        
� ��������	��	����� �>�Z}=�j}>�� �_      -      1,473,571   84,619   85,095   -      169,714   1,303,857  3% - 5%
       

 Plant and machinery*  12,680,608   2,973,335   -      15,653,943   3,073,394   742,983   -      3,816,377   11,837,566  3% - 33%
       

� ����
!������$!������ � � � � � �
 computer and       
� ���*�����
����!� �}?�}>}�� �>>�=�Z�� ��>�?�� ��=��?��� �=��~>|�� �����=�� ��>Z��� �Z|��j~�� �=}�~}��� >~��_�==�
       

 Vehicles  93,553   45,926   (26,217)  113,262   35,313   19,840   (14,420)  40,733   72,529  20%
       

   15,780,699   3,030,655   (26,399)  18,784,955   3,231,342   856,901   (14,569)  4,073,674   14,711,281

 Free hold land  1,460,250   -      -      1,460,250   -      -      -      -      1,460,250   -   
� /���$�
����
�� � � � � � �
   freehold land  1,450,725   22,846   -      1,473,571   -      84,619   -      84,619   1,388,952  3% - 5%
       

 Plant and machinery *  11,884,236   802,589   (6,217)  12,680,608   2,414,477   660,812   (1,895)  3,073,394   9,607,214  3% - 33%
       

� :��
�
���*�¤>
���*�� � � � � � �
 computer and       
� ��¤����?�����

� �@@*[]]�� ��\*FJZ�� �!      72,717   32,389   5,627   -      38,016   34,701  10% - 33%
       

 Vehicles  96,224   38,164   (40,835)  93,553   43,099   17,540   (25,326)  35,313   58,240  20%
   14,936,346   891,405   (47,052)  15,780,699   2,489,965   768,598   (27,221)  3,231,342   12,549,357  

6.1 Operating assets

  *Includes capital spares having cost of Rs. 406 million (2017: Rs. 143 million) and net book value of Rs. 
341 million (2017: Rs 93 million).

6.1.1 Additions to plant and machinery include borrowing cost capitalized incurred on loan obtained for 
expansion project amounting to Rs. 82.6 million (2017: Rs. Nil). Rate of mark-up capitalisation ranges 
from 6.56% to 7.12% per annum (2017: Nil).

|�?� ���������*
�!
���*���;������!������������#�����		�*�!��������		���]

  Cost of sales 22 762,089   710,769 
  Administrative expenses 24  5,827 5,527 
  Selling and distribution expenses 23  6,654  4,030 
  Income from power generation 27.1   82,331 48,272 
    856,901 768,598
 

6.3� K'�� ��-����
��
� ��� ����'��$� ��
$� �
$� ����$�
��� 
'����
� 5��� ������$� ��
� ��� ��� XJ� ��
�� �J]Z� ��� ��^�
Associates (Private) Limited (an independent valuer who is located in Karachi) on the basis of their 
professional assessment of present market values based on enquiries made about the cost of land of 
similar nature, size and location including  consideration of current cost of acquisition or construction net of 
diminution owing to depreciation, keeping in view the current condition. The revaluation resulted in a surplus 
amounting to Rs. 267.69 million which was incorporated in the books of the Company as at 30 June 2016.

  The Company commissioned independent valuation of freehold land and buildings thereon during the 
years ended 30 June 2013 and 30 June 2016.

(Rupees in ‘000)

Cost / Revaluation Depreciation
2018

Net book 
value 
as at

30 June 
2018

Rate
%

As at
30 June

2018

As at
01 July

2017

As at
01 July

2017

As at
30 June

2018
Additions/
!��������

For the
year(Disposals) (Disposals)

(Rupees in ‘000)

Depreciation
2017

Net book 
value 
as at

30 June 
2017

Rate
%

As at
30 June
2017

As at
01 July
2016

As at
01 July
2016

As at
30 June
2017


���������
transfers

For the
year	�������
�� 	�������
��

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

�����������
������
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   The carrying amount of the aforementioned assets as at 30 June 2018, if the said assets had been 
carried at historical cost, would have been as follows:

 
   Freehold land  836,599   -      836,599 
� � � /���$�
����
�����'��$���
$�  1,239,880   378,113   861,767 
   As at 30 June 2018  2,076,479   378,113   1,698,366 
 
   As at 30 June 2017 2,076,479  322,673  1,753,806
 
6.4  Forced sales value of freehold land and building on freehold land is Rs. 1,287.9 million and 1,162.4 

million respectively.

|�j� � "��!
*�	�������
���+�#	��������!���
����	��������#�
	�
�;��
��!�����������!��������������������		���]

   Particulars Location Total Area

� � � :���'��$�~�
$� 	��-���=���X[[!@JH*�;�'�	'�����*�~�
$'��� ]H\*JHF�	?���$�
� � � ��_��
����
���
�����

`� K�5
*���
��;��
���
���-��
��

*�^����'�

� � � ��¤������������ ��¤���=���JX*��
$�:����*�/�����

������*� ]*\[@�X\�	?��:
�
� � � � � ]J�/�����

����$*�^����'�

|�|� � ^�!�
	�����������!����	��!��������
����!��
��������������+
�;���!�#����+�	�����*��
���$*����
�������j~~�~~~���*�����������		���]� � � �
    
 

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

 Net book 
 value

(Rupees in ‘000)

(Rupees in ‘000)

Original
cost

Accumulated 
depreciation Book value Sale

Proceeds Mode of
disposal

��������	
�����
 on disposal Purchaser

 Relationship 
 with 

 purchaser 

     Vehicles 
� �� � � 	���������
��� �]*]�[�� �]X��� �[[\�� �]*J\H�� �\F�� =���
��
��
� ����	'���'���'����$�	���$� � =�
�

� �� � � K���
���������� �]*FZ@�� �]�@�� �]*\@J�� �]*[XJ�� �][J�� =���
��
��
� ���������'���<'��$� � =�
�

� �� � � K���
���������� �]*F�F�� �\X]�� �]*J[\�� �]*\@J�� �Z@X�� =���
��
��
� ����	'�'��$�/�

� � =�
�

     Toyota Corolla  1,863   435   1,428   1,875   447  Negotiation Syed Riaz Ahmed  None

     Honda City  1,663   832   832   1,500   668  As per ����^��'�
���
������ � �>!��������
           Company 
           Policy  

� �� � � �����$��� �X*J@X�� �ZJ[�� ��*@X@�� �X*H�[�� �]*J[H�� =���
��
��
� 	��$������<'��$� � =�
��

     Total  11,390   2,863   8,528   11,649   3,121 

  

(Rupees in ‘000)

As at
01 July

2017

As at
01 July
2016

As at
30 June

2018

As at
30 June
2017

Cost Cost

2018 2017

Additions Additions����������� 	����������

 Land  -      61,250   -      61,250   -      -      -      -  
  

� /���$�
��  -      696,439   -      696,439   -      22,846   (22,846)  -  
  

 Plant and
  machinery  1,080,004   4,412,140   (2,710,105)  2,782,039   172,138   1,673,118   (765,252)  1,080,004 
  

 Furniture,
� �¤>
���*
  computer 
� ��
$���¤��
  equipment  2,318   17,224   (11,394)  8,148   -      30,124   (27,806)  2,318
  

 Vehicles  7,772   41,607   (45,926)  3,453   1,503   44,433   (38,164)  7,772 
    1,090,094   5,228,660   (2,767,425)  3,551,329   173,641   1,770,521   (854,068)  1,090,094 

6.7  Capital Work-In-Progress
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7.1� K�
�������

��������
���
��
�'������
��'����$�
�����
�����������
�
'����¤
�
������
�
���

���
 
8  STORES AND SPARES
 
 
  Stores   175,113   64,722 
  Spares    275,850   437,447 
  Loose tools   7,587   5,527
    458,550 507,696 
 
  Less: Provision for obsolescence against spares    (19,553)  -    
     438,997   507,696 
9  STOCK-IN-TRADE 
 
  Raw material - in hand    5,930,245   3,028,194 
  Raw material - in transit   4,453,970   1,813,193 
  Work-in-process   1,187,243   1,190,872 
  Finished goods   2,504,609   3,434,583 
� � /�����$��
�� �  7,292   10,181 
� � 	�������
������ �  49,383   60,823 
     14,132,742   9,537,846 
 
10  TRADE DEBTS - considered good 
 
  - Secured 10.1  183,933   274,168 
  - Unsecured   460,857   489,875 
     644,790   764,043 
 
10.1 This represents trade debts arising on account of export sales of Rs. 141.86 million (2017: Rs. 183.52 

million) which are secured by way of Export Letters of Credit and Rs. 42.07 million (2017: Rs. 90.65 
million) arising on account of domestic sales which are secured by way of Inland Letters of Credit. 

 
10.2 Trade debts includes Rs. 43.32 million (2017: Rs. 9.56 million) receivable from related party. The 

����
�����������-�����������|���	���
�����������
��
��
$����
�
��-���$�������
�XJ���
���J]F��
 
10.2.1 The maximum aggregate amount due from the related party at the end of any month during the year 

was Rs. 233.99 million (2017: Rs. 144.87 million).

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

7  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

  

  �����!������!����� ?>�}~|�� _  21,706 17,803 1,338  19,141 2,565 33% 

  Computer software   17,691 4,015 21,706 17,691 112 17,803 3,903 33% 

As at
01 July
2016

For the 
year

As at
01 July
2016

As at
30 June
2017

Cost Amortisation Net book
value as at

30 June
2017

Rate
%

2017

Additions
As at

30 June
2017

(Rupees in ‘000)

As at
01 July

2017

For the 
year

As at
01 July

2017

As at
30 June

2018

Cost Amortisation Net book
value as at

30 June
2018

Rate
%

2018

Additions
As at

30 June
2018

(Rupees in ‘000)
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11  ADVANCES, TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS

 
 

  Advances to suppliers -  considered good    29,629   48,463 
  Trade deposits   10,904   7,894 
� � �����
�����
�
��'����
�������

��� � �13,949   -    
  Short term prepayments    11,279   14,639 
     65,761   70,996 
 
11.1 These advances and trade deposits are non-interest bearing.

12  TAXATION

  Tax receivable as at 01 July    616,557   1,550,697 
  Tax payments / adjustments made during the year   994,388   237,357 
  Refund received during the year   -      (252,912)
     1,610,945   1,535,142 
  Less: Provision for tax - current year 28  (1,183,808)  (918,585)
  Tax receivable as at 30 June   427,137   616,557 
 
13  CASH AND BANK BALANCES 
 
  Cash in hand   10   84 
  Cash at bank - in current accounts in local currency   7,738   38,130 
  Cash at bank - in deposit accounts in foreign currency 13.1   92,074   15,014 
     99,822   53,228 
 
13.1� ����!��� ��
���
���
�������

�� ��
���� �����@�H�� 
��@�\H�������

��� _�J]\��@�� 
��@�\H������

annum). The deposits account are placed with bank under conventional banking arrangements. 
 
14  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL 
 

 
     Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 
   30,000 30,000   issued for cash  300   300 
 
      Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 
  417,716,700   417,716,700   issued against transfer of net assets  4,177,167   4,177,167 
 
     Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10  each
    17,253,300   17,253,300   issued as right shares  172,533   172,533 
 
   435,000,000   435,000,000    4,350,000   4,350,000

14.1 As at 30 June 2018, the Holding Company and associated companies held 245,055,543 (2017: 
245,055,543) and 39,477,659 (2017: 39,477,659) ordinary shares respectively of Rs. 10 each.

14.2 Sumitomo Corporation incorporated in Japan and holds 9% ordinary shares in the Company. The registered 
address of the associated concern is at 8-11, Harumi 1 - Chome, Chuo-Ku, Tokyo, Japan. The President 
���	���
�����������
��
� ������������%��$���<������ 
'�� ��
��
��-��������¤
�
������
�
���

��5'��'�����
�������$��
����
����
���
������*�
'����$�
����'�-���>������$��
��
��$�¤�$����
��
�

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

2018 2017
�<��#�������������
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15  REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 
  Freehold land 
� � /���
�������
�J]������ � �623,651   623,651 
  Revaluation during the year   -      -    
� � /���
�������
�XJ���
�� �  623,651   623,651 
 
  @�
	�
�;�����������	��	��� 
� � /���
�������
�J]������ � �477,987   507,166 
  Revaluation during the year   -      -    
  Transferred to retained earnings in respect of incremental  
    depreciation charged during the year   (29,179)  (29,179)
� � /���
�������
�XJ���
�� �  448,808   477,987 
 
  Related deferred tax liability  17  (130,155)  (143,396)
 
� � /���
�������
�XJ���
��!�
�
����$������$�
�>� �  942,304   958,242 
 
15.1 The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve and is not available for 

distribution to the shareholders of the company in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 
2017.

>j�?� ��+����!�
����	�!������������!�$�	
�#
	
!�

� � /���
�������
�J]������ �  143,396   152,150 
  Effect of change in tax rates   (4,487)  -    
  Tax effect on incremental depreciation transferred
    to retained earnings  (8,754)  (8,754)
  Deferred tax liability as at 30 June  130,155   143,396 
     
16  LONG TERM FINANCING - secured    

Long-term ¤
�
��
���
�����$��
$��
    mark-up arrangements 16.1   7,969,960   4,818,345 
� � �����

����
��
������
��
����¤
�
��
�
    shown under current liabilities   (1,201,679)  (1,197,073)
     6,768,281   3,621,272 
>|�>� ���;�!��������*
�;��!
	
��������������_��������;����!� 

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

   Conventional
i)   Long Term Finance Facility (LTFF) - Local currency    
     
   Bank Al Habib Limited    
   Assistance for plant and  1,000,000 4,675,000 32 quarterly 11 November  1.00% over  865,442   988,012 
� � � �����'�
����� � � �
�
����

�� �J�Z� 	/�� �
� � � �� � � ]Z���
������J]Z� � ��¤
�
��� �
         rate
   United Bank Limited    
   Assistance for plant and  1,000,000 2,501,562 16 half yearly 28 November  1.00% over  843,406   952,555 
� � � �����'�
����� � � �
�
����

�� �J�Z� 	/�� �
� � � �� � � ]��;���������J]Z� � ��¤
�
��� �
         rate
ii)   Long Term Finance - Local currency    
     
   MCB Bank Limited    
   Assistance for plant and  800,000 1,112,512 18 quarterly 01 September  0.15% over   444,445   577,778 
     machinery    instalments 2020 03 months  
� � � �� � � XJ���
���J]Z� � ^#/��

(Rupees in ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000)

Sale price
Purchase
price 2018 2017Date of 

�����������
repayment

Rate of
mark-up
per annum

Number of 
instalments and
commencement

date
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iii)   Long Term Finance - Local currency    

   Bank Al Habib Limited    
   Assistance for plant and  1,000,000 1,610,411 60 equal   28 June 0.15% over  100,000   800,000 
     machinery   monthly instalments 2021 03 months
� � � �� � � �F�������J]Z� � ^#/��� �

Islamic
iv)   Long Term Finance - Local currency    
     
   Meezan Bank Limited    
� � � <����
�
����������

��
$�� ]*JJJ*JJJ� ]*\@X*XJJ� J]�'�����������+� �Z���
�� J��J���-���� �500,000   750,000 

  machinery 14 quarterly 2020 03 months
� � � �� � � �
�
����

�� � ^#/��� �
       26 December 2016   
     
v)   Long Term Finance - Local currency    

   Standard Chartered Bank
    (Pakistan) Limited    
   Assistance for plant and  1,000,000 1,098,867 36 equal monthly 01 September 0.20% over   416,667   750,000 
     machinery    instalments 2019  01 months  

� ] ��
���� �J]Z� � ^#/���
     
vi)   Long Term Finance - Local currency    
     
   Habib Bank Limited    

Assistance for plant and 4,300,000 5,640,228 10 half yearly 24 February 0.10% over  4,300,000  -
     machinery    instalments 2025  06 months  
� � � �� � � �F�:���������J�J� � ^#/��� �
     
vii)  Long Term Finance - Local currency    

   Bank Al Habib Limited    
   Assistance for plant and  500,000 575,512 30 equal monthly 28 June 0.15% over  500,000   -    
     machinery   instalments 2021 03 months  
� � � �� � � �F�;���������J]F� � ^#/��� �

 7,969,960  4,818,345

16.1.1� K'�����-�����
������������$�����
�
����

�������������'������-���¤>�$�����
�����
'�������
��_���'�
as land, building, plant and machinery etc.) with aggregate carrying amount of Rs. 14,671 million.

16.1.2� #
� ����
��
� 
�����-�������5�
��*� 
'�������
��
��$�� 
�������-�����
��
�¤
�
�������-�
�

��_���'�
���$��
����-���
����
��*������

���
��*�$��
���?��
�� ��
��� �
��`� �
$� �
'��� 
�
� ¤
�
����� ��-�
�

�� ���
�����¤�$��
�
'���������

�5�
'�������
�-����
$����5'��'������������$�5�
'�������
'�������
�
��$�
��

17  DEFERRED TAXATION    
      

Deferred tax liability comprises of (deductible) / taxable temporary differences in respect of the following:

  ��$�#	��!����������
������*�
 
  Accelerated tax depreciation  1,709,462   1,713,356 
  Revaluation surplus on buildings 15  130,155   143,396 
  
� � ^���*!
#	��!����������
������*��� � � �

 
  Provision for compensated absences  (3,154)  (1,573)
� � 	
������
�����

���
�¤
�� � -      (6,499)
  Unrealised exchange losses  5,784   (292)
  Provision for infrastructure cess and government levies  (128,845)  (61,427)
  Provision for obsolescence against spares  (5,170)  -    
  Alternate corporate taxation  -      (330,540)
     1,708,232   1,456,421

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

(Rupees in ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000)

Sale price Purchase
price 2018 2017^�!�����

maturity / 
repayment

��!����
mark-up

per annum

<��#������
instalments and
commencement

date
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18  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
    
      

Trade creditors 18.1   2,029,925   4,081,902 
  Payable to provident fund 18.2  3,164   1,229 
  Sales commission payable  60,868   52,509 
  Accrued expenses  1,360,709   935,228 
  Advances from customers 18.3   893,511   390,740 
  Provision for infrastructure cess 18.4   774,813   519,204 
  Provision for government levies 18.5   230   257 
  Short term compensated absences  11,928   5,928 
� � q�����������¤
����
�����
��
�:�
$� ]F�Z��  24,171   -    
  Workers’ Welfare Fund  265,342   140,452 
  Others  33,472   6,857 
    5,458,133   6,134,306 

18.1  Trade creditors includes Rs. 1,072.79 million (2017: Rs. 3,011.88 million) payable to a related party.

18.2 The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 
�]F����
'�������
����<�
��J]\��
$�
'����
$�
��
�������¤�$�
'����
$���

   
18.3  Advances from customers are unsecured and includes Rs. 0.18 million (2017: Rs. 0.15 million) 

�����-�$������������
�$����
����������������¤
��'�$����$��

18.4�� K'��� �������

�� ���-����
� ����
�
� ¤�
�� �����

� ����

� �����

��$� 
�� �>����� �
$�K�>�
��
� ��¤����
(refer note 20.1.1).

  Opening balance   519,204   362,076 
  Provided during the year   255,609   157,128 
  Closing balance   774,813   519,204 
 
>��j�� "��+
�
�������;�+������!�	�+
���
 

  Opening balance   257   409 
  Payment during the year   (27)  (152)
  Closing balance   230   257 
 
>��|�� ���������"���!�"��!
*
��!
��������
 

  Opening balance   -      13,817 
  Allocation for the year 26  312,226   247,788 
� � #

����
��
�5�����������¤
����
�����
��
���
$� �  4,090   85 
  Payment during the year   (292,145)  (261,690)
  Closing balance   24,171   -  
 
19  SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - secured 
 

  Conventional 
� � ��

�
��¤
�
����
$�������!�������
����

� ][�]�� �3,919,725   1,570,864 
� � ��

�
��¤
�
����
$����>���
���¤
�
���	�'���� ][���� �1,861,675   1,118,500 
 

  Islamic 
� � 	'��
�
����¤
�
����
$�����

�
�����'�����'� ][�X�� �1,255,757   860,369 
� � 	'��
�
����¤
�
����
$���K�������'�����'� ][�@�� �1,425,153   1,489,503 
     8,462,310   5,039,236

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Note
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19.1� K'�� ������
���� ���� ��

�
�� ¤
�
��� �-�������� ����� -������� ����������� ��
��� ���� ���� 
'�� �������� ���
���
�
��5����
������
�����?������

���K'����
����������!����
�
'����¤
�
������
��������Z�Z���
��
8.42% (2017: 6.08% to 8.00%) per annum.  

 
19.2� K'�������
��'����'��
�
������

�
��¤
�
���������
���
$����>���
���¤
�
���	�'�������
'��	
�
��

/�
����������
�
���������������������
���K'����
���������!����
�
'���������
�������]��
����]H��_�J]\��
2.15%) per annum.  

 
19.3� K'�������
��'�����
��
�$� ������
���� �����'��
� 
����¤
�
����
$�����

�
�����'�����'��K'�� ��
��

������¤
� ���Z�X@��
��Z�ZX��_�J]\��Z�XX��
��Z�HX�`������

����K'���������
����
�����5�
'�
�
5��-��
months and is renewable. 

 
19.4� K'�������
��'�����
��
�$�������
���������'��
�
����¤
�
����
$���K�������'�����'��K'����
��������¤
�

is 6.09% to 6.47% (2017: 6.07% to 6.14%) per annum. This facility matures within twelve months and 
is renewable. 

 
19.5 As at 30 June 2018, the unavailed facilities from the above borrowings amounted to Rs. 4,594 million 

(2017: Rs. 6,360.76 million). 
 
19.6 The above facilities are secured by way of joint pari passu charge and ranking over current and future 

moveable assets of the Company having aggregate charge amounting to Rs.16,330 million. 
 
20  CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 
 
20.1 Contingencies 
 
20.1.1� K'��	�
$'�:�
�
���<�
*�][[@����������$��
��
����
���
���������
�
'����
�����]�����
'���+:�-������������

���$���

���
��������-�
��
'�����-�
������	�
$'�-���������������K'��	�
$'�%��'�����
��
���
�
��
�¤��$�
by the petitioner, passed an interim order directing that every company subsequent to 27 December 
2006 is required to clear the goods on paying 50% of the fee amount involved and furnishing a 
�����

���|�������
������
'������
�������

��/�
�������

���������$��������
'�����-����

��
�$�
interim order amount to Rs. 791.5 million (2017: Rs. 536.5 million), have been provided to the 
Department. However, a provision to the extent of amount utilized from the limit of guarantee has 
also been provided for by the Company on prudent basis (Note 18.4). Subsequently through Sindh 
Finance Act 2015 and 2016, the legislation has doubled the rate of Sindh infrastructure cess. The 
Company has obtained stay against these and the ultimate dispute has been linked with the previous 
infrastructure cess case. 

 
20.1.2 In 2011, the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess was levied via GIDC Act 2011 and further the rate 

��������5������
$�$�-���:�
�
���/�����J]��!��J]X�5'��'�5����'����
��$��
�
'��	�����������
����
Pakistan. The Supreme Court of Pakistan declared GIDC Act 2011 to be unconstitutional and ultra 
vires on the grounds that GIDC is a ‘Fee’ and not a ‘Tax’ and in the alternative it is not covered by 
any entry relating to imposition or levy of tax under Part-I of the Federal Legislative list and on either 
counts the ‘cess’ could not have been introduced through a money bill under the Constitution.

 
  During 2015, the Government passed a new law ‘Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act 2015’ 

(‘the Act’), by virtue of which all prior enactments have been declared infructuous. The said Act levies 
�#;���
�����]JJ�������/K{��
��
$��
�������
����
��
��
$������JJ�������/K{��
����
�-����5���
consumption, effective 01 July 2011. The Company has obtained a stay order on the retrospective 
�������
��
����
'��<�
������
'��	�
$'�%��'�����
��K'�������
�������
¤$�

������-����������
������
$�
therefore has not recorded, to the extent of self consumption, a provision of Rs. 380.8 million (from 01 
������J]]�
������������J]H`��
�
'����¤
�
������
�
���

���%�5�-��*�
'�������
����$�������-����
����
�#;��
��
'���>
�

�����
���������
����
��
�����������J]H��
5��$����
��Z���
������J]Z*�
'��	�
$'�
High Court held that enactment of GIDC Act 2015 is ultra-vires to the Constitution of Pakistan. Sui 
	��
'��
����������
��~���
�$�'���¤��$��
��

��!����
���������������
'��;�-����
���/�
�'����	�
$'�
%��'�����
��K'����������¤��$��������
'��;�-����
���/�
�'����	�
$'�%��'�����
�5���$�������$��
�
'��
ground that Learned Single Judge while passing the impugned judgement has considered all the 
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material facts and also the relevant provisions of Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA) and has 
������
���������$�
'�����
��������
��
���
�X]������J]\*�������
����
�
��
�¤��$�����
�
'��������
���
�
the Peshawar High Court challenging the vires of the GIDC Act 2015 was dismissed for the reason 
that the Act has been passed by the Parliament strictly in accordance with the legislative procedures 
contained in the Constitution of Pakistan and therefore no procedural defect in the Act which could 
be made as a ground for its annulment. In light of aforementioned developments, the Company on 
prudent basis, continue to recognise provision after the passage of the Act.

 
  Further the Company has not recognized GIDC amounting to Rs. 850 million (2017: Rs. 739 million) 

pertaining to period from 01 July 2011 to 30 June 2018 with respect to its captive power plant from 
5'��'���5�����
���
��
�����������$�
��^!����
����~���
�$����
�����

���
��$����
'�
*��
�
'���-�

�
such levy is imposed, it shall recover GIDC from K-Electric Limited through fuel adjustments after 
getting requisite approval from National Electric Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA).  

 
20.1.3� �����
$�����������
����<�
'���
��_���<`�'��������$�
�
�¤��
��
������
��������
�����
������$�������$�
��


'�����
��������$�$�5
��
����<���$�
�
��*��JJ���K'�������
��'���¤��$������
��
�
'��	�
$'�%��'�
Court (the Court) challenging the gas tariff increase. The Court has granted a stay order, subject to 
security deposit of the differential amount with the Nazir of the Court. The Company has deposited 
amount of Rs. 348.3 million (2017: 107.7 million) as post dated cheques with the Nazir of the Court. 
K'�������
�*��
����$�

������*�'��������������$�
'�������

��
�
'����¤
�
������
�
���

���
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*��J]@��K'�������
��¤��$�����
�
�
�
��
�����
�
��
�
in the Sindh High Court, challenging the said unlawful demand on the ground that the Company is 
a trans-provincial establishment operating industrial and commercial activities across Pakistan. The 
Sindh High Court granted stay order in favor of the Company declaring exemption on the basis that 
the Company being a trans-provincial establishment is liable to pay Workers Welfare Fund under 
Federal Workers Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971. In a separate case, the Sindh High Court has dealt 
on the subject of trans-provisional establishment in its judgement. A similar view is likely to be taken 
in this case as well where the liability will have to be discharged in the respective province. 

 
20.1.5� K'����$���������
���
��������
����_���`*����'�5����
����$�
'���>���
�����
'�������
�����$��

to Afghanistan under the pretext that SRO 190(I) / 2002 dated 2 April 2002 on the account of non-
�����

����]\��������
�>�����
�
�
�
��
�����
�
��
��
�
'��	�
$'�%��'�����
�_	%�`�'������
�¤��$��
�
1 October 2015 arguing that there is no sales tax on exports to Afghanistan as per manufacturing 
bond rules SRO 450(I) / 2015 and that SRO 190 issued in 2002 were implemented and hence under 
the Sales Tax Act 1990 no such liability could be raised at this stage. The Court granted a stay order 
by allowing Company’s exports to Afghanistan subject to depositing bank guarantees worth Rs. 2.65 
million (2017: Rs. 2.65 million) (i.e. value of disputed sales tax amount) before the Nazir of the Court. 
�
�XJ���
������J]H�
'��
�>���
'���
�� �����$��������¤��
��
���� 
�� 
'�������������
�����	���][J_#`� |�
2002 and stated that exports made to Afghanistan do not attract the levy of sales tax. The same 
'��������$�����
�¤��$��������
'������
��
$�$�����������
'����������
��5�
'���
��
����
'�����$���
��
guarantees is awaited.

20.1.6 Guarantees issued in favour of Sui Southern Gas Company Limited by the bank amounted to Rs. 
269.74 million (2017: Rs. 268.7 million) as a security for supply of gas.

20.1.7 Guarantees issued in favour of Pakistan State Oil Company Limited issued by bank on behalf of the 
Company amounted to Rs. 12 million (2017: Rs. 5.5 million). 

 
20.1.8 Guarantees issued in favour of K-Electric Limited issued by bank on behalf of the Company amounted 

to Rs. 8.67 million (2017: Rs. 8.67 million). 
 
20.1.9 Guarantees issued in favour of Wah Industries issued by bank on behalf of the Company amounted 

to Rs. 21.80 million (2017: Rs. Nil). 
 
20.1.10 Guarantees issued in favour of Collector of Customs issued by bank on behalf of the Company 

amounted to Rs. 4.61 million (2017: Rs. Nil). 
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20.2 Commitments 
 
20.2.1 Capital expenditure commitments outstanding as at 30 June 2018 amounted to Rs. 581.3 million 

(2017: Rs. 3,016.6 million). 
 
20.2.2 Commitments under Letters of Credit for raw materials and spares as at 30 June 2018 amounted to 

Rs. 9,538 million (2017: Rs. 4,616.45 million). 
 
20.2.3 The unavailed facilities for opening Letters of Credit and Guarantees from banks as at 30 June 2018 

amounted to Rs. 10,199.52 million (2017: Rs. 13,501.95 million) and Rs. 59.31 million (2017: Rs. 190 
million) respectively.

21  NET SALES

 
 
  Local   51,726,237   35,625,125 
  Export   4,216,796   3,911,843 
     55,943,033   39,536,968 
 
  Sales tax   (7,735,649)  (5,361,282)
  Trade discounts   (31,825)  (20,950)
  Sales commission   (554,840)  (422,114)
     (8,322,314)  (5,804,346)
     47,620,719   33,732,622 
22  COST OF SALES 
 
  Opening stock of raw material and work-in-process   4,219,066   2,739,463 
  Purchases   40,813,376   29,651,958 
� � 	�������*�5������
$���
�¤
�� ���]� �540,843   401,788 
  Electricity, gas and water   1,075,894   975,516 
  Insurance   22,037   19,298 
  Security and janitorial   21,294   18,565 
  Depreciation  6.2   762,089   710,769 
  Amortisation 7  1,338   112 
  Stores and spares consumed   98,148   87,095 
  Provision for obsolescence against spares   19,553   -    
  Repairs and maintenance   97,912   81,011 
  Postage, telephone and stationery   6,741   6,367 
  Vehicle, travel and conveyance   15,145   18,799 
  Internal material handling   26,235   16,789 
  Environment controlling expense   1,741   1,585 
  Computer stationery and software support fees   5,506   6,078 
  Partial manufacturing expenses   -      285,068 
  Sundries   32,838   18,301 
  Recovery from sale of scrap    (1,538,907)  (1,089,654)
     46,220,849   33,948,908 
  Closing stock of raw material and work-in-process   (7,117,488)  (4,219,066)
  Cost of goods manufactured   39,103,361   29,729,842 
  Finished goods: 
  Opening stock   3,505,587   1,602,250 
  Closing stock 9  (2,561,284)  (3,505,587)
     944,303   (1,903,337)
 
     40,047,664   27,826,505

22.1� 	�������*�5������
$���
�¤
���
���$�������]�H]�������
�_�J]\������]F�JF�������
`��
�������
�����
����
��
�����

���
�¤
��

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Note
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23  SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

 
� � 	�������*�5������
$���
�¤
�� �X�]�  78,399   68,612 
  Rent, rates and taxes   11,445   10,514 
  Electricity, gas and water   2,522   2,174 
  Insurance   919   673 
  Depreciation  6.2   6,654   4,030 
  Postage, telephone and stationery   3,018   2,063 
  Vehicle, travel and conveyance   13,865   11,358 
  Freight and forwarding charges   257,387   206,722 
  Sales promotion   51,580   17,065 
  Others   8,503   10,583 
     434,292   333,794 
 
23.1� 	�������*� 5����� �
$� ��
�¤
�� �
���$�� ���� X��H� ������
� _�J]\�� ���� X�FX� ������
`� �
� ������
� ��� �
����

��
�����

���
�¤
���
 
24  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
 
� � 	�������*�5������
$���
�¤
�� �@�]�  197,776   129,910 
  Rent, rates and taxes   4,831   5,821 
  Electricity, gas and water   2,169   2,118 
  Insurance   2,138   1,657 
  Depreciation  6.2   5,827   5,527 
  Security and janitorial services   530   491 
  Printing and stationery   4,922   2,250 
  Computer stationery and software support fees   63   48 
  Postage and communication   2,153   701 
  Vehicle, travel and conveyance   7,009   5,468 
  Legal and professional charges   36,924   43,902 
� � ���
�¤��
��
��
$������
��
��
��'������ �  4,810   6,033 
  Directors’ fee   4,950   3,660 
  Others   11,295   7,290 
     285,397   214,876 
 
24.1� 	�������*� 5����� �
$� ��
�¤
�� �
���$�� ���� [�JX� ������
� _�J]\�� ���� H�[]� ������
`� �
� ������
� ��� �
����

��
�����

���
�¤
��

25  FINANCE COST

� � ����!����
��
� � !���
��
����¤
�
��
�� �  156,763   218,725 
  - short term borrowings   184,801   81,697 
  - running musharakah   34,376   20,375 
  - term musharakah   43,878   20,849 
  - diminishing musharakah   107,545   104,776 
     527,363   446,422 
� � /�
���'������ �  7,663   9,963 
� � #

����
��
�q�����������¤
����
�����
��
�:�
$� �  4,090   85 
� � �>�'�
������
��
�������
��>�'�
���¤
�
��
�� � �-      (970)
     539,116   455,500

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Note
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26  OTHER OPERATING CHARGES

  
  Auditors’ remuneration  26.1   2,254   2,106 
  Donations  26.2   64,000   44,459 
� � q�����������¤
����
�����
��
�:�
$� ]F�Z��  312,226   247,788 
  Workers’ Welfare Fund  124,890   99,115 
� � ~�����
�$���-�
�-��¤
�
������
�
����

�� �-      31,483 
  Exchange loss - net  158,225   -    
    661,595   424,951 
26.1  Auditors’ remuneration

  Audit fee  1,550   1,444 
  Half yearly review  443   411 
� � �
'������-������
���$�
�����
�¤��
��
�� �136   126 
  Out of pocket expenses  125   125 
    2,254   2,106 

26.1.1 These amounts are inclusive of sales tax. 

26.2  Donations 

26.2.1 Donations to following Organizations and Trusts exceed Rs. 500,000:

  Habib University Foundation  10,500   -    
  SINA Health Education and Welfare Trust  8,000   12,000 
  Amir Sultan Chinoy Foundation  6,000   5,000 
� � 	�
$'�#
�
�
�
�����{�������+�K��
����

�
��
�  5,000   9,000 
� � <���^'�
����

�
���
$�/���$�
��	��-���������
�
� �5,000   -    
  Indus Hospital  5,000   1,500 
  The Citizens Foundation  4,800   4,400 
  Charter for compassion  3,200   -    
� � ��
��

��<�$�:��
$�
��
�_����`� �3,000   -    
  The Hunar Foundation  2,700   -    
  Society for the Rehabilitation of Special Children  1,600   -    
  National University of Sciences and Technology  1,000   -    
  Karwan-e-Hayat Psychiatric Care and Rehabilitation Center   1,000   -    
� � �'�����
!�!<������$���
��
�+���$�����K���
� �1,000   -    
  Insaf Community Welfare Society  1,000   -   
� � <����'��
�/�
�-���

�K���
�  1,000   1,000 
  The Kidney Centre  1,000   1,000 
  Carvan for Life Trust  900   -    
� � ~��
�
���'��
����'�/�
�-���

�K���
� � -      2,000 
� � K'����
��

�� /�'��$�	����
�!�<���^'�
�{
�-����
��%����
��� � -      2,000 
  Aga Khan Education Service Pakistan  -      2,000 
� � /��
!��!	����
���
����%����
��� �-      1,600 
    61,700   41,500 

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Note
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26.2.2 Donations in which directors are interested are as follows:

� � ����K�5¤?�%���'�
���+�� K���
��� %�����{
�-����
�
  Syed Salim Raza  Foundation 18, Faisal
    Cantonment, Karachi   10,500   -    

� � ����	���������'�
��� �'�����
� <����	��
�
��'�
��
    Foundation 101,
� � � � /�����

������*
� � � � ]J�/�����

����$*
    Karachi   6,000   5,000 

� � ����^����
���������� K���
��� ^��5�
!�!%���

    Plot # SC-54, Darusalam
    Housing Society,
    Sector 31-F, Korangi,
    Karachi   1,000   -    

� � ����K���?�#?����^'�
� ;����
��� %��'�<�
�
�$��	��
��
�����
�
    Pakistan 33, St 23, F-10/2,
    Islamabad   500   -    

� � ����^�����	'����� ;����
��� �������#

����
�~�5
    Association of Pakistan-PILAP
� � � � ]F!�*���¤���=����J�*
    Zamzama Commercial
    Lane No. 2, Phase V, D.H.A,
    Karachi    -      500 

� � 	��$�	���������� K���
��� ~��
�
���'��
����'�/�
�-���


    Trust 37-C, Sunset Lane No. 4
    Phase II Extension, 24th
    Commercial Street D.H.A,
    Karachi   -      2,000 
       18,000   7,500

27  OTHER INCOME

  ��*�����������������*
�	�����!�
  Income from power generation 27.1   32,110   42,594 
  Recovery of shared resources cost  58,105   40,961 
  Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment  9,282   4,874 
  Rental income  1,942   1,932 
  Exchange gain - net  -      11,331 
  Others  48,178   28,578 
    149,617   130,270 
  ��*��������!�����������*
�	�����!�� 
  Income on bank deposit - conventional  1,040   1,508 
    150,657   131,778

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

Name of Director Name and address
of the Donee

Interest
in Donee  Amount donated

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)
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?}�>�� ��*���������������;�����!
��

 
  Net sales   421,065   422,898 
 
  Cost of electricity produced: 
� � 	�������*�5������
$���
�¤
�� �\�]�]�  22,609   19,854 
  Electricity, gas and water   821,520   798,540 
  Depreciation  6.2   82,331   48,272 
  Stores and spares consumed   20,291   21,783 
  Repairs and maintenance   33,797   23,685 
  Sundries   1,616   1,606 
     982,164   913,740 
  Less: Self consumption   (593,209)  (533,436)
     388,955   380,304 
 
  Income from power generation   32,110   42,594 
 
27.1.1 	�������*� 5����� �
$� ��
�¤
�� �
���$�� ���� J�Z\� ������
� _�J]\�� ���� J�[Z� ������
`� �
� ������
� ��� �
����

��
�����

���
�¤
���
 
27.1.2 The Company has electricity power generation facility at its premises. The Company has generated 

electricity in excess of its requirements which is supplied to K-Electric Limited under an agreement. 
The agreement is valid for period up to 20 years w.e.f. 31 August 2007. 

 
28  TAXATION 
   
  Current - for the year   1,025,358   782,265 
           - for prior years   158,450   136,320 
    12  1,183,808   918,585 
  Deferred    254,546   646,167 
      1,438,354   1,564,752 

?��>�� ��	�!
����
��#�!�����
�*����!�$��$�����������**���!
�;�����!

 
� � ���¤
��������
�>�
��
�� � �  5,803,312   4,608,774 
 
  Tax at the enacted tax rate  30.00 31.00 1,740,994   1,428,720 
� � �����
��
��
������
$���¤
���
�>�������� (1.05) (2.94) (60,666)  (135,472)
  Effect of adjustments on account of change
    in rates and proportionate etc. (4.62)  (1.29)  (268,311)  (59,567)
  Effect of super tax  2.58   2.74   149,607   126,434 
  Effect of prior year taxation  2.73   2.96   158,450   136,320 
  Effect of tax credit   (4.99)  (1.66)  (289,659)  (76,525)
  Effect of Alternate Corporate Tax  -      3.17   -      146,162 
  Others  0.14   (0.03)  7,939   (1,320)
    24.79   33.95   1,438,354   1,564,752

28.2  The provision for current year tax represents tax on taxable income at the rate of 30% (2017: 31%). 
Finance Act 2018 enacted gradual reduction in the corporate tax rates for companies from 30% 
_�����

�
�>���
�`�
���H���-����������$����¤-���������K'�������
�������
��������

�
�>��>��
���
����$��
�
'����
������������
�$��

�����
�
��
����
'��
�>���5��
���
�����
'�
�
'�����¤���

����-����
�
for the purpose of taxation is available. According to management, the tax provision made in the 
¤
�
������
�
���

��������¤���

��<����������
�������
�
'��������������
�����
�>����-����
�5�
'�
�>�
assessed is presented below:

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Note

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

2018 2017
(Effective tax rate %)
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  Income tax provision for the year (as per accounts)   782,265   112,327   24,906 
  Income tax as per tax assessment   782,265   129,593   14,398 
 
28.3  Under section 5A of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (as amended by the Finance Act 2017), a tax shall 

���������$��
�
'����
�����\�H�����
'�������

�
�����¤
��������
�>��
��-����������������
�*��
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��5�
'�
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'�����
'���
$����
'��
�>������
'����'����'������
����'������

 
� � K'��/���$����;����
�����
�
'�������
�
��'��$��
�]H�<����
��J]F�'�-���������
$�$����¤���

����'�

dividend for the year ended 30 June 2018 for the consideration and approval of the shareholders 
of the Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting which complies with the above stated 
��?������
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29  EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

 
� � ���¤
���
���
�>�
��
�����
'������� � �4,364,958   3,044,022 
 

 
  Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year  435,000,000   435,000,000 
 
  Earnings per share      

  10.03  7.00 
 
29.1 There is no dilutive impact on earnings per share. 
 
30  CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL

  (Increase) / decrease in current assets 
  Stores and spares   49,146   (65,099)
  Stock-in-trade   (4,594,896)  (4,223,715)
  Trade debts   119,253   (243,242)
  Receivable from K-Electric Limited (KE)   10,324   (2,474)
  Advances, trade deposits and short-term prepayments   5,235   (23,603)
  Sales tax receivable   (351,114)  (724,029)
     (4,762,052)  (5,282,162)
  (Decrease) / increase in current liabilities 
  Trade and other payables   (682,173)  1,437,962 
     (5,444,225)  (3,844,200)

31  STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS
 
  The actuarial valuation of gratuity was carried out during the year by an independent actuary under 

projected unit credit method. 
 
� � K'�������5�
�����
�¤��

�������
��
��'������
����$�

  Financial assumptions 
  Rate of discount  10.00% 9.25%
  Expected rate of salary increase  9.00% 8.25%

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

2018 2017

(Rupees)

(Number)

2016 2015
(Rupees in ‘000)

2017
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  Demographic assumptions 
 � ���
���
����
�  SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005
  Rates of employee turnover  Moderate� ��$���
�
  Retirement assumption  Age 60 years Age 60 years

� � ���������!����*�;�
����
���!�!����!��������*
�	
� � �����
!
������������		���]

� � �����

�-��������$�¤
�$���
�¤
�������
��
� �  125,399   98,758 
  Fair value of plan assets   (125,399)  (75,180)
  Liability as at 30 June    -      23,578 

� � ��+����!��
��!���������!�+�	�������������#����!��#	
;�!
���
� � �����

�-��������$�¤
�$���
�¤
�������
��
�!�����

�
�����
'������� �  98,758   75,829 
  Current service cost   17,445   14,867 
  Interest cost   8,957   6,638 
  Re-measurements: Actuarial losses on obligation   4,096   5,569 
� � /�
�¤
�����$� �  (3,857)  (4,145)
� � �����

�-��������$�¤
�$���
�¤
�������
��
� �  125,399   98,758 

� � ��+����!��
��!�����
��+�	�������	�������!��
  Fair value of plan assets - beginning of the year   75,180   51,333 
  Interest income on plan assets   8,702   5,279 
  Return on plan assets, excluding interest income   (5,336)  3,924 
� � /�
�¤
�����$� �  (3,857)  (4,145)
  Contribution to fund   50,710   18,789 
  Fair value of plan assets   125,399   75,180 

� � ��+����!�
����!��������#����!�	
�#
	
!��
  Opening balance   23,578   24,496 
  Re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income  
  during the year   9,432   1,645 
� � �>��
����'���������
�����¤
��
$�����������

� �  17,700   16,226 
  Contribution paid during the year   (50,710)  (18,789)
  Closing balance   -      23,578 

  Amount recognised in total comprehensive income
  
� � K'�������5�
������

��'�-�����
��'����$��
�������
����
'������
�¤
��
�����¤
��
$�����������

��
$�

other comprehensive income:

  Component of defined benefit costs  
     recognized in profit and loss account 
  Current service cost   17,445   14,867 
  Net interest cost 
� � !���#

����
����
��
�$�¤
�$���
�¤
�������
��
� �  8,957   6,638 
  -   Return on plan assets   (8,702)  (5,279)
     17,700   16,226
  Component of defined benefit costs (re-measurement) 
     recognised in other comprehensive income 
  Re-measurements: Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation 
  -  Loss due to change in experience adjustments   4,096   5,569 
  -  Return on plan assets   5,336   (3,924)
  Net re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income   9,432   1,645 

� � K�
���$�¤
�$���
�¤
����
������
���$��
����¤
��
$�
     loss account and other comprehensive income    27,132   17,871 

2018 2017

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)
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� � ��������!������������#����!�*��!�����!�����$!������
 
  Current service cost   20,384   17,446 
 
� � #

����
��>��
����
�$�¤
�$���
�¤
�������
��
� � �12,136   8,829 
  Return on plan assets   (13,404)  (5,312)
  Net interest cost   (1,268)  3,517 
 
� � ���
�����
'��
�>
������
����������
���$��
����¤
��
$������ �  19,116   20,963

� � ������
!
��������
��+�	�������	�������!�

 
  Government securities  81,224  65%  51,901  69%
  Shares - Listed  34,412  27%  18,882  25%
� � /�
��$�����
��  9,763  8%  4,397  6%
  Fair value of plan assets  125,399  100%  75,180  100%
 
� � ����
!
+
!�����	��
������
;�
�*��!��*!���
�	�������!
���]

  Actuarial liability 

  Discount rate + 100 basis points   112,512   88,358 

  Discount rate - 100 basis points   140,745   111,167 

  Salary increases + 100 basis points   140,989   111,362 

  Salary increases - 100 basis points    112,079   88,008 
 
 
� � q���'
�$��-������$���
��
����
'��;�¤
�$�/�
�¤
�������
��
� �  11   12

  The sensitivity analysis prepared presented above may not be representative of the actual change in 

'��$�¤
�$���
�¤
�������
��
�����
�����
�������
'�
�
'���'�
����
�������
��
��5���$��������
������
��
�
of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

32  REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

 

 
� ��
������������
���
��
�  21,076   67,403   125,309   17,182   42,359  102,813
� /�
���  7,025   4,628   24,922   5,727   2,192  22,444
� ��
�����

���
�¤
��  2,633   933   9,344   2,352   833  8,276
 Rent, utilities, leave 
 encashment etc.  10,538   4,591   64,615   8,800   3,719  52,784
   41,272   77,555   224,190   34,061   49,103   186,317 
 
 Number of persons   1   2   33   1   2   30

32.1  In addition to the above, Chief Executive, Directors and certain Executives are provided with free use 
of Company maintained vehicles in accordance with the Company’s policy.

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

Fair valueFair value
PercentagePercentage

20172018

(Rupees in ‘000) (Rupees in ‘000)

(Number in years)

2018
��
��

�$�*�!
+�
Chief

ExecutiveDirectors Directors�$�*�!
+�� Executives

2017

(Rupees in ‘000)
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32.2  Fee paid to non-executive directors is Rs. 4.95 million (2017: Rs. 3.66 million) on account of meetings 
attended by them. 

 
32.3�� �������
�-�� ¤������ '�-�� ���
� ���
�
�$� 
�� ��«��
� �'�
���� �
� 
'�� $�¤
�
��
� ��� �>���
�-�� ��� ����

Companies Act, 2017. 
 
33  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 
 
 Financial risk management 
 

� K'��/���$����;����
�������
'�������
��'����-�����������
������
������
'����
�����'��

��
$��-�����'
�
of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks 
������
���������¤
�
������
�
����

���

 

 -  Credit risk 
 -  Liquidity risk 
� !�������
������
 
� �
�������;����!�����������
 

� K'��/���$����
�����?��

���
'����'��
�
'�����������$�-�����
���
$���
�
���
��
'�������
���������
management policies. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and 
analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor 
�������
$��$'���
���
������
����������
�����

�����������
$����
����������-��5�$�����������
����«��
�
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its standards 
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obligations. 

 

 The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk 
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework 
in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

33.1  Credit Risk
 
� ���$�
������ ��� 
'����������¤
�
����� �����
��
'�������
����������
�����������

�����
��
����¤
�
�����

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations without considering the fair value of the collateral 
available there against. 

 
� �$�������!��*���
!��
���
 
� K'�� ������
�� ����

� ��� ¤
�
����� ����
�� ��� $�������$� �
� 
�
�� X@� �������

� 
'�� ��>����� ���$�
�

exposure. 
 
 The Company’s principal credit risk arises from trade debts, K-Electric Limited (KE) and bank 

balances. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying 
����

� ��� ���'� ������ ��� ¤
�
����� ����
� �����
�$� �
� 
'���� ¤
�
����� �
�
���

��� �����-����� �����
K-Electric Limited (KE) is monitored on an on going basis in accordance with settlement agreement. 
The Company does not expect to incur loss there against. The Company’s exposure to credit risk 
�����
�� �����
��$��$��
���� ������
��� �
«��
��$���� 
'�� �
$�-�$�����'����
����
����������'����
������
������
�����
'�������
���������������$������
�
�������
���������

��
��$-�
�����������
������K'��
Company has no major concentration of credit risk with any single customer. The majority of the trade 
customers have been transacting with the  Company for several years. The Company establishes an 
allowance for impairment where it considers recoveries are not probable. 

 
33.1.1 Trade debts and receivable from K-Electric (KE) amounting to Rs. 114.5 million (2017: Rs. 142.4 

million) at the reporting date belong only to domestic region whereas trade debts amounting to Rs. 
562.9 million (2017: Rs. 664.7 million) belong to foreign customers. 



118 INTERNATIONAL
STEELS LIMITED

33.1.2 Impairment losses   

The aging of trade debtors and receivable from K-Electric Limited (KE) at the reporting date was:  
    

Not past due     663,717   -      795,605   -   
Past due 1-60 days    13,737   -      11,425   -    
Total     677,454   -      807,030   -   

33.1.3� ��
�����

������-���
'�
�
'���
�������$�����
����
'�
��������
�$��������
����������
������
�����*�����$�
�
�'��
������������

���'�-������
$ ��-��5����¤
�
������
��
�
'����������
�-�����
�������:��
'��*�
certain trade debtors are secured by way of Export Letter of Credit and Inland Letter of Credit which 
can be called  upon if the counter party is in default under the terms of the agreement. 

33.1.4 Cash is held only with reputable banks with high quality external credit rating assessed by external 
rating agencies. Following are the credit ratings of banks within which balances are held or credit 
lines available: 

� �%�����/�
��~���
�$� � � ���!"#	� �<!]�� <<<
� {
�
�$�/�
��~���
�$� � � ���!"#	� <!]�� <<<
� :������/�
��~���
�$� � � �<��<� �<]�� �<<
     JCR-VIS A-1+ AA

/�
��<~�%�����~���
�$   PACRA A1+ AA+
� ��/�/�
��~���
�$� � � �<��<� �<]�� <<<
� 	
�
$��$��'��
���$�/�
��_�����
�
`�~���
�$� �<��<� �<]�� <<<
� �����
�/�
��~���
�$� � � ���!"#	� <!]�� <<�
� /�
��<��:���'�~���
�$� � � ���!"#	� <!]�� <<�
� ;�����#�������/�
��~���
�$� � ���!"#	� <!]� �<<!
� %�������
������
�
�/�
��~���
�$� �<��<� �<]�� �<<�
� <����$�/�
��~���
�$� � � �<��<� �<]�� �<<<
� 	�����/�
��~���
�$� � � ���!"#	� <!]� <<
� ��/�#�������/�
��~���
�$�� � �<��<� <]� <

Concentration of credit risk 

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, 
or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that would cause their 
ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or 
other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance 
to developments affecting a particular industry. In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, 
��
�����

��������
�
'�����

�
�
��������$�-����¤�$����
�������#$�

�¤�$���
��

��
��
��������$�
�
������ ���� ��

�����$� �
$� ��
���$� �����$�
����� ��
�����

� $���� 
�
� ��
��$��� 
'�
� �
� '��� �
��
concentration of credit risk at reporting date.

33.2 Liquidity risk 

� ~�?��$�
����������
'�������
'�
�
'�������
��5�����
���

���$��¤���
���
����
�
��������
��
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�$�
5�
'�¤
�
����� �������
���� 
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�������

��$����$���-���
�����'�����
�
'���¤
�
���������
��~�?��$�
�� �����
arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than 
�>���
�$����$��¤���
�� �
� �����
�� ��
$�� 
�����
������
��

���������
�$�5�
'�¤
�
����� �������
�������
they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it 
5������5����'�-�����¤���

���?��$�
��
�����
��
���������
����5'�
�$��*��
$�����
'�
�������
$��
�����$�
conditions,  without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. 
K'�������
���
������ 
'�
� �
� '��� ���¤���

� ���'� 
�����
��>���
�$�5����
�� ����
��� ��?������

��
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�����$�
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����-���������K'�� �����5�
������ 
'����

���
������
���
�������¤
�
����� �������
���*�
including interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements: 

GrossGross ImpairmentImpairment

20172018

(Rupees in ‘000)

 Short term Long term 
RatingBank Rating Agency
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Carrying
amount

Contractual
*�����	���

�
$����!��
or less

2018

�
$�!��
twelve 
months

One to
�
+�������

More than
�
+�������

(Rupees in ‘000)

 Non-derivative 
� ������*
�	�	
�#
	
!
�� 
� ~�
��
����¤
�
��
�� �7,969,960   (8,737,466)  (776,789)  (770,725)  (6,082,624)  (1,107,328)
 Short-term
  borrowings   8,462,310   (8,462,310)  (8,462,310)  -     -     -
 Accrued mark-up  156,489   (156,489)  (156,489)  -     -     -      
 Trade and other
   payables   2,029,925   (2,029,925)  (2,029,925)  -     -     -   
    18,618,684   (19,386,190)  (11,425,513)  (770,725)  (6,082,624)  (1,107,328)
 

 Non-derivative 
� ������*
�	�	
�#
	
!
�� 
� ~�
��
����¤
�
��
�� �@*F]F*X@H�� �_Z*\HX*H[]`� �_F]F*H\F`� �_]*\JZ*�J@`� �_X*F@[*[FF`� �_X\F*F�]`
 Short-term
   borrowings   5,039,236   (5,039,236)  (5,039,236)  -      -      -
 Accrued mark-up  69,140   (69,140)  (69,140)  -      -  -    
 Trade and other
   payables  4,081,902   (4,081,902)  (4,081,902)  -      -      -    
    14,008,623   (15,943,869)  (10,008,856)  (1,706,204)  (3,849,988)  (378,821)

33.2.1� K'����

���
�������'�«�5������
�
�� 
�� 
'�����-��¤
�
����� �������
����'�-�����
�$�
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�$��
� 
'��
basis of mark-up rate  effective as at 30 June. The rate of mark-up have been disclosed in respective 
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may require the Company to repay the respective loans earlier than as directed in the above table.

33.3 Market risk
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���
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within 
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The Company is exposed to currency risk and 
interest rate risk only.

33.3.1 Currency risk 
 
� �����
�����������
'�������
'�
�
'�������-����������
�������'�«�5�������¤
�
������
�
����

�5����«��
��
��

because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

Carrying
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Six months
or less

2017

Six to 
twelve 
months

One to
five years

�����
'�

five years

(Rupees in ‘000)
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� �$�������!��*�����*���
���
 

 The Company is exposed to currency risk on trade debts, bank balances and trade creditors that are 
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currency of the Company, primarily 
U.S. Dollar. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

 Trade debts and bank balance in
 foreign currency    654,985   5,393   679,696   6,486 
 

 Trade creditors    (1,483,519)  (12,197)  (3,129,838)  (29,814)
 

 �!�!����!�����
���*
�	�"��
!
�� 
 �$������     (828,534)  (6,804)  (2,450,142)  (23,328)
 

� K'�������5�
�����
�¤��

��>�'�
�����
���������$�$���
��
'��������
 

 

 
 US Dollar to PKR 109.97 104.98  121.45 / 121.63   104.79 / 104.98
 
 Sensitivity analysis
 

 A 10 percent strengthening / (weakening) of the Pak Rupee against the US Dollar at 30 June would  
'�-��_$�������$`�|��
������$�
'�����¤
��������Z��X�������
�_�J]\������]Z]�F�������
`��K'����
�������
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and the analysis is 
performed on the same basis as done in prior year. 

 
33.3.2 Interest rate risk 
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long term borrowings from bank. 
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for the year by Rs. 103.06 million (2017: Rs. 55.43 million). This analysis assumes that  all other 
variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. 
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other receivable, trade receivables, trade payables, short term borrowing and other current 
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short-term maturities of these 
instruments. For long term deposit asset and long term liabilities, management considers that 
their carrying values approximates fair value owing to credit standing of counterparties and 
interest payable on borrowings is at market rate. The fair value of the land and building on 
freehold land are determined by an independent valuer based on price per square meter and 
current replacement cost method adjusted for depreciation factor for existing asset in use. The 
resulting fair value is a level 3 fair value measurement.

RupeesRupees US DollarsUS Dollars

20172018

(Amount in ‘000)

2018 2017
Average Rates

Rupees

2018 2017
Reporting date rate
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 Changes from financing
  cash flows
 Repayment of loan  -      -      (1,148,385)  -      (1,148,385)
 Proceeds from long term loan  -      -      4,300,000   -      4,300,000 
 Payments / (repayments) - net  -      678,825   -      -      678,825 
 Dividend paid  -      -      -      (1,350,865)  (1,350,865)
� ��!�	�*���;�������
� ������*
�;��*!
+
!
��  -      678,825   3,151,615   (1,350,865)  2,479,575 
 
 Other changes - interest cost 
 Interest expense  -      274,808   264,308   -      539,116 
 Interest paid  -      (263,364)  (188,403)  -      (451,767)
� �'�
�����
���

�
��¤
�
��� ��*\@@*�@[�� �!      -      -      2,744,249 
 Total loan related
   other changes  2,744,249   11,444   75,905   -      2,831,598 
 
 Total equity related
   other changes  -      -      -      4,637,564   4,637,564 
 
 Balance as at 30 June 2018  5,175,482   3,329,218   8,084,059   6,532,704   23,121,463 
 
 During the year Rs. 82.6 million has been capitalized as borrowing cost as disclosed in note 6.1.1 to 
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34  MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES 
 
� ��
�����

��
������
��
$���
$�

��>
��
����>���
�|�-������
����������
�-����
��
�����
��
�
!¤
�
�����

����
��_�����~�
$��
$�/���$�
�`��
$���
��
�����-�

�-����
��
���
��������¤
�
������
�
�
�
��
�
��-�����
$���-�
�-��¤
�
����� �
�
����

��� #
-��-���

�����>
��
���-������� ���$���$�$����
������
�����

��
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 
standards are maintained. 

 
 When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses valuation techniques that 

are appropriate in the circumstances and uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values 
are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation 
techniques as follows: 

 

 - Level 1 : quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 
 - Level 2 : inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
 
 - Level 3 : inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable  

inputs). 
 
 If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair 

value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the 
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basis, the management recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end 
of the reporting period during which the change has occurred. There were no transfers between 
different levels of fair values mentioned above.  
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  Financial assets not  
    measured at fair value 
  Trade debts  677,453   -      -      -      -      -    
  Trade deposits  10,904   -      -      -      -      -    
  Cash and bank balances  99,822   -      -      -      -      -    
� � K�
���¤
�
���������
��  788,179   -      -      -      -      -    
 

  Financial liabilities not  
      measured at fair value 
� � ~�
��
����¤
�
��
��  -      -      6,768,281   -      -      -    
  Current maturity of long  
� � ��
����¤
�
��
��  -      -      1,201,679   -      -      -    
  Trade and other payables  -      -      2,032,842   -      -      -    
  Short term borrowings  -      -      8,462,310   -      -      -    
� � K�
���¤
�
������������
����  -      -      18,465,112   -      -      -

  Financial assets not  
    measured at fair value
  Trade debts  807,030   -      -      -      -      -    
  Trade deposits  7,894   -      -      -      -      -    
  Cash and bank balances  53,228   -      -      -      -      -    
� � K�
���¤
�
���������
�� �FZF*]H��� �!      -      -      -      -  
 

  Financial liabilities not  
    measured at fair value 
� � ~�
��
����¤
�
��
�� �!      -      3,621,272   -      -      -    
  Current maturity of long  
� � ��
����¤
�
��
�� �!      -      1,197,073   -      -      -  
  Trade and other payables  -      -      4,082,558   -      -      -    
  Short term borrowings  -      -      5,039,236   -      -      -    
� � K�
���¤
�
������������
���� �!      -      13,940,139   -      -  -

35  CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
 
  The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern 
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strong capital base to support the sustained development of its businesses. The Company intends to manage 
its capital structure by monitoring return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. 

36  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
 
  Related parties comprise the Holding Company, associated undertakings, directors of the Company, key 

management personnel and staff retirement funds. The Company continues to have a policy whereby 
transactions with related parties are entered into at commercial terms, approved policy and at rates agreed 
�
$��� �� ��

���
|����
����

|�������

�� K'�� ��

����
��
� 
�� $�¤
�$� ��

����
��
� ���
� _���-�$�

� ��
$`� ����
��$���������
'��
����������������

��
$���

����
��
�
��
'��$�¤
�$���
�¤
����
�_���
��
����
$`�������$���
�
the basis of latest actuarial advice. Remuneration of key management personnel are in accordance with their 
terms of engagements.

 
  Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
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Company Secretary, Non-Executive Directors and departmental heads to be its key management personnel. There 
are no transactions with key management personnel other than their terms of employment / entitlement. Rental 
income is recognized on straight line basis over the term of the respective lease agreement.
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36.1 Transactions with related parties

  Holding Company 
  Sales  9,322,568   7,091,011 
  Purchases    234,145   62,050 
  Rent   8,076   10,125 
  Shared resources cost   58,105   40,961 
  Reimbursement of expenses   6,368   3,484 
  Partial manufacturing - sales   23   28 
  Partial manufacturing - purchases   -      304,009 
  Corporate, legal, marketing and IT services   19,587   10,161 
  Dividend paid   612,639   918,958 
 

  Other related parties 
  Sales   1,172,694   662,432 
  Purchases   27,253,573   15,483,463 
  Dividend paid   98,694   138,172 
  Rental income   1,942   1,932 
  Services*   49,019   49,405 
  Sales commission   -      210 
� � ����
���
��
�
��^�����
�����

������

��� �  245,748   198,848 
  Payment to staff retirement funds   69,475   31,345

  * Services includes premium against insurance policies

36.2 The following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transaction or have 
arrangement / agreement in place:

� � <�������!�����	�!���"��!�� ��	�!
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����������*��!�;������������	�
�;�
 

  International Industries Limited  Holding Company holds 56.3% (2017: 56.3%) 
  Sumitomo Corporation  Associated Company holds 9% (2017: 9%) 
� � #

�������_���-�
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  Pakistan Cables Limited Associated Company due to common directorship 
  Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited Associated Company due to common directorship 
  Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited Associated Company due to common directorship 
� � ^	/�������~���
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�$����
���'���
 

36.3 Outstanding balances with related parties have been separately disclosed in trade debts, other 
receivables and trade and other payables respectively. These are settled in ordinary course of business.

37  ANNUAL PRODUCTION CAPACITY
 

  The production capacity at the year end was as follows: 
  Galvanizing   462,000   462,000 
  Cold rolled steel strip   1,000,000   550,000 
  Colour coated   84,000   84,000 
 

  The actual production for the year was: 
  Galvanizing    330,259   312,886 
  Cold rolled steel strip    470,841   464,023 
  Colour coated   19,846   9,345 
 

  The name-plate capacities of the plants are determined based on a certain product mix. The actual 
production mix is different. Actual production was as per market demand. The additional capacity of 
@HJ*JJJ���
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2018 2017
(Rupees in ‘000)

2018 2017
(Metric Tonnes)
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38  OPERATING SEGMENT 
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38.2  Revenue from sales of steel products represents 99% (2017: 99%) of total revenue whereas remaining 
represent revenue from sale of surplus electricity to K-Electric Limited (KE). The Company does not 
consider sale of electricity to KE as separate reportable segment as the power plant of the Company 
is installed primarily to supply power to its Galvanizing plant and Cold Rolling Plant and currently any 
excess electricity is sold to KE.  

 

38.3 All non-current assets of the Company as at 30 June 2018 are located in Pakistan. 
 

38.4 92% (2017: 90%) of sales of steel are domestic sales whereas 8% (2017: 10%) of sales are export / 
foreign sales.
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  Domestic Sales   51,726,237   35,625,125 
  Export Sales   4,216,796   3,911,843 
     55,943,033   39,536,968
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  United States of America  1,663,691   108,909  Letter of Credit 
  United Arab Emirates  89,714   25,302  Letter of Credit 
  Sri Lanka  18,902   7,650  Letter of Credit 
  South Africa  603,831   292,696  Documents against Acceptance 
  West Indies  213,257   98,813  Documents against Acceptance 
  Qatar  274,356   19,738  Documents against Payment 
  Sri Lanka  12,141   8,149  Documents against Payment 
  Somaliland  8,669   1,361  Documents against Payment 
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39  NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 
 

  The detail of number of employees are as follows:

 
  Total employees of the Company at year end   673   567 
  Average employees of the Company during the year   633   563 
 

  Employees working in the Company’s factory at the year end   617   515 
  Average employees working in the Company’s factory during the year  580   516
 

40  GENERAL
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cash dividend of Rs. 3 per share amounting to Rs.1,305 million (2017: Re.1 per share amounting to 
Rs. 435 million) for the year ended 30 June 2018. The approval of the shareholders of the Company 
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  Advances, trade deposits and Advances - Advances, trade  48,463 
  short-term prepayments considered good deposits and short-term 
    prepayments 
 
 
  Unpaid Dividend Trade and other  Unpaid Dividend   275,166 
   payables (presented on face of 
� � � � �
�
���

����¤
�
�����
    position) 
 
  Unclaimed Dividend Trade and other  Unclaimed Dividend  656 
   payables (presented on face of 
� � � � �
�
���

����¤
�
�����
    position)
 
41  DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 
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Pattern of Shareholding
As at 30 June 2018

Number of
shareholders

From To

Having shares
 Shares held Percentage

 559                     1                  100                   31,787                  0.007 
 1257                 101                  500                 527,197                  0.121 
 873                 501               1,000                 815,741                  0.187 
 1243              1,001               5,000              3,447,864                  0.792 
 348              5,001             10,000              2,775,900                  0.638 
 140            10,001             15,000              1,827,163                  0.420 
 86            15,001             20,000              1,573,117                  0.361 
 69            20,001             25,000              1,634,152                  0.375 
 44            25,001             30,000              1,269,082                  0.291 
 19            30,001             35,000                 629,016                  0.144 
 29            35,001             40,000              1,117,102                  0.256 
 24            40,001             45,000              1,035,631                  0.238 
 35            45,001             50,000              1,731,335                  0.398 
 10            50,001             55,000                 530,035                  0.121 
 16            55,001             60,000                 936,300                  0.215 
 9            60,001             65,000                 572,606                  0.131 
 9            65,001             70,000                 620,699                  0.142 
 13            70,001             75,000                 940,786                  0.216 
 48            75,001           100,000              4,224,119                  0.971 
 19          100,001           125,000              2,127,355                  0.489 
 20          125,001           150,000              2,816,107                  1.206 
 8          150,001           175,000              1,297,919                  0.298 
 12          175,001           200,000              2,300,600                  0.528 
 9          200,001           240,000              1,958,922                  0.450 
 14          240,001           295,000              3,640,187                  0.836 
 18          295,001           360,000              5,903,403                  1.357 
 5          360,001           430,000              1,921,002                  0.441 
 8          430,001           470,000              3,630,808                  0.834 
 9          470,001           500,000              4,422,900                  1.016 
 7          500,001           640,000              4,007,301                  0.921 
 9          640,001           720,000              6,110,500                  1.404 
 7          720,001           895,000              5,525,300                  1.270 
 5          895,001        1,035,000              4,795,000                  1.102 
 6       1,035,001        1,350,000              6,728,873                  1.546 
 5       1,410,001        1,565,000              7,407,800                  1.702 
 5       1,565,001        2,000,000              8,585,100                  1.973 
 1       2,005,001        2,010,000              2,007,900                  0.461 
 1       2,100,001        2,105,000              2,100,149                  0.482 
 1       2,105,001        2,110,000              2,110,000                  0.485 
 1       2,110,001        2,115,000              2,111,500                  0.485 
 1       2,645,001        2,650,000              2,646,600                  0.608 
 1       2,660,001        2,665,000              2,664,600                  0.612 
 1       2,960,001        2,965,000              2,961,500                  0.680 
 1       2,980,001        2,985,000              2,983,344                  0.685 
 1       2,985,001        2,990,000              2,988,000                  0.686 
 1       3,245,001        3,250,000              3,248,000                  0.746 
 1       4,595,001        4,600,000              4,600,000                  1.057 
 1     20,625,001      20,630,000            20,626,500                  4.741 
 1     39,475,001      39,480,000            39,477,657                  9.075 
 1   245,055,001    245,060,000          245,055,541                56.334 
 5011             435,000,000                  100.00 
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Key Shareholding

Information on shareholding required under reporting framework is as follows:

Sponsor / Holding Company   
International Industries Ltd. 3        245,055,543  56.334
   

Directors & Spouses 12          13,908,993  3.197
   

Government Financial Institutions    
CDC - Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust 1            1,653,000  0.380
   

Strategic Investors   
Sumitomo Corporation  1          39,477,657  9.075
   

Foreign Corporate Investors   
JFE Steel Corporation  1          20,626,500  4.742
   

Executives  3                 58,591  0.013

International Industries Ltd.         245,055,543  56.334

Sumitomo Corporation            39,477,657  9.075

As at 30 June 2018

No. of shares

No. of shares

No. of
Shareholders

Name of Shareholders

Percentage

Percentage

Categories of Shareholders

Sponsor / Holding Company & Nominee Directors 3          245,055,543  56.334
Directors & Spouses / Family Members 15         16,043,993  3.688
Govt. Financial Institution 1             1,653,000  0.380
Banks, DFI & NBFI 11         9,292,700  2.136
Insurance Companies 14             3,574,478  0.821
Mutual Funds  80         30,527,227  7.017
Companies/Trust & Others 237         15,926,499  3.661
Strategic Investors 1           39,477,657  9.075
Foreign Companies 36           28,112,435  6.462
Modarabas 4         58,500  0.013
General Public / Individuals - Local 4,343           40,366,991  9.279
General Public / Individuals - Foreign 266             4,910,977  1.129
TOTAL 5,011         435,000,000  100.00

 No. of Shares  Held
No. of

Shareholders
 Particulars  Percentage 

Shares Trading by Directors / Executives
13,000 shares were traded by Director/Executive of the Company during the  year 1st July 2017 to
30th June 2018.

As at 30 June 2018

       Members Having 5% or More of Voting Rights
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Shareholders Composition

IIL 
IFC

Directors & their Family Member
JFE Steel

Sumitomo Corporation
Govt. Fin. Institution

Other Companies Individuals
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For the year ended June 30, 2018

=�
�������'��������-�
�
��
'����������
'�
�
'��]]
'��<

������
��������
�
�����
'�������
��5�������'��$��
�
�H
'�	��
�����*��J]F��
�]]�JJ�������
�
'�������
�%���*�/���'�~�>����%�
��*��������K��^'�
����$*�^����'��
to transact the following business:
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1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the Company for the year ended 30 June, 2018 and 
the Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon.
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interim cash dividend announced and paid, making a total dividend of Rs. 4.50 (45%) per share for the 
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4. To transact with the permission of the Chair any other business which may be transacted at an Annual 
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 International Steels Ltd.
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Dated: 15th August 2018 Company Secretary
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2018 (both days inclusive).
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member as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf.

3. An Instrument appointing proxy and the power of attorney or other authority under which it is signed 
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Company at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting. Form of Proxy is enclosed.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 
dated 26 January 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:
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  In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose securities and their registration 
details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall produce proof of his / her identity by showing original 
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) at the time of attending the meeting.
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of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

 b) For Appointing Proxy

 In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose securities and their registration 
details are uploaded as per the regulations shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement. 
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The proxy shall produce his original CNIC at the time of the meeting.

For CNIC / IBAN & Zakat
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copy of the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) to update our records. In case of non-submission, 
all future dividend payments may be withheld.
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exemption and to advise change in address, if any.

UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS & BONUS SHARES

Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend or bonus shares or did not collect their 
�'��������'����*������$-���$�
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enquire about their unclaimed dividend or pending shares, if any.

Please note that in compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the 
stipulated procedure, all dividends unclaimed for a period of three years from the date due and payable 
shall be deposited to the credit of the Federal Government and in case of shares, shall be delivered to the 
	�����
����+��>�'�
������������
���������
�
�

E-DIVIDEND

As per Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, in case of a Public listed company, any dividend payable 
in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled 
shareholders. Therefore, through this notice, all shareholders are requested to update their bank account No. 
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form is enclosed.

Please note that after October 31, 2017 all cash dividends, declared by the Company, will only be remitted to 
designated bank accounts and not otherwise, so please ensure an early update of your particulars to avoid 
any inconvenience in future.

CIRCULATION OF NOTICE OF MEETING & ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

With reference to SRO 787(I/2014 dated September 8, 2014 issued by SECP, shareholders have option to 
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in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements the same shall be provided free of cost 
within seven days of receipt of such request.

FILER AND NON FILER STATUS

i) The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2018 has made certain amendments in Section 150 of 
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax 
on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These tax rates are as under:
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To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 20%, all 
the shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax payers List (ATL) provided on the website 
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ATL before the date of approval of cash dividend at the annual general meeting on 25th September 2018 
otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 20% instead of @ 15%.

ii) For any query / problem / information, the investors may contact the Company and / or the Share Registrar 
at the following phone Numbers, email addressed:

 ISL Shares Department ISL Shares Registrar
� ������'����$�#���
�/'�

�� K%^�<������
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$��
 021-35680045 – 54 021-111-000-322
 irfan.bhatti@isl.com.pk info@thk.com.pk  

iii)  The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number 
(NTN) updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send 
����������
'����=K=����
�¤��
��
��
'�������
������
��	'���������
���������K%^�<������
���_�-
`�~
$��
'��
�'���'��$����5'������
$�
��=K=����=K=����
�¤��
��*����
'�������������*����
�?��
�������
��
����
and their respective folio numbers.
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Consent for Annual Report 
Through Emails
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Company Secretary

E – Mail Address:

CNIC Number:

�!"#!�������
��!$'��*
SIGNATURE OF  
SHAREHOLDER
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To: Date: ____________
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Dear Sir,

#|q�|�������*�¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯¯�
being a/the shareholder(s) of International Steels Limited [the “Company”], hereby, authorize the Company, 
to directly credit cash dividends declared by it, in my bank account as detailed below:

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and I shall keep the Company, informed in 
case of any changes in the said particulars in future.
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___________________
Signature of Shareholder
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account.
2. This letter must be sent to shareholder’s participant/CDC Investor Account Services which maintains his/her CDC account for 

incorporation of bank account details for direct credit of cash dividend declared by the Company from time to time

(i) Shareholder’s details:
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Name of the Shareholder
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CNIC/NICOP/Passport/NTN No. (please attach copy)
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Shareholder’s Address
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Proxy Form

I / We__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
      
of _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
        
)�
��������)�	����INTERNATIONAL STEELS LIMITED and holder of _________________________________ 
       
�	'
��	,����	������(�	����	�����
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����/PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP��'�Q��	��D����	�
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���PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP����PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP�
   
______________________________________ or failing him  _____________________________________________ 
        
of _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
        
����,�(	��,����9������	������'�����,�)���*��������������*�����	�*�����
�������������(��,����)����*'����
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���'������,��'U��	������
���	���/�� � � � � � � �

Signed this _________________________ day of _________________________ 2018    
 

WITNESS:   
   
1 Signature 

 Name
  
 Address 
   
� ��"��Q�����(�	����/�
  
   
    
2 Signature 
 
 Name 
 
 Address 
 
� ��"��Q�����(�	����/�

����<� �	��
��� 
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9�������)�� 	���
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 CDC Shareholders and their proxies are each requested to attach an attested photocopy of their CNIC 
�	�����(�	��+
�����
��(	��,���	��)���	����)�
��
�������������(��,/� � � � �
  

       

Revenue 
StampSignature

(Signature should agree with the 
specimen signature registered 
with the Company)
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GLOSSARY
AGM Annual General Meeting

API American Petroleum Institute

ATIR Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue

ATL Active Tax Payer List

BAC Board Audit Committee

BCP Business Continuity Planning

Board/BOD Board of Directors

CBA Collective Bargaining Agreement

CCG Code of Corporate Governance

CDC Central Depository Company
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CIR Commissioner Inland Revenue

CIT Commissioner Income Tax

COLA Cost of Living Allowance

CPEC China Pakistan Economic Corridor

CRC Cold Rolled Coil

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

CTAC Citizens Trust Against Crime

CWIP Capital Work in Progress

DBN Debottlenecking

EBIT Earnings before Interest and Taxation

EBITDA Earnings before Interest, Taxation 
Depreciation and Amortization

EC Executive Committee

EFP Employees Federation of Pakistan

EPS Earning Per Share

ERW Electric Resistance Weld
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��
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EY Ernst Young

FBR Federal Board of Revenue

FPAP Fire Protection Association of Pakistan

FTA Free-Trade Agreement

FTO Federal Tax Ombudsman

FTR Final Tax Regime

FY Fiscal Year

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GIDC Gas Infrastructure Development Cess

GoP Government of Pakistan

HoD Head of Department

HR Human Resource

HR&RC Human Resources & Renumeration 
Committee

HRC Hot Rolled Coil

HSE Health, Safety and Environment

IAS International Accounting Standards

IBA Institute of Business Administration

ICAP Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan

ICMAP Institute of Cost and Management 
Accountants of Pakistan

IFAC International Federation of Accountants

IFC International Finance Corporation

IFRIC International Financial Reporting 
Interpretation Committee

IFRS International Financial Reporting 
Standards

IIL International Industries Limited

IPO Initial Public Offering

ISL International Steels Limited

ISO International Standards Organization

IT Information Technology

ITAT Income Tax Appellate Tribunal

ITRA Income Tax Reference Application

JV Joint Ventures

KE Karachi Electric

KIBOR Karachi Interbank Offer Rate

KPMG Klynveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler

LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate

LSM Large Scale Manufacturing

LTC Lost Time Case

LTIFR Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate

LTU Large Taxpayers Unit

M&A Memorandum and Articles

MAP Management Association of Pakistan

MC Management Committee

MFN Most Favourable Nation

MoC Ministry of Commerce

MT Metric Ton(s)

NBV Net Book Value

NEPRA National Electric Power Regulatory 
Authority

NFEH National Forum for Environment and 
Health
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NRV Net Realizable Value

NTC National Tariff Commission

OHSAS Occupational Health and Safety 
<�������
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OPEC Organization of the Petroleum Exporting 
Countries

PACRA Pakistan Credit Rating Agency

�<K� ���¤
���
���
�>

PCL Pakistan Cables Limited

PICG Pakistan Institute of Corporate 
Governance

PKR Pakistan Rupees

PSX Pakistan Stock Exchange

Rs. Pakistani Rupees

SECP Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan

SHC Sindh High Court

TCF The Citizens Foundation

US$/USD United States Dollar
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Head Office
101, Beaumont Plaza,
10 Beaumont Road,

Karachi-75530, Pakistan
UAN: (92 21) 111-019-019

Fax: (92 21) 3568 0373
Email: info@isl.com.pk

Lahore Office
Chinoy House,
6-Bank Square,
Lahore, Pakistan

UAN: (92 42) 111-019-019
Fax: (92 42) 3724 9755

Islamabad Office
3rd Floor, Evacuee Trust,

Plot No. 4 Agha Khan Road,
F-5 / 1, Islamabad, Pakistan

Multan Office
Office No. 708A,
Seventh Floor,

The United Mall,
Abdali Road,

Multan, Pakistan

www.isl.com.pk

Factory
399-404, Rehri Road, Landhi, Karachi, Pakistan

Tel: (92 21) 3501 3104-05  Fax: (92 21) 3501 3108

Sales Inquiries
Client Engagement
sales@isl.com.pk

Careers
Recruiting

careers@isl.com.pk


